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PART |
In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, unless the eghtequires otherwise, the terms “we,” “our,” “Usr “the Company” for periods
prior to the closing of our share exchange tramsaston March 31, 2011 refer to InspireMD Ltd.,rev@te company incorporated under the
laws of the State of Israel that is now our whallyned subsidiary, and its subsidiary, taken as@eyland the terms “we,” “our,” “us,” or “the
Company” for periods subsequent to the closingnefshare exchange transactions refer to InspirditD, a Delaware corporation, and its
subsidiaries, including InspireMD Ltd., taken astzole.

Item 1. Business.
History

We were organized in the State of Delaware on Fepr9, 2008 as Saguaro Resources, Inc. to engafge acquisition, exploration
and development of natural resource propertiesM@rh 28, 2011, we changed our name from “Saguaso&ces, Inc.” to “InspireMD, Inc.”

On March 31, 2011, we completed a series of sharieamge transactions pursuant to which we issuedhiareholders of InspireMD
Ltd. 12,666,666 shares of common stock (as adjustettie one-for-four reverse stock split of ounmoon stock that occurred on December
21, 2012) in exchange for all of InspireMD Liglissued and outstanding ordinary shares, resuittititge former shareholders of InspireMD L
holding a controlling interest in us and InspireMi. becoming our wholly-owned subsidiary. In adatit all options, warrants or other
securities convertible into or exercisable for nedty shares of InspireMD Ltd. were exchanged fdiomg, warrants or other securities
convertible into or exercisable for shares of cammon stock.

Immediately following the share exchange transastiove transferred all of our pre-share exchangeating assets and liabilities to
our wholly-owned subsidiary, Saguaro Holdings, lacDelaware corporation, and transferred all @udao Holdings, Inc.’s outstanding
capital stock to Lynn Briggs, our then-majorityckbolder and our former president, chief execudifficer, chief financial officer, secretary-
treasurer and sole director, in exchange for tineatation of 1,875,000 shares of our common staskadjusted for the one-for-four reverse
stock split of our common stock that occurred ordédeber 21, 2012) held by Ms. Briggs.

After the share exchange transactions and thettivesof our pre-share exchange operating assetdiabilities, we succeeded to the
business of InspireMD Ltd. as our sole line of bess, and all of our then-current officers andadoes resigned and were replaced by
designees of InspireMD Ltd.

Overview

We are a medical device company focusing on theldpment and commercialization of our proprietagnsplatform technology,
MGuard™ . MGuard provides embolic protection in stentingqadures by placing a micronet mesh sleeve ovema Gee photograph below
of an MGuard stent). Our initial products are méaklefor use mainly in patients with acute cororgyydromes, notably acute myocardial
infarction (heart attack) and saphenous vein g@fbnary interventions (bypass surgery). Accordmthe TYPHOON STEMI trial (New
England Journal of Medicine, 2006) and the SOS gvi@ (Journal of the American College of Cardiofpg§009), of patients with acute
myocardial infarction and saphenous vein graft osarg interventions, 7.5% to 44% experience majoeesk cardiac events, including cardiac
death, heart attack and restenting of the artetyeW\performing stenting procedures in patients adthite coronary symptoms, interventional
cardiologists face a difficult dilemma in choosimgth the aim of ensuring adequate protection fdistal embolization (the dislodgement of
particles from the artery wall that results in ladot), between bare-metal stents, which haveh rdte of restenosis (formation of new
blockages), and drug-eluting (drug-coated) stemitich have a high rate of late thrombosis (fornratid clots months or years after
implantation), require administration of anti-platedrugs for at least one year post proceduremanre costly than bare-metal stents and have
additional side effects. We believe that MGuard 8mple and seamless solution for these patiEntsthe twelve months ended June 30, 2
our total revenue was approximately $4.9 milliod aar net loss was approximately $29.3 million. #ar twelve months ended June 30, 2(
our total revenue was approximately $5.3 milliod aar net loss was approximately $17.6 million.
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MGuard Sleeve — Microscopic View

We intend to study our MGuard technology for usa liroad range of coronary related situations iitlwvbhomplex lesions occur and
intend to seek to make it an industry standardré@atment of acute coronary syndromes. We beliesegatients will benefit from a cost-
effective alternative which we believe will prowetiave a superior clinical efficacy and safety jedhan other stent technologies. We believe
that with our MGuard technology, we are well pasigd to emerge as a key player in the global stemket.

We also intend to apply our technology to develdgitional products used for other vascular procesiuspecifically carotid (the
arteries that supply blood to the brain) and peniph(other arteries) procedures.

In October 2007, our first generation product, M@uard Coronary, received CE Mark approval for timeent of coronary arterial
disease in the European Union. CE Mark is a mamgatinformance mark on many products marketederBihropean Economic Area and
certifies that a product has met European Uniorseorer safety, health or environmental requireméfissbegan shipping our product to
customers in Europe in January 2008 and have sixganded our global distribution network to Soustéesia, India, Latin America and
Israel.

Our initial MGuard Coronary product incorporatestainless steel stent. We replaced this staintess$ glatform with a more
advanced cobalt-chromium based platform, whicheferrto as the MGuard Prime version of the MGuasdo@ary product. We believe the
new platform will prove to be superior because ttetiaromium stents are generally known in the indut provide better deliverability and
possibly even a reduction in major adverse careh@nts. In particular, according to Jabara, gt'AlThird Generation Ultra-thin Strut Cobalt
Chromium Stent: Histopathological Evaluation in ¢loe Coronary Arteries,” Eurolntervention, NovemB809), due to its greater density,
cobalt-chromium enables the construction of stdrashave both thinner struts and similar radiedregth as stainless steel, with its thicker
struts. In turn, Jabara, et al. found that the ceduhickness of the struts provides more flexip#ind lower crossing profiles, thereby reducing
the inflammatory response and neointimal thickenpagentially lowering restenosis and target vessehscularization rates.

The MGuard Prime version of the MGuard Coronarydpit received CE Mark approval in the European bimoOctober 2010 for
improving luminal diameter and providing emboliofaction. We believe we can use and leverage thieal trial results of our original
stainless steel based MGuard Coronary to help rhatkenew cobalthromium based MGuard Prime version of the MGuastb@ary produc
In addition, MGuard Carotid received CE Mark ap@ian the European Union in March 2013.




However, we face a number of challenges to thdanéurgrowth of our MGuard Coronary and other plankiésuard products. For
example, we face competition from numerous pharotaza and biotechnology companies in the therapsuarea, as well as competition fr
academic institutions, government agencies anarelsenstitutions. Most of our current and potdnt@mpetitors have, and will continue to
have, substantially greater financial, technologiesearch and development, regulatory and clinmanufacturing, marketing and sales,
distribution and personnel resources than we dadtfition, none of our products is currently appgaby the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration. Clinical trials necessary to sugpmpremarket approval application to the U.S. Food andgDkdministration for our MGuar
products will be expensive and will require theatinment of a large number of patients, and suitglaliéents may be difficult to identify and
recruit, which may cause a delay in the developraadtcommercialization of our product candidatestiermore, our rights to our intellect
property with respect to our products could belelgled or our products could be challenged, in \aéthird party intellectual property rights.
Based on the prolific litigation that has occuriedhe stent industry and the fact that we may @osempetitive threat to some large and well-
capitalized companies that own or control pategitsting to stents and their use, manufacture ahdedg, we believe that it is possible that ¢
or more third parties will assert a patent infrimgat claim against the manufacture, use or sade&iloMGuard products based on one or more
of these patents. Additionally, there is a strorefgrence to use drug-eluting stents in some cmst®ver the last decade, there has been an
increasing tendency to use drug-eluting stent®neyianeous coronary intervention (PCI), commonigvin as angioplasty (a therapeutic
procedure to treat narrowed coronary arteries@htart found in patients with heart disease), witlsage rate of drug-eluting stents in PCI
approaching 70-80% in some countries, even thowgg-dluting stents do not address thrombus managiemacute myocardial infarction.
Also, the use of other bare-metal stents is prefeover the use of MGuard products in certain arstances, such as when placing the stent a
the entrance to large side branches, known agdihrge side branches.”

Unless otherwise indicated, in this Annual Repafierences to MGuard Coronary are to both ourahdtiainless steel based MGuard
Coronary and our more current cobalt-chromium b&s€diard Prime version of the MGuard Coronary, gdiaable.

Our principal executive offices are located at 8@§Iston Street, Suite 16041, Boston, MA 02199. @ilegphone number is (857)
453-6553. We make available free of charge thraughwebsite at www.inspire-md.com our annual report Form 10-K, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendsn@rthese reports. You may also obtain any nesewe file with, or furnish to, the
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission on its ileeBswww.sec.gov.

Business Segment and Geographic Areas

For financial information about our one operatimgl aeportable segment and geographic areas, cefBatt [I—Item 7.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@dition and Results of Operations” and “Part |l-adficial Statements and
Supplementary Data—Note 12. Entity Wide Disclostires

Our Industry

According to Fact Sheet No. 310/updated June 201HedNorld Health Organization, approximately mBlion people worldwide
died of coronary heart disease in 2008. Physicaaspatients may select from among a variety aftitnents to address coronary artery dise
including pharmaceutical therapy, balloon angioglastenting with bare metal or drug-eluting steatsd coronary artery bypass graft
procedures, with the selection often depending uperstage of the disease. A stent is an expantsda&old-like” device, usually constructt
of a stainless steel material, that is insertedl &mt artery to expand the inside passage and iragriood flow.

According to the 2012 MEDTECH OUTLOOK produced andary 2012 by BMO Capital Markets, revenues froenglobal coronar
stent market are predicted to slightly declineh@ligh in volume of stents the market is predictecontinue to grow. The growth in volume is
due to the appeal for less invasive percutaneousaoy intervention procedures and advances imt@olyy coupled with the increase in the
elderly population, obesity rates and advancesdchriology.

Coronary artery disease is one of the leading canfsdeath worldwide. The treatment of coronargrgrtlisease includes alternative
treatment methodologies, that is, coronary artgpabs grafting or angioplasty (percutaneous coyoiméervention) with or without stenting.
According to the 2012 MEDTECH OUTLOOK produced bg BMO Capital Markets in January 2012, percutas@muonary intervention
procedures involving stents are increasingly beised to treat coronary artery diseases with a 7d8étpation rate in 2010.




Our Products

The MGuard stent is an embolic protection devicgedaon a protective sleeve, which is constructeéaban ultra-thin polymer mesh
and wrapped around the stent. The protective slises@mprised of a micron level fiber-knitted meshgineered in an optimal geometric
configuration and designed for utmost flexibilithile retaining strength characteristics of the fibaterial (see illustration below). The sleeve
expands seamlessly when the stent is deployedoutitiffecting the structural integrity of the steantd can be securely mounted on any tyg
stent.

MGuard Deployed in Artery

The protective sleeve is designed to provide séeéirécal benefits:

« the mesh diffuses the pressure and the impactpbdgment exerted by the stent on the arterial wadl reduces the injury to the
vessel;

» the protective sleeve reduces plaqgue dislodgenmehblocks debris from entering the bloodstreamrdpend post procedure (called
embolic showers)

« in future products, when drug coated, the meshkpee&ed to deliver better coverage and uniform dlisgribution on the arterial wall
and therefore potentially reduce the dosage o&thige ingredient when compared to approved -eluting stents on the market; a

« the protective sleeve maintains the standardscohaentional stent and therefore should requitle lib no additional training by
physicians

MGuard — Coronary Applications

Our MGuard Coronary with a bio-stable mesh andptamned MGuard Coronary with a drug-eluting meghamed at the treatment
of coronary arterial disease.

MGuard Coronary with a bio-stable meshQur first MGuard product, the MGuard Coronary vatbio-stable mesh, is comprised of
our mesh sleeve wrapped around a stainless stexehital stent. The current MGuard Prime versioawfMGuard Coronary with a bistable
mesh is comprised of our mesh sleeve wrapped ar@wothalt-chromium bare-metal stent. In compartsom conventional bameetal stent, w
believe the MGuard Coronary with a bio-stable mgsivides protection from embolic showers. Resuitsur completed clinical trials on the
MGuard Coronary stent, including the MAGICAL, PISINE and MGuard international registry (iMOS) cliali¢rials described below (see
“Business — Comparison of Clinical Trial Resultdxate with Results Achieved Using Bare Metal or @&luting Stents in the STEMI
population”below), indicate positive outcomes and safety meashe results of these completed clinical tfiatshe MGuard Coronary ste
suggest higher levels of reperfusion, lower rafe¥0eday and lyear major adverse cardiac events, and high le@felemplete ST resolution,
compared to the levels and rates of other baretmpthdrug-eluting stents. MGuard Coronary demastr high levels of complete ST
resolution (occurrence in 61% of patients in the MBAL study and 90% of patients in the PISCIONEdgtior the MGuard Coronary stent)
and lower rates of 30 day and 1 year major adwsasgiac events (2.4% and 5.9%, respectively, feMiGuard Coronary stent), as compared
to the levels and rates of other bare-metal and-dhuting stents, as reported by Vlaar et. al. §¢@ardeath and reinfarction after 1 year in the
Thrombus Aspiration during Percutaneous coronasriention in Acute myocardial infarction Study (PAS): a 1-year follow-up study,
Lancet 2008; 371: 1915-20). As reported in theystudVlaar et. al., complete ST resolution occuired4.2% of patients with a bare-metal
stent and 56.6% of patients with a bare-metal simteded by an aspiration procedure, and the B@mth 1 year major adverse cardiac event
rates were 9.4% and 20.3%, respectively, for ptgtiaith a bare-metal stent and 6.8% and 16.6%gert@ly, for patients with a bare-metal
stent preceded by an aspiration procedure. Furttresmesults from a recent HORIZONS-AMI trial derstrated that 1-year major adverse
cardiac event rates were 10.5% for patients witly dluting stents. Complete ST resolution is thdence of a quick and adequate
disappearance of the pathologic ST elevation irpdtent’s electrocardiogram, which is the clearkaaof STEMI. The faster and more
complete the resolution is, the better recoverthefmyocardium and the better prognosis for theepatViaar et. al. reported that a higher
complete ST resolution correlates with lower mamstand/or reinfarction rates among affected pasi€nardiac mortality was 1.4% for patients
with complete ST resolution compared to 15.3% fatignts with no ST resolution).




Our MGuard Coronary stent was also evaluated itaceongoing clinical trials, including our MASTHRal, with respect to which &
day results were reported on October 24, 2012 andrih results were reported on May 23, 2013 (Besihess — Clinical Trials —-©ngoing
Clinical Trials for MGuard Coronary Bare Metal StéHus Bio-Stable Mesh” and “Business — Clinicaials — MASTER Randomized Trial
for MGuard Coronary Compared to Bare Metal or DElgting Stents”). As described below, unlike thalsr described above, the MASTER
trial failed to show a statistically significantgced rate of 30 day or 6-month major adverse aarelvents with the MGuard Coronary
compared to a conventional bare metal stent.

MGuard Coronary with a drug eluting bio-absorbablaesh.Based upon the clinical profile of MGuard Coronamg anticipate that
the MGuard Coronary with a drug-eluting bio-absbitbanesh will offer both the comparable levelsagarfusion and complete ST resolution
as the MGuard Coronary with a bio-stable meshgasribed above, and a comparative restenosiswhiet) is the rate at which patients
experience formation of new blockages in theirréggte when compared to existing drefyiting stents. This product is currently plannaat, no
yet under development. The -absorbability of MGuard Coronary with a drug efgtibio-absorbable mesh is intended to improve upen
bio-absorbability of other drugluting stents, in light of the large surface avéthe mesh and the small diameter of the fiber.itend to stud
whether the protective sleeve on the MGuard Cogowidth a drug-eluting bio-absorbable mesh can improniform distribution of the applied
drug to the vessel wall for improved drug therapnagement compared to other drug-eluting stentsreme drug is distributed on the struts
only. If this intended result is achieved with respto the improved and uniform distribution of tygplied drug to the vessel wall, the total
dosage of the medication potentially could be redushile increasing its efficacy. MGuard Coronaiistva drug-eluting bio-absorbable mesh
is expected to promote smooth and stable endotieelisgrowth and subsequent attachment to the tuafehe vessel wall, which is essential
for rapid healing and recovery. In addition, weideat bio-absorbable drug-eluting mesh may enalgdeitie of more effective drug therapies
that presently cannot be effectively coated on taltEmsed stent due to their poor diffusion cajtésl Because the drug-eluting bio-
absorbable mesh will be bio-absorbable, we antieigizat the mesh will completely dissolve afterrfmonths, which we expect will result in
fewer of the chronic long term side effects that associated with the ongoing presence of the drug.

MGuard — Carotid Applications

We intend to market our mesh sleeve coupled wiblfaexpandable stent (a stent that expands withalldon dilation pressure or
need of an inflation balloon) for use in carotichhgations. Although we obtained CE Mark approwal éur MGuard carotid stent in March
2013, we have temporarily delayed its developmaitit additional funding is secured. We believe that MGuard design will provide
substantial advantages over existing therapie®atihg carotid artery stenosis (blockage or naimgwf the carotid arteries), like conventional
carotid stenting and endarterectomy (surgery toorenblockage), given the superior embolic protectbaracteristics witnessed in coronary
arterial disease applications in high risk patj@opulations. We intend that the embolic protectiglhresult from the mesh sleeve, as it traps
emboli at their source. In addition, we believe t&uard Carotid will provide post-procedure pratec against embolic dislodgement, which
can occur immediately after a carotid stenting pdace and is often a source of post-procedurakasran the brain. Schofer, et al. (“Late
cerebral embolization after emboli-protected caratitery stenting assessed by sequential diffusieighted magnetic resonance imaging,”
Journal of American College of Cardiology Cardiogakr Interventions, Volume 1, 2008) have also shown that the majafitthe incidents
of embolic showers associated with carotid stendiogur immediately post-procedure.




MGuard — Peripheral Applications

We intend to market our mesh sleeve coupled wiblfaexpandable stent (a stent that expands withalldon dilation pressure or
need of an inflation balloon) for use in periphexpplications. This product is currently under depment, although we have temporarily
delayed its development until additional fundingésured. Peripheral Artery Disease, also knowpesapheral vascular disease, is usually
characterized by the accumulation of plaque inrigden the legs, need for amputation of affectédts or even death, when untreated.
Peripheral Artery Disease is treated either bynty\tb clear the artery of the blockage, or by imfifeg a stent in the affected area to push the
blockage out of the way of normal blood flow.

As in carotid procedures, peripheral procedureshagacterized by the necessity of controlling elistshowers both during and post-
procedure. Controlling embolic showers is so imgatrin these indications that physicians oftenamesred stents, at the risk of blocking
branching vessels, to ensure that emboli doesatiahfo the bloodstream. We believe that our MGudesign will provide substantial
advantages over existing therapies in treatingoperial artery stenosis (blockage or narrowing efgaripheral arteries).

Product Development and Critical Milestones

Below is a list of the products described above @ndprojected critical milestones with respectaeh. As used below, “CQ” stands
for calendar quarter (e.g., “CQ1-2013” means Jantia2013 through March 31, 2013). While we curseatticipate seeking approval from
the U.S. Food and Drug Administration for all ofrquioducts in the future, we have only outlineceatimated timetable to seek U.S. Food ant
Drug Administration approval for our MGuard Coropavith bio-stable mesh product in our current baseplan. The use of the term “to be
determined” in the table below with regard to dartailestones indicates that the achievements i soilestones is unable to be accurately
predicted as such milestones are too far in thedut

Start European FDA

Product Indication Development CE Mark Union Sales Approval U.S. Sales
MGuard Coronary Plus Bio-Stable Bypass/ 2005 Oct. 2007 CQ1-2008 CQ2-2016 2016
Mesh Coronary
MGuard Peripheral Plus Bio-Stabli  Peripheral CQ1-2011 To be To be To be To be
Mesh Arteries determinec determinec determinec determinec
MGuard Carotid Plus Bio-Stable Carotid CQ1-2011 March 2013 To be To be To be
Mesh Arteries determinec determinec determinec
MGuard Coronary Plus Bio- Bypass/ To be determine To be To be To be To be
Absorbable Dru-Eluting Mesh Coronary determinec determinec determinec determinec

With respect to MGuard Carotid with bio-stable maskl MGuard Peripheral bio-stable mesh, we havermhéned that the expected
commencement of sales in the European Union cdreatcurately predicted since we have delayeddielopment of these products until
additional funding for their development is secured

We anticipate that our MGuard Coronary with bidstgamesh will be classified as a Class Il medimtice by the U.S. Food and
Drug Administration.

Pre-Clinical Studies

We performed laboratory and animal testing priosubmitting an application for CE Mark approval éarr MGuard Coronary with
bio-stable mesh. We also performed all CE Mark-iegumechanical testing of the stent. We condupteeclinical animal trials at the CBSET
lab in July 2006 and August 2007. In these animiallt on average, the performance of the MGuandary with bio-stable mesh was
comparable with the performance of control bareafrstents. Analysis also indicated that in thesmabhtrials, the mesh produced levels of
inflammation comparable with those levels produlcgdtandard bare-metal stents. No human trials e@nducted as part of these pre-clinical
trials.




The table below describes our completed and plapredlinical trials. The use of the term “To baatenined”in the table below wit
regard to milestone dates in our pre-clinical stadndicates that we have not yet decided whenhedsile such milestones.

Stent Approval
Product Platform Requirement Start of Study End of Study
MGuard Coronary Bare-Metal Stent Plus Bio-Stak CE Mark (European CQ4-2006 CQ3-2007
Mesh Union + Rest of World
Drug-Eluting Mesh CE Mark (Europea To be determine To be determine
(Bare-Metal Stent Plu: Union + Rest of World
Drug-Eluting Mesh) FDA (U.S)) To be determine To be determine
Cobalt-Chromium Stent Plus Bi FDA (U.S)) CQ2-2011 CQ2-2012
Stable Mest
MGuard Peripheral/Carol Self Expanding System Plus Me CE Mark (European Union + CQ4-2012 CQ2-2013
Rest of World)

With respect to the preclinical studies for MGu@uatonary with a drug eluting bio-absorbable melsa ttials have been indefinitely
suspended due to our determination to focus owr simd resources on other trials at this time.

Clinical Trials

The table below describes our completed and planleidal trials. The use of the term “To be detered” in the table below with
regard to milestone dates in our clinical trialdigates that we have not yet decided when to sébedich milestones. All milestone dates set
forth in the table below are our best estimatesdapon the current status of each clinical trial.




Study Status

Stent Clinical Follow-up No. of Start End End of
Product Platform Trial Sites Requirement Objective Patients Enrollment  Enroliment Study
MGuard Bare-Metal Stent Plus B Study to evaluate safety a
Coronary ~ Stable Mes} Germany- two sites 12 months performance of MGuard syste 41 CQ4-2006 CQ4-2007 CQz-2008
Brazil - one site 12 months 30 CQ4-2007 CQ1-2008 CQz-2009
Poland- four sites 3 years 60 CQz-2008 CQz-2008 CQz-2012
International MGuard Observatior
Study- worldwide- 19 sites 12 months 550 CQ1-2009 CQ1-2013 CQ1-2014
Israeli MGuard Observation
Study- Israel- 9 sites 6 months 87 CQ4-2009 CQ1-2013 CQz-2013
Master randomized control tri- 9
countries, 50 centers in South
America, Europe and Isra 13 months 433 CQz-2011 CQz-2012 CQz-2013
To be To be
Brazil Observational Stuc- 25 sites 12 months Up to 500 CQsz-2010 determinec  determinec
Pivotal study to evaluate safety &
FDA Study- 70 sites, U.S. and out performance of MGuard system for
u.s. 13 months  FDA approval 1,114 CQs-2013 CQ4-2014 CQ1-2016
Drug-Eluting Stent (Bar- Pilot study to evaluate safety a
Metal Stent + Drug Eluting performance of MGuard system for To be To be To be To be
Mesh) South America and Europ- 10 sites 12 months FDA and CE Mark approvi determinec  determinec  determinec  determinec
To be To be To be To be
U.S.- 50 sites 12 months determinec  determinec  determinec  determinec
Rest of World as an Observatiol 12 months t¢ Evaluation of safety and efficacy f  To be To be To be To be
Study 3 years specific indication: determinec  determinec  determinec  determinec
MGuard Pilot study to evaluate safety a
Peripheral Self-Expanding System performance of MGuard system for To be To be To be To be
Mesh South America and Eurof- four sites 12 months CE Mark approva determinec  determinec  determinec  determinec
MGuard Evaluation of safety and efficacy f
Carotid Selt-Expanding specific indications To be To be To be To be
System + Mesl| Rest of World as a registry stu 9 months pos- marketing determinec  determinec  determinec  determinec
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Each of the patient numbers and study dates détifothe tables above are management’s best dstih#éhe timing and scope of
each referenced trial. Actual dates and patientomrexmay vary depending on a number of factorydieg, without limitation, feedback fro
reviewing regulatory authorities, unanticipatedagslby us, regulatory authorities or third partptcactors, actual funding for the trials at the
time of trial initiation and initial trial results.

The MGuard Coronary clinical trials for the drugHithg stent have been delayed from our previoushoanced target due to a delay
in our receipt of anticipated funding.

With respect to the MGuard Peripheral clinicalltfaa the self-expanding system plus mesh, the dt@te has been delayed from our
previously announced start date due to a delayiinexeipt of anticipated funding.

With respect to the MGuard Carotid clinical triat the self-expanding system plus mesh, the numgatients has been decreased
due to feedback from the clinical trial leaderd thamaller patient population would be sufficiéartthis clinical trial.

Completed Clinical Trials for MGuard Coronary Bare- Metal Stent Plus Bio-Stable Mesh

As shown in the table above, we have completecttblirical trials with respect to our MGuard Corpnwith bio-stable mesh. Our
first study, conducted at two centers in Germangluided 41 patients with either saphenous veirt gabnary interventions or native coronary
lesions treatable by a stenting procedure (blockageere no bypass procedure was performed). Theaw3Doronary rate of device success,
meaning the stent was successfully deployed inafyeet lesion, was 100% and the rate of procedwedess, meaning there were no major
adverse cardiac events prior to hospital dischargs,95.1%. At six months, only one patient (2.4%aoticipants) had major Q-wave
myocardial infarction (QWMI) and 19.5% of particiga had target vessel revascularization (an inegsiecedure required due to a stenosis il
the same vessel treated in the study). This dajacsts MGuard Coronary’s safety in the treatmentesh grafts and native coronary legions.

Our 2007 study in Brazil included 30 patients whergvcandidates for a percutaneous coronary intdoretangioplasty) due to nati
coronary lesion(s) and/or narrowing of a nativeooary artery or a bypass graft. In all patients,gtent was successfully deployed with perfec
blood flow parameters (the blood flow parametex lmeasurement of how fast the blood flows in ther&@s and the micro circulation systen
the heart). Except for a single case of a majoeesbycardiac event (3% of participants) that wasQwMI, there were no major cardiac
events at the time of the follow-up 30 days afier deployment of the stents.

The MAGICAL study, which was conducted in Polamdilided 60 patients with acute ST-segment elevatigocardial infarction
(the most severe form of a heart attack, refemeast*STEMI”). The purpose of the study was to eas the clinical performance of MGuard
Coronary with bio-stable mesh when used in STEMiepés where percutaneous coronary interventidhesprimary line of therapy. Perfect
blood flow in the artery was achieved in 90% ofiguatis, perfect blood flow into the heart muscle weBieved in 73% of patients and complete
(>70%) restoration of electrocardiogram normalityswachieved in 61.4% of patients. The total majoesse cardiac events rate during the six
month period following the deployment of the stemts 1.7% and after a three-year period was 8.8%.

Ongoing Clinical Trials for MGuard Coronary Bare-Me tal Stent Plus Bio-Stable Mesh

Our ongoing observation study in Europe was an opgistry launched in the first calendar quarte2@®9. This registry enrolled 550
patients in 19 sites, primarily in Austria, CzechpRblic and Hungary, and was aimed at evaluatiagpgrformance of MGuard Coronary with
bio-stable mesh in a “real world” population. Basgn the number of patients enrolled, we deciderldse enrollment on January 10, 2013
and concentrate on clinical follow-up for this sgud@he primary endpoint that this registry will &vate is the occurrence of major adverse
cardiac events at 30 days and six months followliegjoyment of the stent. The clinical follow-up Mdbntinue for a period of up to one year
per patient.

Our ongoing observational study in Israel was agnaggistry launched in the fourth calendar quart&009. This registry enrolled
87 patients. Based upon the number of patientdledrave decided to close enrollment on Februar30d,3 and concentrate on clinical follow-
up for this study. The primary endpoint that thagistry will evaluate is the occurrence of majovexde cardiac events at 30 days following
deployment of the stent. The clinical follow-up Mak conducted six months following deploymenthaf stent.

11




In the third calendar quarter of 2010, we launch@&tazilian registry to run in 25 Brazilian sitesdaenroll 500 patients. The primary
endpoint that this registry will evaluate is thewaence of major adverse cardiac events at sixmsdollowing the deployment of the stent,
and the clinical follow-up will continue for a ped of up to one year per patient. As of SeptembeR013, 24 patients of the prospective 500
have been enrolled.

U.S. Food and Drug Administration Trial

Presently, none of our products may be sold or etatkin the U.S. In connection with our effortseek approval of our MGuard
Coronary with bio-stable mesh by the U.S. Food @ngy Administration, we filed an investigationaMitee exemption application with the
U.S. Food and Drug Administration during the sumofe2012 in order to conduct a pivotal trial. OnrAd9, 2013, we received an approval
with conditions from the U.S. Food and Drug Admirason for our investigational device exemptiompkgation, which allowed us to initiate
enrollment in the trial. This trial is expecteda® a multi-center, randomized study, consistingmfo 1,114 patients suffering from STEMI,
throughout 35 sites in the U.S. and an additiobadies in Europe. The trial will have two co-primm&ndpoints: superiority in complete ST
resolution and non-inferiority in death and targessel myocardial infarction. In addition, a 35@igrat sub-study will be conducted to assess
the effect of the MGuard Coronary on infarct segmeasured by magnetic resonance imaging, andidétioaal 200 patient sub-study will be
conducted to assess the late lumen loss, measut8d@onths. We expect that the clinical follow-dipsthe subjects in the study will be at 30
days, six months and 12 months. The budget forsthidy is estimated to be up to $13.0 million amelénroliment phase for the study is
expected to last 18 months. We began enrollmetfieitrial on July 29, 2013.

MASTER Randomized Trial for MGuard Coronary Compare d to Bare Metal or Drug-Eluting Stents

In the second calendar quarter of 2011, we begaMtBuard for Acute ST Elevation Reperfusion TrINSTER Trial), a
prospective, randomized study in Europe, South Acaeand Israel to compare the MGuard Coronary sté&htcommercially-approved bare
metal and drug-eluting stents in achieving suparigocardial reperfusion (the restoration of blolmiv) in primary angioplasty for the
treatment of acute STEMI, the most severe formeairhattack. The MASTER Trial enrolled 433 subjeb8$6 of whom were treated with an
MGuard Coronary stent and 50% of whom were treafifla commercially-approved bare metal or drugietustent. The detailed acute and
30 days results from the trial, which were presgtatiethe Transcatheter Cardiovascular Therape{fiic$) conference on October 24, 2012,
were as follows:

« The primary endpoint of post-procedure completes8d@ment resolution (restoration of blood flow te tieart muscle after a heart
attack) was significantly improved in patients ramized to the MGuard Coronary stent compared toncernially-approved bare
metal or dru-eluting stents (57.8% vs. 44.79

« The MGuard Coronary stent resulted in superiorsrafehrombolysis in myocardial infarction (TIMI)fw, which evidences normal
coronary blood flow that fills the distal corondrgd completely, as compared to commercially-apptdage metal or drug-eluting
stents (91.7% vs. 82.9%), with comparable ratamyaicardial blush grade 2 or 3 (83.9% vs. 84.7%)@oadected TIMI frame count
(cTFC) (17.0 vs. 18.1), markers of optimal bloaulflto the heart

« Angiographic success rates (attainment of <50% fesidual stenosis of the target lesion and firiM| 3 flow) were higher in the
MGuard Coronary group compared to commerc-approved bare metal or di-eluting stents (91.7% vs. 82.49

« Mortality (0% vs. 1.9%) and major adverse cardiaengs (1.8% vs. 2.3%) at 30 days post procedure wet statistically significantly
different between patients randomized to the MGWatbnary stent as opposed to commercially-apprivaee metal or drug-eluting
stents. All other major adverse cardiac event carapts, as well as stent thrombosis, were compabattecen the MGuard Coronary
and commerciall-approved bare metal or d-eluting stents

The six month results from the trial, which weregented at EuroPCR, the official annual meetinp@fEuropean Association for
Percutaneous Cardiovascular Interventions, on M&yYQ13, were as follows:
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Mortality (0.5% vs. 2.8%) and major adverse cardeents (5.2% vs. 3.4%) at 6 months post procedare not statistically
significantly different between patients randomitedhe MGuard Coronary stent as opposed to comaligrapproved bare metal or
drug-eluting stents. All other major adverse cardigent components, as well as stent thrombosi® e@mparable between the
MGuard Coronary and commercie-approved bare metal or di-eluting stents

In sum, the MASTER Trial demonstrated that amorigepgs with acute STEMI undergoing emergency P€harmioplasty, MGuard

Coronary resulted in superior rates of epicardimbnary flow (blood flow within the vessels thahralong the outer surface of the heart) and
complete ST-segment resolution compared to comaibr@pproved bare metal or drigduting stents. In addition, MGuard Coronary show
slightly lower mortality rate and a slightly higherajor adverse cardiac event rate as comparedtioeocially-approved bare metal or drug-
eluting stents six months following the procedure.

A detailed table with the results from the MASTERAaTis set forth below.

MGuard Coronary Bare Metal Stents/Drug Eluting Stent:  p-Value

Number of Patient 217 21€ —
TIMI 0-1 1.€ 5.€ 0.01
TIMI 3 91.7 82.¢ 0.00¢
Myocardial blush grade-1 16.1 14.¢ 0.71
Myocardial blush grade 74.2 72.1 0.62
ST segment resolution > 57.¢ 447 0.00¢
30 day major adverse cardiac ev 1.8 2.3 0.7t
6 month major adverse cardiac ev 5.2 3.4 0.34

Comparison of Clinical Trial Results to Date with Results Achieved Using Bare Metal or Drug-Eluting Stnts in the STEMI
population

We conducted a meta-analysis of data from fouiadirtrials in which MGuard was used:

the MAGICAL study, a single arm study in which 66uge ST-segment elevation myocardial infarctior (thost severe form of a
heart attack, referred to as STEMI) patients watfslthan 12 hours symptom onset were enrolle@&pasted in “Mesh Covered Stent
in ST-segment Elevation Myocardial Infarction”Burolntervention 2010 and presented by D. Dudek, “Extended Folipvef the
MAGICAL Trial”, EuroPCR 2012

the PISCIONE study, a single arm study in which S0&EMI patients were enrolled, as reported in “Nbglhtre Experience with
MGuard Net Protective Stent in ST-elevation Myogarthfarction: Safety, Feasibility, and Impact btyocardial Reperfusion” in
Catheter Cardiovasc Intery2009 and presented by F. Piscione, “Multicenttpefience MGuard with MGuard net Protective Stant i
ST-elevation Myocardial Infarction: Long-term Resll Transcatheter Cardiovascular Therapeutics (TCAnference 2010 and F.
Piscione*MGuard in Acute MI: Thre-Year Follow-up”, TCT Conference 201:

the iIMOS study, a Registry on MGuard Coronary nsthé “real-world” population, from a study whossgtalwas not published; and
the Jain study, which looks at a small group oSFEMI patients, as reported in “Prevention of Thbaus Embolization during
Primary Percutaneous Intervention Using a NovellMegvered Stent” in Catheter Cardiovasc Interv,280d presented by R.

Weermckody, “A Mesh Covered Stent Effectively Regkithe Risk of Digital Embolisation During Prima®grcutaneous Intervention
for ST Elevation Myocardial Infarctic” EuroPCR 201C
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Our meta-analysis included data from the followtrigls:

The CADILLAC (Controlled Abciximab and Device Int@gation to Lower Late Angioplasty Complications)idy, which found that
primary stent implantation is a preferred stratéathe treatment of acute myocardial infarctios r@ported in “A Prospective,
Multicenter, International Randomized Trial CompagriFour Reperfusion Strategies in Acute Myocarltifdrction: Principal Report
of the Controlled Abciximab and Device Investigatio Lower Late Angioplasty Complications (CADILLACTial” in Journal of
American College of Cardiolog¢, 2001, “Comparison of Angioplasty with Stentingthwor without Abciximab, in Acute Myocardial
Infarction” in New England Journal of Medicine002, “Frequency, Correlates, and Clinical Imgiens of Myocardial Perfusion
After Primary Angioplasty and Stenting, With andtiéiut Glycoprotein lIb/llla Inhibition, in Acute Mycardial Infarction” inJournal
of the American College of Cardiolog2004 and “Combined Prognostic Utility of ST-segmi@ecovery and Myocardial Blush After
Primary Percutaneous Coronary Intervention in Addyecardial Infarctio” in European Heart Journg, 2005;

The EXPORT trial which was a randomized open-latedly whose primary endpoint was to evaluate fioyrovement in AMI
patients using either conventional stenting orrasipin followed by stenting, as reported in “Sysédim Primary Aspiration in Acute
Myocardial Percutaneous Intervention: A MulticerlR@ndomised Controlled Trial of the Export AspioatiCatheter” in
Eurolnterventior, 2008;

The EXPIRA trial which was a single-center studyedl to explore pre-treatment with manual thrombegtas compared to
conventional stenting, as reported in “Thrombusisdipn During Primary Percutaneous Coronary Inéation Improves Myocardial
Reperfusion and Reduces Infarct Size: The EXPIRAr¢mbectomy with Export Catheter in Infarct-relatetiery During Primary
Percutaneous Coronary Intervention) ProspectivadBaized Trig” in Journal of American College of Cardiolo, 2009;

The REMEDIA trial, whose objective was to assessshifety and efficacy of the EXPORT catheter foortibus aspiration in STEMI
patients, as reported in “Manual Thrombus-Aspiratimproves Myocardial Reperfusion: The Randomizedl#ation of the Effect of
Mechanical Reduction of Distal Embolization by Timigus-Aspiration in Primary and Rescue AngioplaRENEDIA) Trial” in
Journal of American College of Cardiolo, 2005;

The Horizons-AMI (Harmonizing Outcomes with RevdacizatiON and Stents in Acute MI), which is thedast randomized trial
which compared DES to BMS in Ml patients, as regoih “Paclitaxel-Eluting Stents Versus Bare-M&tdnts in Acute Myocardial
Infarction” in New England Journal of Medicine2009, “Bivalirudin in Patients Undergoing Primakpgioplasty for Acute
Myocardial Infarction (HORIZONS-AMI): 1-Year Resslof a Randomised Controlled Trial” iancet, 2009, and “Heparin Plus a
Glycoprotein lib/llla Inhibitor Versus BivalirudiMonotherapy and Paclitaxel-eluting Stents VersueBaetal Stents in Acute
Myocardial Infarction (HORIZONS-AMI): Final 3-yed&esults from a Multicentre, Randomised Controlle@lTin Lancet, 2011;
and

The TAPAS Trial which showed that thrombus aspirathefore stenting benefits Ml patients, as repbirte'Thrombus Aspiration
During Primary Percutaneous Coronary Interventiorilew England Journal of Medicin€009 and Cardiac Death and Reinfarcti
After 1 Year in the Thrombus Aspiration During Rgemeous Coronary Intervention in Acute Myocarthérction Study (TAPAS):
A 1-year Follov-up Stud” in Lancet, 2008.
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The nonrandomized, pooled data analysis of MGuard Coronatgomes in STEMI population show comparable raféerombolysi
in myocardial infarction (TIMI) 3 flow with no sidficant difference of the historical control as coaned to MGuard Coronary (87.8% and
91.7%, respectively), while the rates of myocartiakh grade score 3 (37.3% for the historical mrand 81.6% for MGuard Coronary) and
ST segment resolution>70% (53.6% for the historcatrol and 79.1% for MGuard Coronary) are siguaifitly better with the MGuard
Coronary. MGuard Coronary also appears consistenfberior at the 30 days major adverse cardiact¢8e496 for the historical control and
2.4% for MGuard Coronary) and 1 year major adveesdiac event (12.8% for the historical control &@P6 for MGuard Coronary)
endpoints. The data appears in the following tables

NAME OF STUDY

MAGICAL PISCIONE iIMOS Jain Average
Number of Patient 60 10C 203 51 414 (Total
Thrombolysis in myocardial infarctior-1,% 0 0 1.2 0 0.€
Thrombolysis in myocardial infarction 3, 90 85 93.t 10C 91.7
Myocardial blush grade-1,% 3.3 0 — — 1.2
Myocardial blush grade 3, 73 90 8C — 81.¢
ST segment resolution>70%, 61 90 — — 79.1
ST segment resolution>50%, 88 — 85.4 96 87.¢
30 day major adverse cardiac even 0 2.2 3.2 — 2.4
6 month major adverse cardiac event 1.7 4.t 6.C — 4.¢
1 year major adverse cardiac event — 5.€ 6.C 6.C 5.¢
1 year target vessel revascularizai — 2.3 2.3 6.C 2.8
Acute Binary Resteonosis 6M, — — 19.¢* — 19.C

THREE YEAR FOLLOW UP STUDIES
NAME OF STUDY

MAGICAL PISCIONE iIMOS Jain Average
Number of Patient 57 out of 6! 89 — — —
Cardiac death at 3 7% 2.2% — — —
Non Cardiac death at 3 1.8% 6.8% — — —
Re-MlI at 3Y 0% 7.% — — —
TLR at 3Y 1.8% Not Reporte — — —
TVR at 3Y Include TLF 3.5% 4.5% — — —
Stroke 1.8% Not Reporte — — —
Stent thrombosis Definite / Probal 0% 2.2% — — —
MACE (Cardiac death, F-MI, TLR) 8.8% 10.1% — — —
MACCE (All death, target vessel MI, TVR, Stro 10.52% Not Reporte — — —

15




Horizons-  Horizons- Historical Level of

Trial CADILLAC AMI AMI TAPAS TAPAS EXPORT EXPORT EXPIRA EXPIRA REMEDIA REMEDIA comparisor MGuard  Significance
Stent + Thrombus Thrombus  Thrombus
Group Abciximab BMS DES aspiration  control control TA control  aspiration  aspiration control Average Average
Number of Patient 512¢ 414
524 74¢ 2257 585 53€ 12¢ 12C 87 88 50 49 (total) (total)

Thrombolysis in myocardial

infarction (-1,% — — — — — 3.¢ 2.4 1.1 4] — — 21 0.€
Thrombolysis in myocardial

infarction 3,% 96.¢ 89.€ 87.€ 86 82t 76.¢ 82 — — — — 87.¢ 91.7
Myocardial blush grade-1,% 48.7 — — 17.1 26.2 31.€ 27.€ 40.2 11.4 32 55.1 35.2 1.2 *
Myocardial blush grade 3, 17.¢ — — 457 32.2 254 35.¢ — — — — 37.2 81.¢ b
ST segment resolution>70%, 62.1 — — 56.¢ 44.2 — — 39.1 63.¢ 58 36.7 53.¢ 79.1
ST segment resolution>50%, — — — — — 71.¢ 85 — — — — 78.2 87.€
30 day major adverse cardiac ever 4.4 — — 6.€ 94 — — — — 10 10.2 8.4 2.4 b
6 month major adverse cardiac

events,% 10.2 — — — — — — — — 10.2 4.¢
1 year major adverse cardiac

events,% — 11.¢ 10.E 16.€ 20.2 — — — — — — 12.€ 5.¢ *
Acute Binary Resteonosis 6 month 20.¢ — — — — — — — — — — 20.¢ 19.C
1 year target vessel revasculariza — 8.7 5.8 12.¢ 11.2 — — — — — — 8.C —
Acute Binary Resteonosis 1 year — 21 8.2 — — — — — — — — 11.5 —

Future Clinical Trials for MGuard Coronary

We expect that post-marketing trials will be corntédco further evaluate the safety and efficacthefMGuard Coronary with bio-
stable mesh in specific indications. These tridlslve designed to facilitate market acceptance exmwhnd the use of the product. We also plar
to conduct a large clinical study for U.S. Food &ndg Administration approval and intend to conduttire trials to the extent necessary to
meet registration requirements in key countriesather countries outside of the U.S., we beliewa tie generally will be able to rely upon CE
Mark approval of the product, as well as the ressoftthe U.S. Food and Drug Administration trialdASTER Trial in order to obtain local
approvals.

Growth Strategy
Our primary business objective is to utilize oungmietary technology to become the industry stashdiar treatment of acute coronary

syndromes and to provide a superior solution tactiremon acute problems caused by current stentoapgdures, such as restenosis, embolic
showers and late thrombosis. We are pursuing tlewimg business strategies in order to achieve thiective.
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Successfully commercialize MGuard Coronary with -stable mesh. We have begun commercialization of MGuard Corgnéth a
bio-stable mesh in Europe, Russia, Asia and Latin Azadghirough our distributor network and we are aggjvely pursuing addition
registrations and contracts in other countries sisc6anada, South Korea and certain smaller cesritriLatin America. By the time
we begin marketing this product in the U.S., weestpio have introduced the MGuard Coronary techmpoto clinics and
interventional cardiologists around the world, amdhave fostered brand name recognition and wigespadoption of MGuard
Coronary. We plan to accomplish this by participgtin national and international conferences, cetidg and sponsoring clinical
trials, publishing articles in scientific journatsylding local training sessions and conductingtetmic media campaign

Successfully develop the next generation of MGuatdnts. While we market our MGuard Coronary with bio-stafilesh, we intend
to develop the MGuard Coronary with a drug-elutimgsh. We are also working on our MGuard stentsdootid, for which we
received CE Mark approval in March 2013. In additizve released our cobalt-chromium version of M@W@oronary, MGuard
Prime, in 2010, which we anticipate will replace thriginal stainless steel based version of MG@otbnary over the next few yea

Continue to leverage MGuard technology to develau#ional applications for interventional cardioldgts and vascular surgeon

In addition to the applications described abovepelgeve that we will eventually be able to utilizer proprietary technology to
address imminent market needs for new product iations to significantly improve patients’ care. Waeve applied for intellectual
property rights using our mesh technology in theaarof brain aneurism, treating bifurcated bloagbets and a new concept of distal
protective devices. We believe these areas hage owth potential given, in our view, that presssiutions are far from
satisfactory, and there is a significant demand#dter patient care. We believe that our patemd,patent applications once allowed,
can be put into practice and that they will drive growth at a later stag

Work with world-renowned physicians to build awareness and brandagnition of MGuard portfolio of products We intend to
work closely with leading cardiologists to evaluatel ensure the efficacy and safety of our prod¥etsintend that some of these
prominent physicians will serve on our Scientifidvsory Board, which is our advisory committee thdvises our board of directors,
and run clinical trials with the MGuard Coronargrst We believe these individuals, once convindeti@ MGuard Coronary stent’s
appeal, will be invaluable assets in facilitatihg tvidespread adoption of the stent. In additiompkan to look to these cardiologists
generate and publish scientific data on the usmioproducts, and to present their findings atouiconferences they attel

Continue to protect and expand our portfolio of maits. Our patents and their protection are critical to fuccess. We have filed
nine separate patent applications for our MGuaslinielogy in the U.S. (including one that is stillthe Patent Cooperation Treaty
international phase) and corresponding patent egiins in Canada, China, Europe, Israel, Indid,3outh Africa. We believe these
patents and patent applications collectively caleof our existing products, and may be usefuldiatecting our future technology
developments. We intend to continue patenting remhirtology as it is developed, and to actively paioy infringement covered by
any of our patents. To date, we have secured patetection in China for four patents and in eatthe U.S. and South Africa for o
patent. Se“Business— Intellectual Propert— Patent¢”

As noted above, we previously filed patent appiicet for our MGuard technology in China, as parvof intended growth strategy.

However, upon further consideration of the cost @sturces required to achieve (and risks and esstciated with enforcing) patent
protection in China, we elected to prioritize ourguit of growth opportunities in other countrieglaas such, have ceased our growth efforts
China for the current time period. We intend tovedeate our strategy towards commercializationwfldGuard technology in China in the
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Competition

The stent industry is highly competitive. The baretal stent and the drug-eluting stent markethént.S. and Europe are dominated
by Abbott Laboratories, Boston Scientific Corpavatand Medtronic, Inc. Due to ongoing consolidafiothe industry, there are high barriers
to entry for small manufacturers in both the Euaspand the U.S. markets. However, we believe tteaEuropean market is somewhat more
fragmented, and small competitors appear ableitorgarket share with greater ease.

In the future, we believe that physicians will lamknext-generation stent technology to competh extisting therapies. These new
technologies will likely include bio-absorbablerstg stents that are customizable for differenbleengths, stents that focus on treating
bifurcated lesions, and stents with superior polyara drug coatings. Some of the companies devedapew stents are The Sorin Group,
Xtent, Inc., Cinvention AG, OrbusNeich, BiotroniES: Co. KG, Svelte Medical Systems, Inc., Reva bnud Stentys SA, among others. To
address current issues with drelgting stents, The Sorin Group and Cinvention ABehdeveloped stents that do not require a polywating
for drug delivery, thereby expanding the typesroigd that can be used on their respective stentaisDleich has addressed the problem
differently, developing a stent coated with anlamtly designed to eliminate the need for any drugdlaKtent, Inc. has been concentrating on &
stent that can be customized to fit different silesibns, so as to eliminate the need for multidmts in a single procedure. Biotronik SE &
KG is currently developing bio-absorbable stenhtexdogies, and Abbott Laboratories is currentlyeleping a bio-absorbable drug-eluting
stent. These are just a few of the many companigkimg to improve stenting procedures in the futasehe portfolio of available stent
technologies rapidly increases. As the market meswards next-generation stenting technologiesjmatly invasive procedures should
become more effective, driving the growth of therke&in the future. We plan to continue our reskaned development efforts in orderto b
the forefront of the acute myocardial infarctiotusions.

According to the 2011 MEDTECH OUTLOOK produced bg BMO Capital Markets on January 3, 2011, the dwaide stent market
is dominated by four major players, with a combitatdl market share of approximately 96%. Withia bare metal stent market and drug-
eluting stent market, the top four companies hggaimately 92% and 98% of the market share, iEspdy. These four companies are
Abbott Laboratories, Boston Scientific Corporatidohnson & Johnson and Medtronic, Inc. To datesales are not significant enough to
register in market share. As such, one of the ehg#ts we face to the further growth of MGuard ésabmpetition from numerous
pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies inhtbeapeutics area, as well as competition from anadmstitutions, government agencies
and research institutions. Most of our current poténtial competitors, including but not limitedttmse listed above, have, and will continu
have, substantially greater financial, technoldgiesearch and development, regulatory and clinmanufacturing, marketing and sales,
distribution and personnel resources than we do.

In addition to the challenges from our competitors,face challenges related specifically to oudpats. None of our products is
currently approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Adstiation. Clinical trials necessary to supporte-market approval application to the U.S.
Food and Drug Administration for our MGuard produefll be expensive and will require the enrollmeha large number of patients, and
suitable patients may be difficult to identify aretruit, which may cause a delay in the developraadtcommercialization of our product
candidates. Furthermore, our rights to our intéllacproperty with respect to our products coulatballenged. Based on the prolific litigation
that has occurred in the stent industry and thetfext we may pose a competitive threat to songeland well-capitalized companies that own
or control patents relating to stents and their osnufacture and delivery, we believe that itdsgible that one or more third parties will as
a patent infringement claim against the manufactuse or sale of our MGuard products based on on®ee of these patents, and/or will
allege misappropriation of their proprietary coefidial information or other intellectual property.

We note that an additional challenge facing oudpots comes from drug-eluting stents. Over thedastde, there has been an
increasing tendency to use drug-eluting stent<dh Rith a usage rate of drug-eluting stents in B@droaching 70-80% in some countries,
even though drug-eluting stents do not addressrthus management in acute myocardial infarctionedent HORIZONS-AMI trial that
compared drug-eluting stents to bare-metal sten&EMI patients failed to show any benefit of delgting stents as compared to bare-meta
stents with regard to safety (death, re-infarctgimke, or stent thrombosis), but showed the ¥-tgrget vessel revascularization (TVR) rate
for drug-eluting stent patients was only 5.8%, @spared to 8.7% for patients with bare-metal stéttsvever, based on data from over 350
patients across three clinical trials, the TVR fateMGuard Coronary was 2.8%. (This data is cosgatiof: (i) a TVR rate of 2.3% for a 100-
patient study, as reported in “Multicentre Expecewith MGuard Net Protective Stent in ST-elevafidyocardial Infarction: Safety,
Feasibility, and Impact on Myocardial ReperfusiamCatheter Cardiovasc Intery2009; (ii) a TVR rate of 2.3% for a sub-group263
STEMI patients from the International MGuard Obsgional Study; and (iii) a TVR rate of 6.0% formgp of 51 heart attack patients, as
reported in “Prevention of Thrombus Embolizatiomidg Primary Percutaneous Intervention Using a N&esh Covered Stent” i@atheter
Cardiovasc Intery 2009).
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Another challenge facing the MGuard products i$ pacing the stent at the entrance to large sidadhes, known as jailing large
side branches, is not recommended with the MGuardi@ary stent, because there is a risk of thronsbdsiling requires the need to cross the
stent with guidewire and to create an opening thithballoon to allow proper flow, which can be asteid with lower risk by using other bare-
metal stents.

Research and Development Expenses

During each of the twelve months ended June 303 208 2012, we spent approximately $4.2 million $ad million, respectively,
on research and development.

Sales and Marketing
Sales and Marketing

In October 2007, MGuard Coronary with a bio-stahksh received CE Mark approval in the European tyraad shortly thereafter
was commercially launched in Europe through logstrithutors. We are also in negotiations with aiddial distributors in Europe, Asia and
Latin America and are actively selling our MGuarar@nary with a bio-stable mesh in more than 20 ties

Until U.S. Food and Drug Administration approvaloefr MGuard Coronary with a bio-stable mesh, whighare targeting for 2016,
we plan to focus our marketing efforts primarily Barope, Asia and Latin America. Within Europe, ae focused on markets with
established healthcare reimbursement from locaéigouents such as Russia, Italy, Germany, FrancgtyiduPoland, Czech Republic,
Denmark, Holland, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland ard_thited Kingdom.

In addition to utilizing local and regional distutor networks, we are using international tradeaghand industry conferences to gain
market exposure and brand recognition. We planadkwith leading physicians to enhance our markgéfforts. As sales volume increases,
we may engage in direct sales in certain geographikets.

Product Positioning

The MGuard Coronary has initially penetrated thekatby entering market segments with indicatidra present high risks of
embolic dislodgement, notably acute myocardialrittfan and saphenous vein graft coronary interessti The market penetration of the
MGuard Coronary for each of the twelve months entigte 30, 2013 and June 30, 2012 was minimal,tefitth sales of approximately $4.9
million and approximately $5.3 million, respectiy@ach representing less than 1% of the total sdil#ee acute myocardial infarction solutic
market.

When performing stenting procedures in patientt wé@ute coronary symptoms, interventional cardistsgace a difficult dilemma i
choosing between bare-metal stents, which havglarhie of restenosis, and drelgting stents, which have a high rate of latetstemombosis
require administration of anti-platelet drugs foteast one year post procedure and are more dbstfybarenetal stents. We are marketing
platform technology, MGuard Coronary, as a supeiat cost effective solution to these currently ahneeds of interventional cardiologists.
We believe our MGuard Coronary technology is chiflic superior to bare-metal stents because it pes/embolic protection during and post-
procedure. We believe our MGuard Coronary technolsglinically superior to drug-eluting stentsedio its lower stent thrombosis rate and
protection from embolic showers during and postepdure.

In addition to the advantages of the MGuard Corptechnology that we believe to exist, the MGuaoiddary technology maintains

the deliverability, crossing profile, and dilatatipressure of a conventional stent, and interveatioardiologists do not have to undergo any
training before utilizing the product.
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Insurance Reimbursement

In most countries, a significant portion of a patie medical expenses is covered by third-partyopsyThird-party payors can include
both government funded insurance programs andtprimaurance programs. While each payor develogsraintains its own coverage and
reimbursement policies, the vast majority of payaase similarly established policies. All of the M&d products sold to date have been
designed and labeled in such a way as to faciliteeutilization of existing reimbursement codes] ae intend to continue to design and label
our products in a manner consistent with this goal.

While most countries have established reimbursermaes for stenting procedures, certain countrigg require additional clinical
data before recognizing coverage and reimbursefoettte MGuard products or in order to obtain ahleigreimbursement price. In these
situations, we intend to complete the requiredicdihstudies to obtain reimbursement approval imtdes where it makes economic sense to
do so.

In the U.S., if the MGuard Coronary with bio-stablesh is approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Adtnatien, it will be eligible for
reimbursement from the Centers for Medicare andibééd Services, which serve as a benchmark faeatbursement codes. While there is
no guarantee these codes will not change over tiradyelieve that the MGuard Coronary will be eligifor reimbursement through both
governmental healthcare agencies and most primateance agencies in the U.S. once it is approyeateébU.S. Food and Drug
Administration.

Intellectual Property
Patents

We have filed nine patent applications in the Wiig:luding one that is still in the Patent Cooprnmaflreaty international phase)
covering aspects of our MGuard technology. We Hiwe corresponding patent applications in Can&tana, Europe, Israel, India and South
Africa, for an aggregate total of 35 patents ambp®y applications. These patent applications aectdd to cover percutaneous therapy,
knitted stent jackets, stent and filter assembiresivo filter assembly, optimized stent jackettent apparatuses for treatment via body lumen
and methods of use, stent apparatuses for treatrizebbdy lumens and methods of manufacture angamskstent apparatuses for treatment ¢
body lumens, among others. In lay terms, thesenpafgplications generally cover three aspects opooducts: the mesh sleeve with and
without a drug, the product and the delivery medrarof the stent. On October 27, 2010, our patpplieation pertaining to “Stent Apparatus
for Treatment via Body Lumens and Method of Use&lth Africa patent application 2007/10751, waséssas South Africa Patent No.
2007/10751. On October 25, 2011, our patent agfitgertaining to “In Vivo Filter Assembly”, U.®atent Application 11/582,354, was
issued as U.S. Patent 8,043,323. On June 13, B0tpatent application pertaining to “Filter Assdimd,” China Patent Application No.
200780046659.9, was issued as China Patent No.(Z180046659.9. On September 26, 2012, our patetitappn pertaining to “Bifurcated
Stent Assemblies,” China Patent Application No. Z8D46676.2, was issued as China Patent No. ZLZRIBH76.2. On October 10, 2012,
our patent application pertaining to “Knitted Stdatkets,” China Patent Application No. 20078004669was issued as China Patent No.
Z1.200780046697.4. On January 2, 2013, our patepltcgtion pertaining to “Optimized Stent Jacketfii@a Patent Application No.
200780043259.2, was issued as China Patent No.0Z180043259.2. None of the other patent applicati@ssbeen granted to date. We
believe one or more pending patent applicationsnugsuance, will cover each of our existing pradué/e also believe that the patent
applications we have filed, in particular thoseearivg the use of a knitted micron-level mesh slemxer a stent for various indications, if
issued as patents with claims substantially inrthgsent form, would likely create a significaartier for another company seeking to use
similar technology. There is no assurance, howekat,our pending patent applications will issu@atents with such claims or that if issued,
the patents will withstand challenges to theirdi@i that may arise.
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To date, we are not aware of other companies tina patent rights to a micron fiber, releasablétédifiber sleeve over a stent.
However, larger, better funded competitors own mateclating to the use of drugs to treat restenasént architecture, catheters to deliver
stents, and stent manufacturing and coating presessd compositions, as well as general deliveigham@sm patents like rapid exchange that
might be alleged to cover one or more of our présluUstent manufacturers have historically engagesiginificant litigation, and we could be
subject to claims of infringement of intellectuabperty from one or more competitors. Although vedidve that any such claims based on
patents of which we are currently aware would bdéaumded, such litigation would divert attentiordanesources away from the development
and/or commercialization of MGuard stents and coefllt in an adverse court judgment that would eiakmpossible or impractical to
continue selling MGuard stents in one or more tienigs. Furthermore, we may be subject to claimisfoingement of patents of which we are
currently unaware. Other manufacturers or othetiggamay also challenge the intellectual propérat tve own, or may own in the future. We
may be forced into litigation to uphold the valdaf the claims in our patent portfolio, as wellas ownership rights to such intellectual
property, and litigation is often an uncertain aogtly process.

Trademarks

We use the InspireMD and MGuard trademarks in cotiore with our products. We have registered thesgeimarks in Europe. The
trademarks are renewable indefinitely, so long asentinue to use the mark in Europe and makephsoariate filings when required. Our
trademark application to register the name “MicrtiNvas been approved in the U.S.

Government Regulation

The manufacture and sale of our products are sutgi@egulation by numerous governmental authaitigincipally the European
Union CE Mark, the U.S. Food and Drug Administratand other corresponding foreign agencies.

Sales of medical devices outside the U.S. are sutgjdoreign regulatory requirements that vary elydfrom country to country. The
laws and regulations range from simple productstegfion requirements in some countries to complearance and production controls in
others. As a result, the processes and time pergofsred to obtain foreign marketing approval rbaylonger or shorter than those necesse
obtain U.S. Food and Drug Administration marketautzation. These differences may affect the efficy and timeliness of international
market introduction of our products. For countiiethe European Union, medical devices must displ&@E Mark before they may be impor
or sold. In order to obtain and maintain the CE liare must comply with the Medical Device Direct®®8/42/EEC and pass initial and annual
facilities audit inspections to ISO 13485 standdnylsin European Union inspection agency. We hateiredy 1ISO 13485 quality system
certification and the products we currently disitdinto the European Union display the requiredMGEK. In order to maintain certification,
we are required to pass annual facilities audjtéctions conducted by European Union inspectors.

As noted below, we currently have distribution agnents for our products with distributors in thédi@ing countries: Italy, Austria,
Slovenia, Greece, Spain, Hungary, Estonia, Ukraittdland, Russia, Latvia, Brazil, Mexico, Argentjr@olombia, India, Sri Lanka, South
Africa, Pakistan, Belarus, Croatia, Ireland, Lithiga Malta, Malaysia, Venezuela, Egypt, AustraBajgium, the Czech Republic, Finland,
Kazakhstan, Slovakia, Sweden, Denmark, Norway arakl. We are subject to governmental regulaticesich of these countries and we are
not permitted to sell all of our products in eaélthese countries. In addition, we have distributgreements for our products in Uzbekistan
and Armenia, although we have not yet obtainedleggry approval to sell our products in those cdest While each of the European Union
member countries accepts the CE Mark as its sqleinrement for marketing approval, some of thesentrées still require us to take additional
steps in order to gain reimbursement rights formuoducts. Furthermore, while we believe that eafdhe above-listed countries that is not a
member of the European Union accepts the CE Maits asimary requirement for marketing approvakheauch country requires additional
regulatory requirements for final marketing appiafahe MGuard Prime version of the MGuard Corgnamoduct. Additionally, in Canada,
we are required to pass annual facilities audjieéations performed by Canadian inspectors. Furthernwe are currently targeting additional
countries in Europe, Asia, and Latin America. Wedwe that each country that we are targeting atstepts the CE Mark as its primary
requirement for marketing approval. We intend thatresults of the MASTER Trial will satisfy anyditional governmental regulatory
requirements in each of the countries where wesatly distribute our products and in any counttiest we are currently targeting for
expansion. However, even if all governmental refgujarequirements are satisfied in each such cgunte anticipate that obtaining marketing
approval in each country could take as few as threeths or as many as twelve months, due to theeaf the approval process in each
individual country, including typical wait timesrfapplication processing and review, as discussepligater detail below.
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The MGuard Prime version of the MGuard Coronarydpist received CE Mark approval in the European WimoOctober 2010 and
marketing approval in those countries listed inttd#e below. We are currently seeking marketingraypal for the MGuard Prime version of
the MGuard Coronary product in Brazil, Mexico, Angjaa, South Korea, Taiwan, Australia and Canada.av¢ focused on seeking marketing
approval in these countries because we believeatibat countries represent the strongest oppagsifidr us to grow with respect to our sales.
We have determined that other countries with bettganized and capitalized healthcare systems mggrasent us the same opportunities for
growth due to the lack of use of stents in treatnoécardiac episodes and less advantageous hagdthr@imbursement policies, among other
reasons. While we understand that each of the dearnh which we are seeking marketing approvatfierMGuard Prime version of the
MGuard Coronary product accepts the CE Mark aggriteary requirement for marketing approval and doatsto our understanding require
any additional tests, each country does have salditi@nal regulatory requirements for marketing i@mwal, as we have been informed by our
distributors, who are responsible for obtaining ke#ing approval for our products. More specificaftyr example, for the approval process in
Mexico, where we already have approval for andssaféMGuard Coronary, we need to submit an apptinadbr regulatory approval for
MGuard Prime, which we anticipate will be grant@pmximately eighteen months later. For the apdrpr@cess in Argentina, we need to
submit an application for regulatory approval, vihige anticipate will be granted approximately tveehaonths later. For the approval process
in South Korea, we need to submit an applicatiomdgulatory approval and have in-house qualityitauthich we anticipate will be granted in
approximately two years. For the approval proces3dnada, we need to submit an application forlagégry approval, which we anticipate w
be granted approximately twelve months later. Rerapproval process in Australia, we need to suamépplication for regulatory approval
have in-house quality audit which we anticipatd té granted in approximately one year. For the@apg process in Taiwan, we need to
submit an application for regulatory approval, vihige anticipate will be granted in approximatehegmar. In Israel, where we received
marketing approval in September 2011, we will bgiect to annual renewal of our marketing approRalgulators in Israel may request
additional documentation or other materials andlte®f studies from medical device manufacturerpart of the renewal process. Generally,
however, the annual renewal of marketing appragiven automatically, barring a material changeiioumstances or results. In Russia, we
received market approval in February 2012. In Clwie received market approval for our previousritigtor in December 2010. We have
terminated our relationship with our previous dlgitor in Chile, however, and once we enter intelationship with a new distributor, we will
be required to submit a new application for regariaipproval in Chile, which we anticipate will geanted approximately twelve months after
our submission for approval.

For the approval process in Brazil for MGuard Primnbere we already have approval for and sales®tdtd Coronary, we must
comply with Brazilian Good Manufacturing Practioe,GMP, quality system requirements. ANVISA, Brazikegulatory agency, must conduct
an inspection of the manufacturing of the MGuaridherversion of the MGuard Coronary product to datee compliance with Brazil GMP
regulations. Upon successful completion of an additVISA will then issue the GMP certificate necagsto register a medical device in
Brazil. Based upon new legislation in Brazil, weeimd to apply for regulatory approval while we awhe results of the audit necessary to
receive our GMP certificate. We anticipate thatdperoval process in Brazil will take between twal ¢hree years.

Please refer to the table below setting forth thgravals and sales for original stainless steetthddGuard Coronary product and the
cobalt-chromium based MGuard Prime version of th@udrd Coronary product on a country-by-country fasi
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Approvals and Sales of the Original MGuard Coronaryand the MGuard Prime version of the MGuard Coronary on a Country-by-

Countries

Country Basis

Original
MGuard
Approval

Original MGuard
Sales

MGuard Prime
Approval

MGuard

Prime
Sales

Argentina
Armenia
Australia
Austria
Belarus
Belgium
Brazil
Chile
Colombia
Croatia
Cyprus
Czech Reyj
Denmark
Egypt.
Estonia
Finland
France
Germany
Greece

Holland (Netherlands

Hungary
India
Ireland
Israel

Italy
Kazakhstar
Latvia
Lithuania
Malaysia
Malta
Mexico
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Pakistar
Poland
Portugal
Romania
Russia
Singapore
Slovakia
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Sweder
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(1) We sold a limited quantity of our MGuard Pripi@ducts in Australia pursuant to a law that pesrpétients to purchase medical products
that are not included on the Australian RegisteFttdrapeutic Goods under certain limited circumsanon case by case bases.

(2) We terminated our relationship with our prewdalistributor in this country and we will be reaadrto obtain regulatory approval upon our
selection of a new distributor in such country.

(3) We believe that we have regulatory approvalttierMGuard Coronary product in this country, baggdn information from our distributor
in such country, who was responsible for obtairihrgregulatory approval for the MGuard Coronarydoiei. However, the certificate
evidencing regulatory approval is held by our disttor and we cannot guarantee that it is in foitté and effect.

(4) At time the sales were made, we satisfied égellatory requirements in Singapore. The regulatequirements in Singapore were
subsequently changed and we no longer meet theagements.

In the U.S., the medical devices that will be mawtiired and sold by us will be subject to laws l@galilations administered by the
U.S. Food and Drug Administration, including rediglas concerning the prerequisites to commerciaketing, the conduct of clinical
investigations, compliance with the Quality Systeegulation and labeling. We anticipate that our MfeluCoronary product with bio-stable
mesh product will be classified as a Class Ill mabdevice by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration

A manufacturer may seek market authorization foew medical device through the rigorous Premarksgiréval application process,
which first requires that the U.S. Food and Drugrdstration determine that the device is safe efifiekctive for the purposes intended.

We will also be required to register with the Uf®od and Drug Administration as a medical devicaufacturer. As such, our
manufacturing facilities will be subject to U.S.deband Drug Administration inspections for comptiamwith Quality System Regulation.
These regulations will require that we manufactureproducts and maintain our documents in a pitestimanner with respect to design,
manufacturing, testing and quality control actasti As a medical device manufacturer, we will farthe required to comply with U.S. Food
and Drug Administration requirements regardingrég@orting of adverse events associated with theotiear medical devices, as well as
product malfunctions that would likely cause or trifiute to death or serious injury if the malfuctiwere to recur. U.S. Food and Drug
Administration regulations also govern product latzeand prohibit a manufacturer from marketing edical device for unapproved
applications. If the U.S. Food and Drug Administatbelieves that a manufacturer is not in compigawith the law, it can institute
enforcement proceedings to detain or seize prodissise a recall, enjoin future violations and ass®vil and criminal penalties against the
manufacturer, its officers and employees.

Customers

Our customer base is varied. We began shippinggtuct to customers in Europe in January 2008hawe since expanded our
global distribution network to Southeast Asia, ldiatin America and Israel. For the twelve morghded June 30, 2013, 71% of our revenue
was generated in Europe, 12% of our revenue wasrgtad in Latin America, 6% of our revenue was gatiee in Asia and 6% of our revenue
was generated in Israel, with the remaining 5%usfrevenue generated in the rest of the world tk®twelve months ended June 30, 2012,
64% of our revenue was generated in Europe, 228tiofevenue was generated in Latin America and Bétiorevenue was generated in
Israel, with the remaining 6% of our revenue geteetin the rest of the world.
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Our major customers in the twelve months ended 30n2013 were Bosti Trading Ltd., a distributottie Russian Federation that
accounted for 17% of our revenues, Izasa Distrings Tecnicas SA, a distributor in Spain that actaifor 14% of our revenues, and CMS
Produtos Medicos Ltda., a distributor in Braziltthacounted for 10% of our revenues. Our agreemihtBosti Trading Ltd. grants Bosti
Trading Ltd. the right to be the exclusive disttidiuof MGuard products in the Russian Federatiba,Republic of Uzbekistan and the Repu
of Armenia until May 2014, subject to the achieveingf certain order minimums. Under our agreemsittt ®osti Trading Ltd., Bosti Trading
Ltd. is required to purchase 3,500 stents froonu&0il2, 6,000 stents in 2013 and 4,000 stentseifiit six months of 2014, respectively.
Although Bosti Trading Ltd. did not adhere to itsler minimum for 2012 and 2013, we did not termenabsti Trading Ltd.’s right to be the
exclusive distributor of MGuard products in the Biaa Federation, the Republic of Uzbekistan andRié&eublic of Armenia. Our agreement
with Izasa Distribuciones Tecnicas SA grants IZasé&ribuciones Tecnicas SA the right to be the esitle distributor of MGuard products in
Spain until May 2014, with no order minimums cuthgim place. Under our agreement with Izasa Distciones Tecnicas SA, lzasa
Distribuciones Tecnicas SA was required to purcHda8@0 stents from us in 2011. Izasa Distribuciohesnicas SA did not achieve its order
minimum for 2011; however, we did not terminatdeitour agreement with Izasa Distribuciones Teen®a or Izasa Distribuciones Tecnicas
SA’s right to be the exclusive distributor of MGdaroducts in Spain. In addition, pursuant to aeament to our agreement with Izasa
Distribuciones Tecnicas SA, Izasa Distribucionesrii@s SA, through its subsidiaries, was requioggurchase 500 MGuard Prime stents {
us in February 2011. Izasa Distribuciones Tecn®asnet its purchase requirement in February 20Hlraceived a bonus of 100 free stents.
Izasa Distribuciones Tecnicas SA also agreed tm@awith us in a study to be conducted in Spatitled MGuard Prime Implementation in
STEMI (acute myocardial infarction with ST elevatjoOur agreement with CMS Produtos Medicos Ltdanty CMS Produtos Medicos Ltda.
the right to be the exclusive distributor of MGuardducts in Brazil until April 2014, with no orderinimums currently in place. Unless
otherwise indicated below, all of the distributiagreements described under “Customers” are suiojecttomatic annual extensions unless
affirmatively terminated.

Our major customers in the six months ended Jun2@I® were Bosti Trading Ltd., a distributor i tRussian Federation that
accounted for 22% of our revenues, Euromed DewtsdnGmbH, our former distributor in Germany thatamted for 14% of our revenues,
and Kardia Srl, a distributor in Italy that accoemhfor 9% of our revenues. For the twelve montlgedrdune 30, 2012, our major customer wa
Bosti Trading Ltd., accounting for 15% of our reues. Our agreement with Bosti Trading Ltd. is désad above. Our agreement with
Euromed Deutschland GmbH was terminated on Jar8r2013, in connection with Euromed Deutschland@rfiling for insolvency
protection on September 24, 2012. Our agreemehtKatdia Srl grants Kardia Srl the right to be éxelusive distributor of MGuard products
in Italy until August 2013, with no order minimurosrrently in place.

Our major customers in the twelve months ended Déee 31, 2011 were Kirloskar Technologies (P) Laddjstributor in India that
accounted for 18% of our revenues, Tzamal Jacobistthpa distributor in Israel that accounted f@f4 of our revenues and Izasa
Distribuciones Tecnicas SA, a distributor in Spiiat accounted for 9% of our revenues. Our agreemiéim Izasa Distribuciones Tecnicas SA
is discussed above. Our agreement with Kirloskahmelogies (P) Ltd. grants Kirloskar TechnologiE} I(td. the right to be the exclusive
distributor of MGuard products in India until Ma@24, subject to achievement of certain order mimmauUnder our agreement with Kirlosl
Technologies (P) Ltd, Kirloskar Technologies (P ltas required to order 15,000 stents from us il2ihd 20,000 stents from us in 2012,
respectively. Kirloskar Technologies (P) Ltd. wisozeligible to receive free stents representing 6 20% of the total value of stents
purchased, depending upon the annual volume giuhehases of our stents. Although Kirloskar Tecbgigs (P) Ltd. did not achieve its order
minimum for 2011, we did not terminate either ogreement with Kirloskar Technologies (P) Ltd. orl&skar Technologies (P) Ltd.’s right to
be the exclusive distributor of MGuard producténdia. Our agreement with Tzamal Jacobsohn Ltchtgrdzamal Jacobsohn Ltd. the right to
be the exclusive distributor of MGuard productssirael until December 2013, subject to achievernénertain order minimums. Under our
agreement with Tzamal Jacobsohn Ltd., Tzamal Jatwbistd. must achieve at least 85% of the followamder minimums: 1,400 stents during
the twelve months ending March 31, 2012 and 1,66%s during the twelve months ending March 31,320éspectively. Tzamal Jacobsohn
Ltd. will be granted options to purchase 2,029 staf our common stock for each $100,000 in sgles @chievement of the order minimums.
Tzamal Jacobsohn Ltd. did not meet its order miminfor the twelve months ended March 31, 2012 arid2(hd, accordingly, no options
were granted to Tzamal Jacobsohn Ltd. under thiseagent, however, we did not terminate either gue@ment with Tzamal Jacobsohn Ltd.
or Tzamal Jacobsohn Ltd.’s right to be the exclaglistributor of MGuard products in Israel.
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Manufacturing and Suppliers

We manufacture our stainless steel MGuard steatigfir a combination of outsourcing and assemblyiabwn facility. Third parties
in Germany manufacture the base stent and catimetierials, and we add our proprietary mesh slestteet stent. Our current exclusive
product supplier is QualiMed Innovative Medizinpute GmbH. QualiMed Innovative Medizinprodukte Gmisth specialized German stent
manufacturer that electro polishes and crimps tinat ®nto a balloon catheter that creates the foagrir stainless steel MGuard stents.
QualiMed Innovative Medizinprodukte GmbH has agreethke responsibility for verifying and validagithe entire stent system by
performing the necessary bench test and biocomlitgtilesting. During the production process, QWad Innovative Medizinprodukte GmbH
is responsible for integrating the mesh coverentstith the delivery system, sterilization, packagand labeling. Our manufacturing
agreement with QualiMed Innovative MedizinprodutmbH expires in September 2017, unless earlieritextied by either party in the event
of breach of material terms of the agreement, digtion of the other party, our failure to receiequested products for more than 60 days, a
substantiated intellectual property claim is brauagrainst the other party or the development ageeeimetween the parties is terminated. The
manufacturing agreement provides for a rebate praghat rewards us for increases in sales of amdymts. Our proprietary mesh sleeve is
supplied by Biogeneral, Inc., a San Diego, Califamased specialty polymer manufacturer for medica engineering applications. Natec
Medical Ltd. supplies us with catheters that hefmate the base for our MGuard stents. Our agreewigniNatec Medical Ltd., which may be
terminated by either party upon six months’ notiza|s for non-binding minimum orders and discodntatheters upon reaching certain
purchasing thresholds.

Our MGuard Prime cobalt-chromium stent was designe8velte Medical Systems Inc. We have an agreemigm Svelte Medical
Systems Inc. that grants us a non-exclusive, wadewcense for production and use of the MGuaiithBrcobaltehromium stent for the life
the stent’s patent, subject to the earlier ternonadf the agreement upon the bankruptcy of eiglaty or the uncured default by either party
under any material provision of the agreement. ©@yalty payments to Svelte Medical Systems Inc.determined by the sales volume of
MGuard Prime stents. Until October 20, 2012, welgaioyalty of 7% for all product sales outsidehef U.S. and, for products sales within the
U.S., a rate of 7% for the first $10.0 million @flas and a rate of 10% for all sales exceedingdhdllion. We also shared with Svelte Medical
Systems Inc. in the cost of obtaining the CE Markraval, with its costs not to exceed $85,000, thiedJ.S. Food and Drug Administration
approval, with its costs not to exceed $200,00000tober 20, 2012, we amended our agreement withieSMedical Systems Inc., pursuant to
which Svelte Medical Systems Inc. reduced the tygyalte to 2.9% of all net sales both inside angide the U.S. in exchange for (i) us
waiving the $85,000 in regulatory fees for the CRrithat were owed to us by Svelte Medical Systeros (i) us making full payment of
royalties in the amount of $205,587 due to SvelezlMdal Systems, Inc. as of September 30, 2012(i&n$l1,763,000, payable in 215,000
shares of our common stock (as adjusted for thefamtur reverse stock split of our common stolettoccurred on December 21, 2012), tha
were valued at the closing price of our commonlstot October 19, 2012 of $8.20 per share (as afjusr the one-fofeur reverse stock spl
of our common stock that occurred on December @12P On August 22, 2013, we further amended otgeagent with Svelte Medical
Systems Inc., pursuant to which (i) we agreed to$eelte Medical Systems Inc. an advanced paynfebit @?,000, representing a royalty rate
of 2.0% of all net sales for the period from Jul}2013 to June 30, 2015, assuming net sales ofrfilliédn per quarter, (ii) we agreed to pay a
royalty rate of 2.5% on any net sales exceeding3glLfillion for the period from July 1, 2013 to &80, 2015 and (iii) the royalty rate was
increased to 2.9% of all net sales beginning JuB015. We have mutual indemnification obligatievith Svelte Medical Systems Inc. for any
damages suffered as a result of third party acti@sgd upon breaches of representations and wiagantthe failure to perform certain
covenants in the license agreement, and Svelteddie8istems Inc. will also indemnify us for any @ayes suffered as a result of third party
actions based upon intellectual property or desigims against the MGuard Prime cobalt-chromiumtste

Our MGuard Prime cobalt-chromium stent is being nfactured and supplied by MeKo Laserstrahl-Matbgalbeitung. Our
agreement with MeKo Laserstrakllaterialbearbeitung for the production of electadighed L605 bare metal stents for MGuard Prinarised
on a per-stent basis, subject to the quantityenftstordered. The complete assembly process foradvtiRrime, including knitting and securing
the sleeve to the stent and the crimping of thevelestent on to a balloon catheter, is done atspael manufacturing site. Once MGuard Prime
has been assembled, it is sent for sterilizatiocBenmany and then back to Israel for final packggin
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Each MGuard stent is manufactured from two mainmoments, the stent and the mesh polymer. The istemide out of stainless st
or cobalt chromium. Both of these materials arelilgavailable and we acquire them in the open retarkhe mesh is made from polyethylene
terephthalate (PET). This material is readily aazi in the market as well, because it is usednmy medical applications. In the event that
our supplier can no longer supply this materidibier form, we would need to qualify another supplwhich could take several months. In
addition, in order to retain the approval of the Ka&rk, we are required to perform periodic auditthe quality control systems of our key
suppliers in order to insure that their productehmir predetermined specifications.

Distributors

We currently have exclusive distribution agreeménmtour CE Mark-approved MGuard Coronary with btable mesh with medical
product distributors based in Italy, Austria, Slolee Greece, Spain, Hungary, Estonia, Ukraine,&hol] Russia, Latvia, Brazil, Mexico,
Argentina, Colombia, India, Sri Lanka, South Afri€akistan, Belarus, Croatia, Ireland, Lithuania|ts, Malaysia, Venezuela, Egypt,
Australia, Belgium, the Czech Republic, Finlandz#&khstan, Slovakia, Sweden, Denmark, Norway, UAbakj Armenia and Israel. We are
currently in discussions with multiple distributioompanies in Europe, Asia, and Latin America.

We are in the process of replacing certain thindypaistributors with direct sales channels in keyntries where end user average
selling prices and the lack of strong distributars limiting factors. While we believe that thiansition to direct selling will ultimately lead to
greater sales in these markets, the transition dreay certain distributors adversely impacted rexefor the twelve months ended June 30,
2013, as we had fewer parties selling our produistaddition, we are in the process of appointieg/ mlistributors in certain territories, and
believe that new incentives and broader respoitgihave strengthened arrangements with our @arin those territories.

Current and future agreements with distributonsuséite that, while we are responsible for trainioigviding marketing guidance,
marketing materials, and technical guidance, distdrs will be responsible for carrying out locagjistration, marketing activities and sales. In
addition, in most cases, all sales costs, includaigs representatives, incentive programs, ankatilag trials, will be borne by the distributor.
Under current agreements, distributors purchasessteom us at a fixed price. Our current agreemsairith distributors are generally for a term
of approximately three years and automatically wefar an additional three years unless modifiectitlyer party.

Employees

As of September 16, 2013, we had 65 full-time eiypés. Except for some of our employees in Europeemployees are not party
to any collective bargaining agreements. We daerptct the collective bargaining agreements to lwbior employees are party to have a
material effect on our business or results of ajara. We consider our relations with our employteelse good. We believe that our future
success will depend, in part, on our continuedtgtith attract, hire and retain qualified personnel

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

There are numerous and varied risks, known andawknthat may prevent us from achieving our goétsi should carefully consider
the risks described below and the other informaitiafuded in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, indilig the consolidated financial
statements and related notes. If any of the folgwisks, or any other risks not described belayally occur, it is likely that our business,
financial condition, and/or operating results cobddmaterially adversely affected. In such casetréding price and market value of our
common stock could decline and you may lose paallaf your investment in our common stock. Theksi and uncertainties described below
include forward-looking statements and our actaaults may differ from those discussed in thesedod-looking statements.

Risks Related to Our Business
We have a history of net losses and may experidotere losses.

To date, we have experienced net losses. A suladtpottion of the expenses associated with ourufaaaturing facilities are fixed in
nature (i.e., depreciation) and will reduce ourrafigg margin until such time, if ever, as we do&edo increase utilization of our capacity
through increased sales of our products. The diri@ls necessary to support our anticipated tiomill be expensive and lengthy. In
addition, our strategic plan will require a sigoént investment in clinical trials, product devetognt and sales and marketing programs, whic
may not result in the accelerated revenue grovahvte anticipate. Because we expect to continugriimg negative cash flows from
operations, there can be no assurance that wewetl generate sufficient revenues to become pbidita
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We expect to derive our revenue from sales of oubtvrd stent products and other products we may digwelf we fail to generate revenue
from this source, our results of operations and tkialue of our business would be materially and ackady affected

We expect our revenue to be generated from salesrdflGuard stent products and other products we deaelop. Future sales of
these products, if any, will be subject to the igtcef regulatory approvals and commercial and readncertainties that may be outside our
control. If we fail to generate such revenues,results of operations and the value of our busiaesissecurities would be materially and
adversely affected.

If we are unable to obtain and maintain intellectl@roperty protection covering our products, othersay be able to make, use or sell ¢
products, which would adversely affect our reveni

Our ability to protect our products from unauthedzor infringing use by third parties depends sarislly on our ability to obtain ai
maintain valid and enforceable patents. Similahg, ability to protect our trademark rights migktimportant to prevent third party
counterfeiters from selling poor quality goods gsour designated trademarks/trade names. Due tuiegdegal standards relating to the
patentability, validity and enforceability of patertovering medical devices and pharmaceuticalnitiwes and the scope of claims made unde
these patents, our ability to enforce patents ¢euain and involves complex legal and factual tjaes. Accordingly, rights under any of our
pending patent applications and patents may nafigieaus with commercially meaningful protection @ products or may not afford a
commercial advantage against our competitors ar toenpetitive products or processes. In additpatents may not be issued from any
pending or future patent applications owned byiaarised to us, and moreover, patents that mayshedsto us now or in the future may not be
valid or enforceable. Further, even if valid anfoeceable, our patents may not be sufficiently dramaprevent others from marketing products
like ours, despite our patent rights.

The validity of our patent claims depends, in pantwhether prior art references exist that desasitrender obvious our inventions
of the filing date of our patent applications. Waymot have identified all prior art, such as W8d foreign patents or published applicatior
published scientific literature, that could advérsdfect the patentability of our pending patepplcations. For example, some material
references may be in a foreign language and magenahcovered during examination of our patentiagfbns. Additionally, patent
applications in the U.S. are maintained in confaefor up to 18 months after their filing. In soseses, however, patent applications remain
confidential in the U.S. Patent and Trademark @ffar the entire time prior to issuance as a Uatemqt. Patent applications filed in countries
outside the U.S. are not typically published uatileast 18 months from their first filing daterrfdarly, publication of discoveries in the
scientific or patent literature often lags behiwtlal discoveries. Therefore, we cannot be cettaihwe were the first to invent, or the first to
file patent applications relating to, our stentigalogies. In the event that a third party has &led a U.S. patent application covering our
stents or a similar invention, we may have to pgodite in an adversarial proceeding, known as &mnference, declared by the U.S. Patent anc
Trademark Office to determine priority of inventionthe U.S. It is possible that we may be unswgfeéin the interference, resulting in a loss
of some portion or all of our position in the UT$e laws of some foreign jurisdictions do not pebiatellectual property rights to the same
degree as in the U.S., and many companies haveietered significant difficulties in protecting, enfing, and defending such rights in cer
foreign jurisdictions. If we encounter such diffites or are otherwise precluded from effectivelgtpcting our intellectual property rights in
any foreign jurisdictions, our business prospeotdda be substantially harmed.

We may initiate litigation to enforce our patemghis on any patents issued on pending patent afipls, which may prompt
adversaries in such litigation to challenge thédityl, scope, ownership, or enforceability of oatents. Third parties can sometimes bring
challenges against a patent holder to resolve tksaes, as well. If a court decides that any @atbnts are not valid, not enforceable, not
wholly owned by us, or are of a limited scope, waeymot have the right to stop others from usingiouentions. Also, even if our patent rights
are determined by a court to be valid and enforegtiftey may not be sufficiently broad to prevethtens from marketing products similar to
ours or designing around our patents, despite atemp rights, nor do they provide us with freedonoperate unimpeded by the patent and
other intellectual property rights of others thatyntover our products.
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We also rely on trade secret protection to pradectinterests in proprietary know-how and for pissss for which patents are difficult
to obtain or enforce. We may not be able to pradecttrade secrets adequately. In addition, we@rlypon-disclosure and confidentiality
agreements with employees, consultants and otligepéo protect, in part, trade secrets and gtheprietary technology. These agreements
may be breached and we may not have adequate esfediany breach. Moreover, others may indepehddatelop equivalent proprietary
information, and third parties may otherwise gainess to our trade secrets and proprietary knowlefigy disclosure of confidential data into
the public domain or to third parties could allommpetitors to learn our trade secrets and usenfbenmiation in competition against us.

We have limited manufacturing capabilities and mafaecturing personnel, and if our manufacturing fadiies are unable to provide an
adequate supply of products, our growth could bmited and our business could be harmed.

We currently manufacture our MGuard stent at oatlifees in Tel Aviv, Israel, and we have contratteith QualiMed Innovative
Medizinprodukte GmbH, a German manufacturer, tesassproduction. If there were a disruption ta edisting manufacturing facility, we
would have no other means of manufacturing our M@sgent until we were able to restore the manufagg capability at our facility or
develop alternative manufacturing facilities. If were unable to produce sufficient quantities af MGuard stent for use in our current and
planned clinical trials, or if our manufacturingopess yields substandard stents, our developmdntanmercialization efforts would be
delayed.

We currently have limited resources, facilities axgerience to commercially manufacture our prodacadidates. In order to produce
our MGuard stent in the quantities that we antigpaill be required to meet anticipated market dedyave will need to increase, or “scale up,
the production process by a significant factor datercurrent level of production. There are tecahihallenges to scaling-up manufacturing
capacity, and developing commercial-scale manufengdacilities will require the investment of suéstial funds and hiring and retaining
additional management and technical personnel valve the necessary manufacturing experience. Wenmiaguccessfully complete any
required scale-up in a timely manner or at alurifible to do so, we may not be able to meet paldoture demand. If we are unable to
manufacture a sufficient supply of our MGuard stemr revenues, business and financial prospectédize adversely affected and we may
suffer reputational harm, which could further adedy affect our revenues, business and financ@dpg@cts. In addition, if the scaled-up
production process is not efficient or produceatstéhat do not meet quality and other standamgsfuture gross margins may decline. Also,
our current and planned personnel, systems, proesdind controls may not be adequate to suppodrtigipated growth. If we are unable to
manage our growth effectively, our business coeldhérmed.

Additionally, any damage to or destruction of oet Aviv facilities or its equipment, prolonged pawmitage or contamination at our
facility would significantly impair our ability tproduce MGuard stents.

Finally, the production of our MGuard stent mustwrcin a highly controlled, clean environment tanimiize particles and other yield
and quality-limiting contaminants. In spite of sfgent quality controls, weaknesses in process alomtiminute impurities in materials may
cause a substantial percentage of defective preduet lot. If we are unable to maintain stringgmality controls, or if contamination problems
arise, our clinical development and commercial@atfforts could be delayed, which would harm ausibess and results of operations.

Clinical trials necessary to support a pre-markgi@oval application to the U.S. Food and Drug Adnisiration for our MGuard stent will
be lengthy and expensive and will require the enmadnt of a large number of patients, and suitablatfents may be difficult to identify and
recruit. Any such delay or failure of clinical triss could prevent us from commercializing our stegrbducts, which would materially and
adversely affect our results of operations and tredue of our business.

Clinical trials necessary to support a pre-markgraval application to the U.S. Food and Drug Adstmation for our MGuard stent
will be expensive and will require the enrolimehtdarge number of patients, and suitable patiaretg be difficult to identify and recruit,
which may cause a delay in the development and agiadization of our product candidates. In soneddr a greater number of patients and
longer follow up period may be required. Patiemb#iment in clinical trials and the ability to swessfully complete patient follow-up depends
on many factors, including the size of the patjgoyulation, the nature of the trial protocol, thexpmity of patients to clinical sites, the
eligibility criteria for the clinical trial and peent compliance. For example, patients may be disged from enrolling in our clinical trials if
the trial protocol requires them to undergo extemgiost-treatment procedures or follow-up to asessafety and efficacy of our products, or
they may be persuaded to participate in contemgo@sclinical trials of competitive products. Irda&gbn, patients participating in our clinical
trials may die before completion of the trial offeuadverse medical events unrelated to or relatamlir products. Delays in patient enrollment
or failure of patients to continue to participateaiclinical trial may cause an increase in costsdelays or result in the failure of the clinical
trial.
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In addition, the length of time required to comelelinical trials for pharmaceutical and medicalide products varies substantially
according to the degree of regulation and the tgpmplexity, novelty and intended use of a prodact can continue for several years and
millions of dollars. The commencement and comptetibclinical trials for our products under devetognt may be delayed by many factors,
including governmental or regulatory delays andhges in regulatory requirements, policy and gurdsdior our inability or the inability of al
potential licensee to manufacture or obtain froirdtparties materials sufficient for use in prewal studies and clinical trials.

Physicians may not widely adopt the MGuard steniess they determine, based on experience, -term clinical data and published peer
reviewed journal articles, that the use of the MGulsstent provides a safe and effective alternatisenther existing treatments for coronary
artery disease.

We believe that physicians will not widely adopt fMGuard stent unless they determine, based orrierpe, long-term clinical data
and published peer reviewed journal articles, thatuse of our MGuard stent provides a safe aret®@fe alternative to other existing
treatments for coronary artery disease, includimgiary artery bypass grafting balloon angioplalstye-metal stents and other drug-eluting
stents, provided by Boston Scientific Corporatigiedtronic Inc., Abbott Laboratories and others.

We cannot provide any assurance that the datactadiérom our current and planned clinical triaifi be sufficient to demonstrate
that the MGuard stents are an attractive alteraatvother procedures. If we fail to demonstrafetgand efficacy that is at least comparabl
other drug-eluting stents or bare-metal stentstihgé received regulatory approval and that aréadla on the market, our ability to
successfully market the MGuard stent will be siigaifitly limited. Even if the data collected froninital studies or clinical experience indicate
positive results, each physician’s actual expegamith our MGuard stent will vary. Clinical triat®nducted with the MGuard Coronary stent
have involved procedures performed by physicians are technically proficient and are high-volumenstusers. Consequently, both short-
term and long-term results reported in these dirtitals may be significantly more favorable thgpical results of practicing physicians,
which could negatively affect rates of adoption®wof products. We also believe that published peeiewed journal articles and
recommendations and support by influential physiigegarding our MGuard Coronary stent will be imgat for market acceptance and
adoption, and we cannot assure you that we wiltivecthese recommendations and support, or thaiostiye articles will be published.

In addition, currently, physicians consider dielgting stents to be the industry standard fortineat of coronary artery disease. WI
we believe that the MGuard Coronary stent is a aatkeffective alternative, it is not a drug-elgtstent, which may further hinder its support
and adoption by physicians.

Our products are based on a new technology, andhaee only limited experience in regulatory affairahich may affect our ability or the
time required to navigate complex regulatory regaiments and obtain necessary regulatory approvdlsuich approvals are received at all.
Regulatory delays or denials may increase our cpstaise us to lose revenue and materially and adedr affect our results of operatior
and the value of our business.

Because our products are new and long-term suceeasures have not been completely validated, regulagencies, including the
U.S. Food and Drug Administration, may take a digant amount of time in evaluating product appiayaplications. For example, there are
currently several methods of measuring restenosisage do not know which of these metrics, or coration of these metrics, will be
considered appropriate by the U.S. Food and DrugiAigtration for evaluating the clinical efficacy stents. Treatments may exhibit a
favorable measure using one of these metrics anmhfavorable measure using another metric. Any gham the accepted metrics may result
in reconfiguration of, and delays in, our clinit@éls. Additionally, we have only limited experianin filing and prosecuting the applications
necessary to gain regulatory approvals, and onicell, regulatory and quality assurance personmetarrently composed of only eight
employees. As a result, we may experience delagsrinection with obtaining regulatory approvalsdar products.
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In addition, the products we and any potentialigzes license, develop, manufacture and marksuaject to complex regulatory
requirements, particularly in the U.S., Europe Asd, which can be costly and time-consuming. Thare be no assurance that such approva
will be granted on a timely basis, if at all. Fuatimore, there can be no assurance of continuedl@omog with all regulatory requirements
necessary for the manufacture, marketing and $akegroducts we will offer in each market wheuels products are expected to be sold, or
that products we have commercialized will contitneomply with applicable regulatory requiremetits government regulatory agency were
to conclude that we were not in compliance withliapple laws or regulations, the agency could togtiproceedings to detain or seize our
products, issue a recall, impose operating reirist enjoin future violations and assess civil arichinal penalties against us, our officers or
employees and could recommend criminal prosecukiarthermore, regulators may proceed to ban, aresithe recall, repair, replacement or
refund of the cost of, any device manufacturedott by us. Furthermore, there can be no assuréiatell necessary regulatory approvals will
be obtained for the manufacture, marketing andirad@y market of any new product developed or &mgt potential licensee will develop
using our licensed technology.

Even if our products are approved by regulatory hatities, if we or our suppliers fail to comply witongoing regulatory requirements, or
we experience unanticipated problems with our pratis these products could be subject to restrictian withdrawal from the market.

Any product for which we obtain marketing approwathe U.S., along with the manufacturing procespest-approval clinical data
and promotional activities for such product, wil subject to continual review and periodic inspetdiby the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration and other regulatory bodies. In atar, we and our suppliers will be required tongdy with the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration’s Quality System Regulation for tmanufacture of our MGuard stent, which covers tle¢hods and documentation of the
design, testing, production, control, quality aasiee, labeling, packaging, storage and shippiremgfproduct for which we obtain marketing
approval in the U.S. The U.S. Food and Drug Adntiatfon enforces the Quality System Regulationulgfounannounced inspections. We
our third-party manufacturers and suppliers havteyabbeen inspected by the U.S. Food and Drug Athtnation and will have to successfully
complete such inspections before we receive Udsllagory approval for our products. Failure by u®oe of our suppliers to comply with
statutes and regulations administered by the Wb8dfnd Drug Administration and other regulatordibs, or failure to take adequate respt
to any observations, could result in, among othigrgts, any of the following enforcement actions:

« warning letters or untitled letters;

« fines and civil penalties;

« unanticipated expenditures;

« delays in approving, or refusal to approve, oudputs;

« withdrawal or suspension of approval by the U.Sd-and Drug Administration or other regulatory hesi
« product recall or seizure;

- orders for physician notification or device repa@iplacement or refund,;
- interruption of production;

- operating restrictions;

« injunctions; and

« criminal prosecution.

If any of these actions were to occur, it couldnhaur reputation and could cause our product saldgrofitability to suffer.
Furthermore, key component suppliers may not ctigrée or may not continue to be in compliance veifiplicable regulatory requirements.
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Even if regulatory approval of a product is grantethe U.S., the approval may be subject to litrotes on the indicated uses for
which the product may be marketed. If the U.S. Fad Drug Administration determines that our praovwl materials, training or other
activities constitute promotion of an unapproved, iiscould request that we cease or modify ounitng or promotional materials or subject us
to regulatory enforcement actions. It is also gaesihat other federal, state or foreign enforcena@ithorities might take action if they considet
our training or other promotional materials to d@énge promotion of an unapproved use, which cagklilt in significant fines or penalties
under other statutory authorities, such as lawhipiting false claims for reimbursement.

Moreover, any modification to a device that hagieed U.S. Food and Drug Administration approvat ttould significantly affect it
safety or effectiveness, or that would constituteagor change in its intended use, design or matwfe, requires a new approval from the (
Food and Drug Administration. If the U.S. Food @vdg Administration disagrees with any determinatiy us that new approval is not
required, we may be required to cease marketirig m@call the modified product until approval igaibed. In addition, we could also be
subject to significant regulatory fines or penaltie

Additionally, we may be required to conduct cogttyst-market testing and surveillance to monitorghfety or efficacy of our
products, and we will be required to report advensents and malfunctions related to our producseiLdiscovery of previously unknown
problems with our products, including unanticipadelyerse events or adverse events of unanticigatestity or frequency, manufacturing
problems, or failure to comply with regulatory rgg@ments, such as Quality System Regulation, msyltrén restrictions on such products or
manufacturing processes, withdrawal of the prodfiota the market, voluntary or mandatory recailse$, suspension of regulatory approvals
product seizures, injunctions or the impositiortiefl or criminal penalties.

Further, healthcare laws and regulations may chaiygéficantly in the future. Any new healthcargvtaor regulations may adversely
affect our business. A review of our business hyrtsoor regulatory authorities may result in a deteation that could adversely affect our
operations. In addition, the healthcare regulatmyironment may change in a way that restrictsoparations.

Failure to obtain regulatory approval in foreign jisdictions will prevent us from marketing our pragtts in such jurisdictions.

We intend to market our products in internationakkets. In order to market our products in otheeiff jurisdictions, we must obtz
separate regulatory approvals from those obtaiméide U.S. and Europe. The approval procedure varngong countries and can involve
additional testing, and the time required to obtgproval may differ from that required to obtaiE ®lark or U.S. Food and Drug
Administration approval. Foreign regulatory appiguacesses may include all of the risks associaf#tobtaining CE Mark or U.S. Food
and Drug Administration approval in addition to ethisks. We may not obtain foreign regulatory appis on a timely basis, if at all. CE M
does not ensure approval by regulatory authoritiegher countries. We may not be able to fileregulatory approvals and may not receive
necessary approvals to commercialize our produaatgitain markets.

We operate in an intensely competitive and rapidhanging business environment, and there is a salpsial risk our products could
become obsolete or uncompetitive.

The medical device market is highly competitive. ¥éenpete with many medical device companies irlit& and internationally in
connection with our current product and productdenrdevelopment. We face competition from numephemaceutical and biotechnology
companies in the therapeutics area, as well as efitiop from academic institutions, government ages and research institutions. When we
commercialize our products, we expect to face sgesompetition from Boston Scientific Corporati@uidant Corporation, Medtronic, Inc.,
Abbott Vascular Devices, Terumo Medical Corporatm others. Most of our current and potential cetitqrs, including but not limited to
those listed above, have, and will continue to haubstantially greater financial, technologicakearch and development, regulatory and
clinical, manufacturing, marketing and sales, disttion and personnel resources than we do. Thaerde no assurance that we will have
sufficient resources to successfully commerciadizeproducts, if and when they are approved fa.sehe worldwide market for stent prodt
is characterized by intensive development effants rpidly advancing technology. Our future suceeiisdepend largely upon our ability to
anticipate and keep pace with those developmeitsdwmances. Current or future competitors couldebbgvalternative technologies, products
or materials that are more effective, easier toansaore economical than what we or any potentiahisee develop. If our technologies or
products become obsolete or uncompetitive, outaélproduct sales and licensing revenue would dser€eThis would have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition andiltssof operations.
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We may become subject to claims by much larger better capitalized competitors seeking to invaliglaur intellectual property or our
rights thereto.

Based on the prolific litigation that has occuriedhe stent industry and the fact that we may @osempetitive threat to some large
and well-capitalized companies that own or conpadknts relating to stents and their use, manuketod delivery, we believe that it is
possible that one or more third parties will asagratent infringement claim against the manufagtuse or sale of our MGuard stent based or
one or more of these patents. It is also possdiialea lawsuit asserting patent infringement, misaypation of intellectual property, or related
claims may have already been filed against us aflwive are not aware. A number of stent-relatedniatare owned by very large and well-
capitalized companies that are active participantse stent market. As the number of competitorhe stent market grows, the possibility of
patent infringement by us, and/or a patent infringet or misappropriation claim against us, increase

These companies have maintained their positiohemtarket by, among other things, establishingl@tiial property rights relating
to their products and enforcing these rights agively against their competitors and new entramtis the market. All of the major companies
in the stent and related markets, including Bo§oientific Corporation and Medtronic, Inc., havebeepeatedly involved in patent litigation
relating to stents since at least 1997. The stathtrelated markets have experienced rapid techivalbghange and obsolescence in the past,
and our competitors have strong incentives to etagelay the introduction of new products and tetbgies. We may pose a competitive th
to many of the companies in the stent and relataedkets. Accordingly, many of these companies véltda strong incentive to take steps,
through patent litigation or otherwise, to prevastfrom commercializing our products.

If we fail to maintain or establish satisfactory agements with suppliers or if we experience an imtgtion of the supply of materials fron
suppliers, we may not be able to obtain materidlattare necessary to develop our produt

We depend on outside suppliers for certain raw rizd$e These raw materials or components may nedyd be available at our
standards or on acceptable terms, if at all, andag be unable to locate alternative suppliersrodypce necessary materials or components c
our own.

Some of the components of our products are cugr@ntivided by only one vendor, or a single-sourgepsier. We depend on
QualiMed Innovative Medizinprodukte GmbH, which méactures the body of the stent, MeKo Laserstrabtévialbearbeitung for the laser
cutting of the stent, Natec Medical Ltd. for thpgly of catheters and Biogeneral Inc. for the fib&e may have difficulty obtaining similar
components from other suppliers that are acceptalilee U.S. Food and Drug Administration or foreiggulatory authorities if it becomes
necessary.

If we have to switch to a replacement supplierwileface additional regulatory delays and the imgption of the manufacture and
delivery of our MGuard stent for an extended penbtime, which would delay completion of our ctal trials or commercialization of our
products. In addition, we will be required to ohtarior regulatory approval from the U.S. Food &rdg Administration or foreign regulatory
authorities to use different suppliers or composéhnat may not be as safe or as effective. Aswdtreésgulatory approval of our products may
not be received on a timely basis or at all.
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We may be exposed to product liability claims andurance may not be sufficient to cover these claim

We may be exposed to product liability claims basedhe use of any of our products, or productsriperating our licensed
technology, in clinical trials. We may also be es@d to product liability claims based on the séleny such products following the receipt of
regulatory approval. Product liability claims coldd asserted directly by consumers, health-candgers or others. We have obtained produc
liability insurance coverage; however such insueamay not provide full coverage for our future ial trials, products to be sold, and other
aspects of our business. We also have liabilityriawsce for an ongoing clinical trial in Europe and U.S. Food and Drug Administration
Trial. Insurance coverage is becoming increasieglyensive and we may not be able to maintain cuoc@rerages, or expand our insurance
coverage to include future clinical trials or tfaesof products incorporating our licensed techgglid marketing approval is obtained for such
products, at a reasonable cost or in sufficientuartsto protect against losses due to productikilorr at all. A successful product liability
claim or series of claims brought against us coetdilt in judgments, fines, damages and liabilitied could have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition and results aragions. We may incur significant expense invasiingy and defending these claims, even if
they do not result in liability. Moreover, evemid judgments, fines, damages or liabilities aredsgal on us, our reputation could suffer, whicl
could have a material adverse effect on our busjriagmncial condition and results of operations.

We may implement a product recall or voluntary matkwithdrawal due to product defects or product emtements and modifications,
which would significantly increase our costs.

The manufacturing and marketing of our MGuard speatucts involves an inherent risk that our praslucay prove to be defective.
In that event, we may voluntarily implement a réoalmarket withdrawal or may be required to ddga regulatory authority. A recall of one
of our products, or a similar product manufactusgdinother manufacturer, could impair sales ofptteelucts we market as a result of
confusion concerning the scope of the recall a essult of the damage to our reputation for qualitd safety.

The successful management of operations dependswmnability to attract and retain talented personhe

We depend on the expertise of our senior manageamehtesearch personnel, which would be difficuitaplace. The loss of the
services of any of our senior management could comise our ability to achieve our objectives. Farthore, recruiting and retaining qualif
personnel will be crucial to future success. Thoame be no assurance that we will be able to atredttretain necessary personnel on acceptak
terms given the competition among medical devi@gbhnology, pharmaceutical and healthcare congganniversities and non-profit
research institutions for experienced managemeisntsts, researchers, sales and marketing andfaaring personnel. If we are unable to
attract, retain and motivate our key personnel,aparations may be jeopardized and our resultpefations may be materially and adversely
affected.

We are an international business, and we are exgbgevarious global and local risks that could haaematerial adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operation:

We operate globally and develop and manufacturdymts in our research and manufacturing facilitlesultiple countries.
Consequently, we face complex legal and regulatguirements in multiple jurisdictions, which magpese us to certain financial and other
risks. International sales and operations are subjea variety of risks, including:

« foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations;

« greater difficulty in staffing and managing foreigperations;

« greater risk of uncollectible accounts;

« longer collection cycles;

« logistical and communications challenges;

« potential adverse changes in laws and regulat@gtiges, including export license requirementsidrarriers, tariffs and tax laws;
« changes in labor conditions;

« burdens and costs of compliance with a varietyoofifyn laws;

« political and economic instability;

« increases in duties and taxation;

« foreign tax laws and potential increased costscatm with overlapping tax structures;
« greater difficulty in protecting intellectual prapg
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« the risk of third party disputes over ownershipntéllectual property and infringement of third gaintellectual property by our
products; ant
« general economic and political conditions in thfeseign markets.

International markets are also affected by econgaréssure to contain reimbursement levels andhuzak costs. Profitability from
international operations may be limited by riskd ancertainties related to regional economic caowlt regulatory and reimbursement
approvals, competing products, infrastructure dgwalent, intellectual property rights protection @l ability to implement our overall
business strategy. We expect these risks will aggeas we pursue our strategy to expand operatittnsew geographic markets. We may not
succeed in developing and implementing effectiviicigs and strategies in each location where welgonhbusiness. Any failure to do so may
harm our business, results of operations and fiahnondition.

If we fail to obtain an adequate level of reimbursent for our products by third party payors, themeay be no commercially viable marke
for our product candidates or the markets may be ¢chismaller than expecte«

The availability and levels of reimbursement by gamwmental and other third party payors affect tlaekat for our product candidates.
The efficacy, safety, performance and cost-effectdéss of our product candidates and of any congpptisducts will determine the availability
and level of reimbursement. Reimbursement andneaie payment systems in international markets sigrificantly by country, and include
both government sponsored healthcare and privateance. To obtain reimbursement or pricing apgroveome countries, we may be
required to produce clinical data, which may inebne or more clinical trials, that compares th&t-edfectiveness of our products to other
available therapies. We may not obtain internatiogianbursement or pricing approvals in a timelyrmer, if at all. Our failure to receive
international reimbursement or pricing approvalsildanegatively impact market acceptance of our petalin the international markets in
which those approvals are sought.

We believe that future reimbursement may be sulbgeicicreased restrictions both in the U.S. anidt@rnational markets. There is
increasing pressure by governments worldwide tdasorealth care costs by limiting both the coveragd the level of reimbursement for
therapeutic products and by refusing, in some ¢asgsovide any coverage for products that haweoren approved by the relevant regulator
agency. Future legislation, regulation or reimbovest policies of third party payors may adversélga the demand for our products currel
under development and limit our ability to sell guoduct candidates on a profitable basis. In @dithird party payors continually attempt to
contain or reduce the costs of healthcare by ahgilhg the prices charged for healthcare produdissarvices. If reimbursement for our
products is unavailable or limited in scope or amar if pricing is set at unsatisfactory levelsnket acceptance of our products would be
impaired and future revenues, if any, would be ashklg affected.

In the U.S. and in the European Union, our businessuld be significantly and adversely affected tgcent healthcare reform legislatio
and other administration and legislative proposals.

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act tredHealth Care and Education Reconciliation A¢chsmU.S. were enacted into
law in March 2010. Certain provisions of these adgtbknot be effective for a number of years andrthare many programs and requirements
for which the details have not yet been fully ebshied or consequences not fully understood, aisduihclear what the full impacts will be
from the legislation. The legislation levies a 2.8%gise tax, that began on January 1, 2013, csaldbk of any U.S. medical device listed with
the U.S. Food and Drug Administration under Seckitf(j) of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmeticakat 21 C.F.R. Part 807, unless the
device falls within an exemption from the tax, sashthe exemption governing direct retail saleedices to consumers or for foreign sales of
these devices. If we commence sales of our MGuardr@ry stent in the U.S., this new tax may mallgraand adversely affect our business
and results of operations. The legislation alsa$es on a number of Medicare provisions aimed ptawing quality and decreasing costs. It is
uncertain at this point what negative unintendatsequences these provisions will have on patiesgsacto new technologies. The Medicare
provisions include value-based payment prograntseased funding of comparative effectiveness rebeagduced hospital payments for
avoidable readmissions and hospital acquired ciomdit and pilot programs to evaluate alternatiwampent methodologies that promote care
coordination (such as bundled physician and hdgpgigments). Additionally, the provisions includeealuction in the annual rate of inflation
for hospitals which started in 2011 and the esthblient of an independent payment advisory boareicimmmend ways of reducing the rate of
growth in Medicare spending. We cannot predict wieatlthcare programs and regulations will be ultétyaimplemented at the federal or st
level in the U.S., or the effect of any future Egtion or regulation. However, any changes thatloreimbursements for our products or
reduce medical procedure volumes could adversédgtadur business plan to introduce our productiénU.S.
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In the European Union, on September 26, 2012, thegean Commission proposed a revision of the lltgs currently governing
medical devices. If adopted by the European Padi@rand the Council in their present form, thesppsed revisions, which would be adog
in 2014 and would then gradually come into effeohf 2015 to 2019, will impose stricter requiremesrianedical device manufacturers.
Moreover, the supervising competences of the coempetuthorities of the European Union Member Stabtesthe notified bodies will be
strengthened. The regulation of advanced theramjaimal products is also in continued developmarithe European Union, with the
European Medicines Agency publishing new cliniaasafety guidelines concerning advanced therapyiaimed products on a regular basis.
Any of these regulatory changes and events coniid ¢iur ability to form collaborations and our atyilto continue to commercialize our
products, and if we fail to comply with any suclwner modified regulations and requirements it ccadidersely affect our business, operating
results and prospects.

Our strategic business plan may not produce theeimied growth in revenue and operating income.

Our strategies include making significant investtaen sales and marketing programs to achieve tevvgrowth and margin
improvement targets. If we do not achieve the etqukbenefits from these investments or otherwidéd@xecute on our strategic initiatives,
we may not achieve the growth improvement we agetang and our results of operations may be agweedffected.

In addition, as part of our strategy for growth, mvay make acquisitions and enter into strategiarales such as joint ventures and
joint development agreements. However, we may aaiie to identify suitable acquisition candidatesnplete acquisitions or integr:
acquisitions successfully, and our strategic atignmay not prove to be successful. In this regamglisitions involve numerous risks,
including difficulties in the integration of the epations, technologies, services and productsectiguired companies and the diversion of
management’s attention from other business concAttimugh we will endeavor to evaluate the rigkisdérent in any particular transaction,
there can be no assurance that we will properlgréaio all such risks. In addition, acquisitionsiicbresult in the incurrence of substantial
additional indebtedness and other expenses onténpially dilutive issuances of equity securiti€aere can be no assurance that difficulties
encountered with acquisitions will not have a matexdverse effect on our business, financial ciomliand results of operations.

We may have violated Israeli securities law.

We may have violated section 15 of the Israeli 88ea Law of 1968. Section 15 of the Israeli Séies Law of 1968 requires the
filing of a prospectus with the Israel Securitiastiority and the delivery thereof to purchasersdnnection with an offer or sale of securities
to more than 35 parties during any 12-month peNdd.allegedly issued securities to more than 3Bstosrs during certain 12-month periods,
ending in October 2008. Our wholly-owned subsididngpireMD Ltd., a private company incorporatedlenthe laws of the State of Israel,
applied for a no-action determination from the ési@ecurity Authority on February 14, 2011 in coctign with the foregoing. To date, the
Israel Securities Authority has not responded spireMD Ltd.’s application for no-action determiizett and we are unable to predict when a
response will be received. The maximum penaltiesifdating section 15 of the Israeli SecuritiesrLaf 1968 are as follows: imprisonment of
five years; a fine of up to approximately $317,80®e paid by management of the violating compang a fine of up to approximately
$1,590,000 to be paid by the violating company, afimwhich penalties could result in a material adeeeffect on our operations. We believe
that it is unlikely that either we or any individwaill be subject to fines or other penalties agsult of these alleged violations.
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We will need to raise additional capital to meetrdausiness requirements in the future and such c@piraising may be costly or difficult to
obtain and could dilute our stockholders’ ownershipterests.

In order to fully realize all of our business oltjees, we will need to raise additional capital,igthmay not be available on reasonz
terms or at all. For instance, we will need toeaidditional funds to accomplish the following:

« developing MGuard Carotid, MGuard Peripheral andudf@ Coronary with a drug eluting bio-absorbablasimand any additional
roducts;

. Eursuing growth opportunities, including more ragighansion;

e acquiring complementary businesses;

« making capital improvements to improve our infrasture;

« hiring qualified management and key employees;

« developing new services, programming or products;

« responding to competitive pressures;

« complying with regulatory requirements such asrgieg and registration; and

« maintaining compliance with applicable laws.

Any additional capital raised through the saleapdity or equity backed securities may dilute owckholders’ ownership percentages
and could also result in a decrease in the madeevof our equity securities.

The terms of any securities issued by us in futaygtal transactions may be more favorable to mexgstors, and may include
preferences, superior voting rights and the issei@afievarrants or other derivative securities, whitdy have a further dilutive effect on the
holders of any of our securities then outstanding.

Furthermore, any additional debt or equity finagdat we may need may not be available on ternmwéddle to us, or at all. If we a
unable to obtain such additional financing on atinbasis, we may have to curtail our developmetitiies and growth plans and/or be
forced to sell assets, perhaps on unfavorable temmish would have a material adverse effect onbasiness, financial condition and result
operations, and ultimately could be forced to didicme our operations and liquidate, in which eveist unlikely that stockholders would
receive any distribution on their shares. Furtivermay not be able to continue operating if we dbgenerate sufficient revenues from
operations needed to stay in business.

In addition, we may incur substantial costs in ping future capital financing, including investmduainking fees, legal fees,
accounting fees, securities law compliance feestipg and distribution expenses and other costs.nvely also be required to recognize non-
cash expenses in connection with certain secukitessue, such as convertible notes and warrahish may adversely impact our financial
condition.

Risks Related to Operating in Israel

We anticipate being subject to fluctuations in camcy exchange rates because we expect a substartidion of our revenues will be
generated in Euros and U.S. dollars, while a sigo#dnt portion of our expenses will be incurred indW Israeli Shekels

We expect a substantial portion of our revenuekhgilgenerated in U.S. dollars and Euros, whilgaificant portion of our expenses,
principally salaries and related personnel expensgmid in New Israeli Shekels, or NIS. As a iesue are exposed to the risk that the rate of
inflation in Israel will exceed the rate of devaioa of the NIS in relation to the Euro or the Udsllar, or that the timing of this devaluation
will lag behind inflation in Israel. Because inftai has the effect of increasing the dollar andokasts of our operations, it would therefore
have an adverse effect on our dollar-measuredtsesiibperations. The value of the NIS, againstBhm, the U.S. dollar, and other currencies
may fluctuate and is affected by, among other thimhanges in Israel’s political and economic comals. Any significant revaluation of the
NIS may materially and adversely affect our casiw§, revenues and financial condition. Fluctuationthe NIS exchange rate, or even
appearance of instability in such exchange rateldcadversely affect our ability to operate ouribass.
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If there are significant shifts in the political, @nomic and military conditions in Israel and itsaighbors, it could have a material adver
effect on our business relationships and profitaibjl

Our sole manufacturing facility and certain of &ey personnel are located in Israel. Our busiredgéctly affected by the political,
economic and military conditions in Israel andni&ghbors. Since the establishment of the Stateraél in 1948, a number of armed conflicts
have occurred between Israel and its Arab neighlfossate of hostility, varying in degree and irgity, has caused security and economic
problems in Israel. Although Israel has entered peace treaties with Egypt and Jordan, and vadgusements with the Palestinian Authot
there has been a marked increase in violence,uwivést and hostility, including armed clasheswieen the State of Israel and the Palestinian:
since September 2000. The establishment in 20@6ofvernment in the Gaza Strip by representatifédsedHamas militant group has created
heightened unrest and uncertainty in the regiomith2006, Israel engaged in an armed conflict widzbollah, a Shiite Islamist militia group
based in Lebanon, and in June 2007, there wascatatien in violence in the Gaza Strip. From Decent008 through January 2009 and a
in November and December 2012, Israel engaged arrand conflict with Hamas, which involved misstelkes against civilian targets in
various parts of Israel and negatively affectedrmss conditions in Israel. Recent political upris and social unrest in Syria are affecting its
political stability, which has led to the deteritioa of the political relationship between Syriaddarael and have raised new concerns rega
security in the region and the potential for arroedflict. Similar civil unrest and political turberice is currently ongoing in many countries in
the region. The continued political instability amakstilities between Israel and its neighbors amdfature armed conflict, terrorist activity or
political instability in the region could adverselffect our operations in Israel and adverselycaffiee market price of our shares of common
stock. In addition, several countries restrict ddiusiness with Israel and Israeli companies haemland are today subjected to economic
boycotts. The interruption or curtailment of trdmtween Israel and its present trading partnerkl@versely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Our operations could be disrupted as a result oétbbligation of certain of our personnel residing israel to perform military service.

Some of our key employees reside in Israel and lmeagquired to perform annual military reserve d@yrrently, all male adult
citizens and permanent residents of Israel undeagfe of 40 (or older, depending on their positiith the Israeli Defense Forces reserves),
unless exempt, are obligated to perform militagerge duty annually and are subject to being catlexttive duty at any time under emerge
circumstances. Our operations could be disruptetthédpbsence for a significant period of one orevafrour key employees due to military
service. Any such disruption could have a matexiblerse effect on our business, results of opermtoad financial condition.

We may not be able to enforce covenants not-to-cetepunder current Israeli law.

We have non-competition agreements with many ofeouployees, most of which are governed by Israeli These agreements
generally prohibit our employees from competingwis or working for our competitors for a speciffgatiod following termination of their
employment. However, Israeli courts are reluctardrtforce non-compete undertakings of former eng#syand tend, if at all, to enforce those
provisions for relatively brief periods of timeliestricted geographical areas and only when thda@me has unique value specific to that
employer’s business and not just regarding thegsibnal development of the employee. Any suchilibato enforce non-compete covenants
may cause us to lose any competitive advantagétiresfrom advantages provided to us by such canfital information.

It may be difficult for investors in the U.S. to éorce any judgments obtained against us or someof directors or officers

The majority of our assets are located outside.tl® In addition, two of our directors and certafrour officers are nationals and/or
residents of countries other than the U.S., andrall substantial portion of such persons’ asgettoaated outside the U.S. As a result, it may
be difficult for investors to enforce within the®J.any judgments obtained against us or any ohonfU.S. directors or officers, including
judgments predicated upon the civil liability preiains of the securities laws of the U.S. or antestaereof. Additionally, it may be difficult 1
assert U.S. securities law claims in actions odltiyninstituted outside of the U.S. Israeli courtay refuse to hear a U.S. securities law claim
because Israeli courts may not be the most ap@atepiorums in which to bring such a claim. Evearifisraeli court agrees to hear a claim, it
may determine that the Israeli law, and not U.®, ia applicable to the claim. Further, if U.S. l@found to be applicable, certain content of
applicable U.S. law must be proved as a fact, wharhbe a time-consuming and costly process, atdicenatters of procedure would still be
governed by the Israeli law. Consequently, you imagffectively prevented from pursuing remediesauidlS. federal and state securities |
against us or any of our non-U.S. directors orceffs.
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The tax benefits that are available to us require to continue meeting various conditions and maytbeminated or reduced in the future,
which could increase our costs and taxes.

The tax benefits that are available to us requsreolcontinue meeting various conditions and matebminated or reduced in the
future, which could increase our costs and taxespiteMD Ltd. has been granted a “Beneficiary Biiee” status by the Investment Center in
the Israeli Ministry of Industry Trade and Laboriefhmade us eligible for tax benefits under thadsirLaw for the Encouragement of Capital
Investments, 1959. In order to remain eligibletfar tax benefits of a “Beneficiary Enterprise”, mest continue to meet certain conditions
stipulated in the Israeli Law for the EncouragenwdCapital Investments, 1959 and its regulati@ssamended, which may include, among
other things, making specified investments in fissdets and equipment, financing a percentagesé timvestments with our capital
contributions, filing certain reports with the Irstment Center, complying with provisions regardimtgllectual property and the criteria set
forth in the specific certificate of approval isdugy the Investment Center or the Israel Tax Autholf we do not meet these requirements,
tax benefits could be cancelled and we could baired to refund any tax benefits that we receivethe past. Further, in the future, these tax
benefits may be reduced or discontinued. If thasdenefits are cancelled, our Israeli taxablermeavould be subject to regular Israeli
corporate tax rates. The standard corporate taXeoatsraeli companies in 2011 was 24% of theiabde income, was increased to 25% for
2012 and 2013 and will be increased to 26.5% imM201the future, we may not be eligible to receadelitional tax benefits under the Israeli
Law for the Encouragement of Capital Investmen®$91 The termination or reduction of these tax fiemeould increase our tax liability,
which would reduce our profits.

Risks Related to Our Organization and Our Common Sick
We are subject to financial reporting and other neigements that place significant demands on our oesces.

On March 31, 2011, we became subject to reportinbadher obligations under the Securities Exchakgeof 1934, as amended,
including the requirements of Section 404 of theb8aes-Oxley Act of 2002. Section 404 requiresousonduct an annual management
assessment of the effectiveness of our internataisrover financial reporting. These reporting atigder obligations place significant demands
on our management, administrative, operationadrivatl audit and accounting resources. Any failarmaintain effective internal controls co
have a material adverse effect on our businessatipg results and stock price. Moreover, effectiternal control is necessary for us to
provide reliable financial reports and prevent ftalfi we cannot provide reliable financial repastsprevent fraud, we may not be able to
manage our business as effectively as we would @feective control environment existed, and owsibess and reputation with investors may
be harmed.

There are inherent limitations in all control systes, and misstatements due to error or fraud mayurcand not be detected.

The ongoing internal control provisions of Sectiii# of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 require udéatify of material weaknesses
in internal control over financial reporting, whigha process to provide reasonable assuranceliegdhe reliability of financial reporting for
external purposes in accordance with accountimgjmies generally accepted in the U.S. Our managgnreluding our chief executive offic
and chief financial officer, does not expect that imternal controls and disclosure controls wikkyent all errors and all fraud. A control
system, no matter how well conceived and operatma provide only reasonable, not absolute, assertdyat the objectives of the control
system are met. In addition, the design of a cbsyrstem must reflect the fact that there are resooonstraints and the benefit of controls 1
be relative to their costs. Because of the inhdmenitiations in all control systems, no evaluatmfrcontrols can provide absolute assurance the
all control issues and instances of fraud, if amygur company have been detected. These inhengtations include the realities that
judgments in decisic-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can doeaause of simple errors or mistakes. Furthettralsncan be
circumvented by individual acts of some persons;dijusion of two or more persons, or by managerogatride of the controls. The desigr
any system of controls is also based in part ugstain assumptions about the likelihood of futureres, and there can be no assurance that
any design will succeed in achieving its statedgjaader all potential future conditions. Over timecontrol may be inadequate because of
changes in conditions, such as growth of the compaincreased transaction volume, or the degremwipliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate. Because of inhereitalions in a coseffective control system, misstatements due tor@rdéraud may occur ar
not be detected.
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In addition, discovery and disclosure of a matesiehkness, by definition, could have a materiakasky impact on our financial
statements. Such an occurrence could discouratgrceustomers or suppliers from doing businesk w#, cause downgrades in our future
debt ratings leading to higher borrowing costs atfieict how our stock trades. This could in turnategly affect our ability to access public
debt or equity markets for capital.

Our stock price has been and may continue to beatitd, which could result in substantial losses fovestors.

The market price of our common stock has been sfiklely to continue to be highly volatile and cddiluctuate widely in response to
various factors, many of which are beyond our adnincluding the following:

« technological innovations or new products and sexvby us or our competitors;

« additions or departures of key personnel,

« sales of our common stock, particularly under agistration statement for the purposes of sellmgather securities, including
management share

« limited availability of freely-tradable “unrestrad” shares of our common stock to satisfy purcloaders and demand,;

- our ability to execute our business plan;

- operating results that fall below expectations;

« loss of any strategic relationship;

« industry developments;

« economic and other external factors; and

« period-to-period fluctuations in our financial résu

In addition, the securities markets have from ttmé@me experienced significant price and volumetlations that are unrelated to
operating performance of particular companies. &maarket fluctuations may also significantly affde market price of our common stock.

Delaware law and our corporate charter and bylawantain anti-takeover provisions that could delay or discourag&eover attempts that
stockholders may consider favorabl

Our board of directors is authorized to issue shafgreferred stock in one or more series anitthé voting powers, preferences
and other rights and limitations of the preferremtk. Accordingly, we may issue shares of prefestedk with a preference over our common
stock with respect to dividends or distributionsligaidation or dissolution, or that may otherwasversely affect the voting or other rights of
the holders of common stock. Issuances of prefatack, depending upon the rights, preferencesddasijnations of the preferred stock, may
have the effect of delaying, deterring or prevemtinchange of control, even if that change of abmhight benefit our stockholders. In additi
we are subject to Section 203 of the Delaware Géi@orporation Law. Section 203 generally prohikitgublic Delaware corporation from
engaging in a “business combination” with an “iet#ed stockholder” for a period of three yearsrdfte date of the transaction in which the
person became an interested stockholder, unlegadi)to the date of the transaction, the boardicgctors of the corporation approved either
the business combination or the transaction wteshlted in the stockholder becoming an interestazkbolder; (ii) the interested stockholder
owned at least 85% of the voting stock of the coapion outstanding at the time the transaction cemeed, excluding for purposes of
determining the number of shares outstanding @)eshowned by persons who are directors and aleeisf and (b) shares owned by emplc
stock plans in which employee participants do rastehthe right to determine confidentially whetheargs held subject to the plan will be
tendered in a tender or exchange offer; or (iiilposubsequent to the date of the transactiorhuaess combination is approved by the boar
and authorized at an annual or special meetingpokbolders, and not by written consent, by théeratitive vote of at least 66 2/3% of the
outstanding voting stock which is not owned byititerested stockholder.

40




Section 203 could delay or prohibit mergers or otakeover or change in control attempts with respeus and, accordingly, may
discourage attempts to acquire us even thoughati@msaction may offer our stockholders the opmity to sell their stock at a price above
the prevailing market price.

Offers or availability for sale of a substantial mber of shares of our common stock may cause thegof our common stock to decline.

Sales of a significant number of shares of our comstock in the public market could harm the magtete of our common stock a
make it more difficult for us to raise funds thraufyiture offerings of common stock. Our stockhatderay sell substantial amounts of our
common stock in the public market or upon the etmn of any statutory holding period, under Rudd lor upon expiration of lockp period:
applicable to outstanding shares, or issued upmestercise of outstanding options or warrantsfalthich are currently registered for resale.
The availability of these shares of our commonlsfoc resale in the public market has the potentialause the supply of our common stoc
exceed investor demand, thereby decreasing the pfiocur common stock.

In addition, the fact that our stockholders, optimiders and warrant holders can sell substantiagluats of our common stock in the
public market, whether or not sales have occurret®occurring, could make it more difficult fas to raise additional financing through the
sale of equity or equity-related securities infilteire at a time and price that we deem reasorald@propriate.

We do not expect to pay dividends in the future.adAsesult, any return on investment may be limitixdthe value of our common stock.

We do not anticipate paying cash dividends on oumroon stock in the foreseeable future. The paymedividends on our common
stock will depend on our earnings, financial coieditand other business and economic factors abaand of directors may consider relevant.
If we do not pay dividends, our common stock mayelss valuable because a return on an investmenirinommon stock will only occur if
our stock price appreciates.

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains “forwaaibking statements,” which include information rglgtto future events, future
financial performance, strategies, expectationsypmstitive environment and regulation. Words suctnaay,” “should,” “could,” “would,”
“predicts,” “potential,” “continue,” “expects,” “ditipates,” “future,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes“estimates,” and similar expressions, as
well as statements in future tense, identify fovimoking statements. Forward-looking statementaikhnot be read as a guarantee of future
performance or results and will probably not beuaate indications of when such performance or tesull be achieved. Forward-looking
statements are based on information we have wiose thtatements are made or our management’s goloddsief as of that time with respect
to future events, and are subject to risks andrteiogies that could cause actual performance sarltgto differ materially from those expres
in or suggested by the forward-looking statemdmgortant factors that could cause such differermesde, but are not limited to:

« our history of recurring losses and negative cashs from operating activities, significant futurzemmitments and the uncertainty
regarding the adequacy of our liquidity to pursue @mplete business objectivi
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« our ability to complete clinical trials as anticipd and obtain and maintain regulatory approval®fw products;
« our ability to adequately protect our intellectpabperty;
« disputes over ownership of intellectual property;

« our dependence on a single manufacturing facitity aur ability to comply with stringent manufactgiquality standards and to
increase production as necess:i

« the risk that the data collected from our currem planned clinical trials may not be sufficientemonstrate that the MGuard
technology is an attractive alternative to othecpdures and produc

» intense competition in our industry, with compestbaving substantially greater financial, techgalal, research and development,
regulatory and clinical, manufacturing, marketimgl @ales, distribution and personnel resourceswleato;

- entry of new competitors and products and potetdiztinological obsolescence of our products;
« loss of a key customer or supplier;
« technical problems with our research and produatisptential product liability claims;
« adverse economic conditions;
« adverse federal, state and local government regalanh the U.S., Europe or Israel;
« price increases for supplies and components;
- inability to carry out research, development anchicercialization plans; and
« loss or retirement of key executives and reseasigntists.
You should review carefully the risks and uncetiemdescribed under the heading “ltem 1A. Risk&iat in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K for a discussion of these and other ribks relate to our business and investing in shaf@ur common stock. The forwalabking
statements contained in this Annual Report on FHOrAK are expressly qualified in their entirety hystcautionary statement. We do not
undertake any obligation to publicly update anyvanrd-looking statement to reflect events or circtamses after the date on which any such
statement is made or to reflect the occurrencenahticipated events.
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.
Item 2. Properties.
Our headquarters are located in Boston, Massadbusdtere we lease executive office space. In @afgiin Tel Aviv, Israel, we
currently have a 1,000 square meter office and fiaatwring facility that has the capacity to mantifiae and assemble 4,800 stents per montt

based upon the production schedule of one shiftiagr We believe that our current facility is sciint to meet anticipated future demand by
adding additional shifts to our current productsmhedule.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

From time to time, we may be involved in litigatitirat arises through the normal course of businesef the date of this filing, we
are not a party to any material litigation nor aaware of any such threatened or pending litgati

There are no material proceedings in which anyuofdirectors, officers or affiliates or any regret@ or beneficial shareholder of mi
than 5% of our common stock is an adverse parhasra material interest adverse to our interest.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.
Not applicable.
PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant’'s Conmon Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and IssuePurchases of Equity Securities.

Our common stock has been quoted on the NYSE MKdesApril 11, 2013 under the symbol NSPR. Priathttt date, it was traded
on the OTC Bulletin Board since April 11, 2011.d?tio that date, there was no active market foroounmon stock.

The following table sets forth (i) the intra-daghiand low sales prices per shares for our comrumk s reported on the NYSE
MKT for the period of April 11, 2013 to June 30,13) and (ii) the high and low bid prices for oumzaon stock for the periods indicated, as
reported by the OTC Bulletin Board, for the peraddipril 11, 2011 to April 10, 2013. The quotatiorglect inter-dealer prices, without retail
mark-up, mark-down or commission, and may not regmeactual transactions. The OTC Bulletin Boarotations are adjusted for the one-for-
four reverse stock split of our common stock thadusred on December 21, 2012.

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 201 High Low

First Quartel $ 10.0C $ 3.8¢
Second Quarte $ 10.1¢ $ 3.01
Third Quartel $ 428 3 1.9t
Fourth Quarte $ 3.1t % 1.8¢
Transition Period Ended June 30, 201. High Low

First Quartel $ 86C $ 4.4C
Second Quarte $ 74C % 2.4C
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 201 High Low

Second Quarte $ 11.5¢ % 7.0C
Third Quartel $ 10.9¢ % 7.2C
Fourth Quarte $ 10.3¢ % 6.4(

The last reported sales price of our common stocthe NYSE MKT on September 16, 2013, was $2.1Xpare. As of September
16, 2013, there were approximately 194 holdergobrd of our common stock.
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Dividend Policy

In the past, we have not declared or paid casldeids on our common stock, and we do not intepayoany cash dividends on our
common stock. Rather, we intend to retain futur@iegs, if any, to fund the operation and expansibaur business and for general corporate
purposes.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities.

On August 1, 2012, we issued options to purchagg080shares of our common stock to Redington, &scgonsideration for investor
relations services. The securities issued to Reéalmdnc. were not registered under the Securkietsof 1933, as amended, or the securities
laws of any state, and were offered and sold iamek on the exemption from registration underSbeurities Act of 1933, as amended,
provided by Section 4(2) and Regulation D (Rule)a@&ler the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

On September 14, 2012, Pl Financial Corp. exeraiggdants to purchase 36,375 shares of our commack for aggregate
consideration of $178,965. On September 17, 201RjrRAncial Corp. exercised warrants to purchag@%shares of our common stock for
aggregate consideration of $30,135. On Septemhe&t@@, PI Financial Corp. exercised warrants teipase 15,000 shares of our common
stock for aggregate consideration of $73,800. Quteé3eber 24, 2012, Pl Financial Corp. exercised avasrto purchase 16,250 shares of our
common stock for aggregate consideration of $79(8b@n September 26, 2012, PI Financial Corp.ased warrants to purchase 9,300
shares of our common stock for aggregate considaraf $45,756.00. On October 1, 2012, Pl FinanCialp. exercised warrants to purchase
10,175 shares of our common stock for aggregatsideration of $50,061. On October 5, 2012, PI FiredrCorp. exercised warrants to
purchase 32,500 shares of our common stock foreggge consideration of $159,900. On October 102 2BLFinancial Corp. exercised
warrants to purchase 48,821 shares of our comnoaR fir aggregate consideration of $240,196.8600tober 19, 2012, PI Financial Corp.
exercised warrants to purchase 19,000 shares afomumon stock for aggregate consideration of $IB,&8 October 25, 2012, Pl Financial
Corp. exercised warrants to purchase 2,107 shams @ommon stock for aggregate considerationl®f,$64. These shares of common stock
were not registered under the Securities Act 03183 amended, or the securities laws of any statbwere offered and sold in reliance on th
exemption from registration under the Securities &c933, as amended, provided by Section 4(2)Rewgllation D (Rule 506) under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

On June 25, 2013, we issued 67,797 shares of aumom stock pursuant to the InspireMD, Inc. 2011 URER.LA Option Plan in
connection with the settlement of a dispute wifbraner consultant. These shares of common stock wet registered under the Securities Ac
of 1933, as amended, or the securities laws oktate, and were offered and sold in reliance orekeenption from registration under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, provided byi@ed(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended
Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Not applicable.

Item 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our finahcondition and results of operations should bad in conjunction with the
accompanying condensed consolidated financial statés and related notes included elsewhere inAhisial Report on Form 10-K.

Overview
We are a medical device company focusing on theldpment and commercialization of our proprietagnsplatform technology,
MGuard. MGuard provides embolic protection in stapprocedures by placing a micron mesh sleeve awtent. Our initial products are

marketed for use mainly in patients with acute narg syndromes, notably acute myocardial infarcflweart attack) and saphenous vein graft
coronary interventions (bypass surgery).
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On March 31, 2011, we completed a series of sharieamge transactions pursuant to which we acquaillexf the capital stock of
InspireMD Ltd., a company formed under the lawshef State of Israel, in exchange for an aggredat® 666,665 (as adjusted for the one-for
four reverse stock split of our common stock tratusred on December 21, 2012) shares of our constumk. As a result of these share
exchange transactions, InspireMD Ltd. became owllydowned subsidiary, we discontinued our formasiness and succeeded to the
business of InspireMD Ltd. as our sole line of besks.

The share exchange transactions were accounted forecapitalization. InspireMD Ltd. is the acquiior accounting purposes and
we are the acquired company. Accordingly, the hisabfinancial statements presented and the disonf financial condition and results of
operations herein are those of InspireMD Ltd.,a&ttively restated for, and giving effect to, thenber of shares received in the share
exchange transactions, and do not include therfgatdinancial results of our former business. Heeumulated earnings of InspireMD Ltd.
were also carried forward after the share exch#magsactions and earnings per share have beeacttaly restated to give effect to the
recapitalization for all periods presented. Operatireported for periods prior to the share excharansactions are those of InspireMD Ltd.

On June 1, 2012, our board of directors approveltbage in our fiscal yeand from December 31 to June 30, effective Jun@@D2

We effectuated a one-for-four reverse stock splidus common stock on December 21, 2012.
Recent Events

On April 16, 2013, we consummated an underwrittelnlip offering pursuant to which we sold 12.5 naifishares of common stock.
The public offering price of our common stock ifstbffering was $2.00 per share, resulting in aggte net proceeds to us of approximately
$22.6 million, after the underwriters’ commissiarsl offering expenses. On April 11, 2013, followthg pricing of the offering, our common
stock commenced trading on the NYSE MKT.
Critical Accounting Policies

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith U.S. GAAP requires management to make eggsiusing assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liaslgind disclosure of contingent assets and ligisilét the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of sales and expenses diengporting periods. Actual results could diffemfi those estimates.

As applicable to these consolidated financial stetets, the most significant estimates and assungptigate to inventory write-off,
intangible assets, provisions for returns, legatiogencies, estimation of the fair value of shiaased compensation and estimation of the fair
value of warrants.

Functional currency

The currency of the primary economic environmentirich our operations are conducted is the U.Sad@!$” or “dollar”).
Accordingly, the functional currency of us and of subsidiaries is the dollar.

The dollar figures are determined as follows: teatiosns and balances originally denominated inadslare presented in their original
amounts. Balances in foreign currencies are traatsiato dollars using historical and current exa®rates for non-monetary and monetary
balances, respectively. The resulting translati@ngor losses are recorded as financial inconexpense, as appropriate. For transactions
reflected in the statements of operations in for@grrencies, the exchange rates at transacti@s da¢ used. Depreciation and changes in
inventories and other changes deriving from non-gtemy items are based on historical exchange rates.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is defined as the price that would lmeired to sell an asset or paid to transfer alitglin an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.
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In determining fair value, we use various valuatiqproaches, including market, income and/or qostaaches. Hierarchy for inputs
is used in measuring fair value that maximizesue of observable inputs and minimizes the usaobservable inputs by requiring that the
most observable inputs be used when available.r@disie inputs are inputs that market participanmsilel use in pricing the asset or liability
developed based on market data obtained from seurdependent of us. Unobservable inputs are irthatseflect our assumptions about the
assumptions market participants would use in pgitive asset or liability developed based on théib&wrmation available in the
circumstances. The hierarchy is broken down integhevels based on the reliability of inputs.

Concentration of credit risk and allowance for dotfbl accounts

Financial instruments that may potentially subjecto a concentration of credit risk consist olhc&ash equivalents and restricted
cash which are deposited in major financial inittus in the U.S., Germany and Israel, and tradewatts receivable. Our trade accounts
receivable are derived from revenues earned fragtomers from various countries. We perform ongairgglit evaluations of our customers’
financial condition and, generally, require no atdral from our customers. We also have a creslitramce policy for some of our customers.
We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts inad®e based upon the expected ability to colleetaccounts receivable. We review our
allowance for doubtful accounts quarterly by assgssdividual accounts receivable and all othdabees based on historical collection
experience and an economic risk assessment. letegrdine that a specific customer is unable to rite&nancial obligations to us, we prov
an allowance for credit losses to reduce the retd@vto the amount our management reasonably lesligill be collected. To mitigate risks,
we deposit cash and cash equivalents with hightagedlity financial institutions. Provisions foodbtful debts are netted against “Accounts
receivable-trade.”

Inventory

Inventories include finished goods, work in procasd raw materials. Inventories are stated aloilver of cost (cost is determined on
a “first-in, first-out” basis) or market value. Ouventories generally have a limited shelf lifelaare subject to impairment as they approach
their expiration dates. We regularly evaluate teyng value of our inventories and when, in opingon, factors indicate that impairment has
occurred, we establish a reserve against the ioviest carrying value. Our determination that anation reserve might be required, in additior
to the quantification of such reserve, requiresoudtilize significant judgment. Although we makeeey effort to ensure the accuracy of
forecasts of future product demand, any significargnticipated decreases in demand could haveexialatmpact on the carrying value of our
inventories and reported operating results. To,datentory adjustments have not been materialth\iéispect to inventory on consignment,
“Revenue recognition” below.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when delivery has occurrgéderce of an arrangement exists, title and riskksrawards for the products are
transferred to the customer, collection is reaslynatsured and when product returns can be relidtiynated. When product returns can be
reliably estimated a provision is recorded, bagedistorical experience, and deducted from revenlies provision for sales returns and
related costs are included in “Accounts payableanwiuals - Other” under “current liabilities” afidventory on consignment,” respectively.

When returns cannot be reliably estimated, bottedlrevenues and costs are deferred, and preserded“Deferred revenues” and
“Inventory on consignment,” respectively.

As of June 30, 2013, there were no deferred reveralated to sales in the balance sheet for whiehdte of return could not be
reliably estimated.

Our arrangements with distributors may containrigyet to receive free products upon the achieveroéatles targets. Each period,

we estimate the amount of free products to whielsetdistributors will be entitled based upon thegeexed achievement of sales targets and
defer a portion of revenues accordingly.
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We recognize revenue net of value added tax.

Research and development costs

Research and development costs are charged ttateenent of operations as incurred.
Share-based compensation

Employee option awards are classified as equity@svand accounted for using the grant-date farevatethod. The fair value of
share-based awards is estimated using the Blacg&kSxchaluation model, which is expensed over tleisite service period, net of estimated
forfeitures. We estimate forfeitures based on hisabexperience and anticipated future conditions.

We elected to recognize compensation expensedviards with only service conditions that have gradesting schedules using the
accelerated multiple option approach.

We account for equity instruments issued to thadypservice providers (non-employees) by recordiegfair value of the options
granted using an option pricing model, at eachnt@mpperiod, until rewards are vested in full. Td¥gense is recognized over the vesting
period using the accelerated multiple option apgioa

In addition, certain of our share-based awardpartormance based, i.e., the vesting of these andagdends upon achieving certain
goals. We estimate the expected pesting award probability, i.e., the expected likebd that the performance conditions will be agbi an
only recognize expense for those shares expectessto

Uncertain tax and value added tax positions

We follow a two-step approach to recognizing an@sogeing uncertain tax and value added tax positibhe first step is to evaluate
the tax and value added tax position for recogmitip determining if the weight of available evidenadicates that it is more likely than not
that the position will be sustained on audit. Teeand step is to measure the tax and value adddmbreefit as the largest amount that is more
than 50% and 75%, respectively, likely of beindireal upon ultimate settlement. Such liabilities alassified as long-term, unless the liability
is expected to be resolved within twelve monthsftbe balance sheet date. Our policy is to incinterest related to unrecognized tax ben
within financial expenses.

Results of Operations
Twelve months ended June 30, 2013 compared toetwednths ended June 30, 2012

RevenuesFor the twelve months ended June 30, 2013, revdaareased by approximately $0.5 million, or 8.8%@pproximately
$4.9 million from approximately $5.3 million durirtge same period in 2012. This decrease was pre@dmtfy driven by a decrease in sales
volume of approximately $0.5 million, or approxiraigt9.6%, partially offset by price increases to mpeat distributors of approximately
$36,000, or approximately 0.7%. The $0.5 milliocm@ase in sales volume was due largely to thetfiattiwve are in the process of replacing
certain third party distributors with direct satdgannels in key countries where end user averdlyggsgrices, along with other limiting factol
continue to impair sales. While we believe thas thansition to direct selling will ultimately lead greater sales in these markets, the transitio
away from certain distributors adversely impacteenue for the twelve months ended June 30, 2@1B8ezhad fewer parties selling our
products.

With respect to regions, the decrease in revensemanly attributable to a decrease of approxirge#6l6 million in revenue from

our distributors in Latin America and a decreasepgroximately $0.2 million in revenue from ourtdisutors throughout the rest of the world.
These decreases were partially offset by an inerehapproximately $0.3 million in revenue from alistributors in Asia.
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Gross Profit. For the twelve months ended June 30, 2013, gnadi (revenue less cost of revenues) increasg® 3or approximate
$0.1 million, to approximately $2.6 million from pximately $2.5 million during the same perio®Di2. The increase in gross profit is
attributable to a decrease in cost of revenueppfaximately $0.6 million, primarily attributable & non-recurring write-off of approximately
$0.4 million of slow moving inventory in the twelveonths ended June 30, 2012, which did not occtireérsame period in 2013, as well as a
decrease of approximately $0.3 million of mateaiadl labor costs due to the decrease in sales ®i$i0ion, as discussed above, partially
offset by approximately $0.2 million of expenselated to the consolidation of our manufacturinglfées. The decrease of approximately $
million in cost of revenues was patrtially offsetdyecrease in revenue of approximately $0.5 millis discussed above. Gross margin
increased from 46.7% in the twelve months endeé 30n 2012 to 53.2% in the twelve months ended 30n2013.

Royalties’ Buyout Expensegor the twelve months ended June 30, 2013, wetied approximately $0.9 million in royalties’ buyto
expenses relating to the restructuring of our ryyafjreement for the MGuard Prime version of ourifal Coronary stent. In connection with
the restructuring of this agreement, the licengahe stent design used for this product agreaddace the royalty rate from 7% of net sales
outside of the United States, 7% of the first $Ifillion of net sales in the United States and Idf%et sales in the United States above $10.(
million to 2.9% of all net sales both inside andside the United States in exchange for (i) us mgi$85,000 in regulatory fees owed to us
us making full payment of royalties owed as of egier 30, 2012 in the amount of $205,587 and¥1iiy63,000, payable in 215,000 share
our common stock that were valued at $8.20 peresfidrere was no such expense during the twelvelmamtded June 30, 2012. Royalties’
buyout expenses as a percentage of revenue wa% & 8he twelve months ended June 30, 2013.

Research and Development Expendesr the twelve months ended June 30, 2013, relseand development expenses increased .
or approximately $0.2 million, to approximately $4nillion, from approximately $4.0 million duringé same period in 2012. The increase in
research and development expenses resulted pyriranih an increase of approximately $0.1 milliorsadaries, an increase of approximately
$0.1 million in patent expenses, an increase of@pmately $0.1 million in expenditures relatediie development of the MGuard Carotid
product and an increase of approximately $0.2 amilln miscellaneous expense. These increases \agtrelly offset by a decrease in clinical
trial expenses of approximately $0.3 million, d&ttriable mainly to fewer expenses associated withMASTER Trial, as we approach the
trial's conclusion (decrease of approximately $8iftion), and our U.S. Food and Drug Administratimial (decrease of approximately $0.1
million). Research and development expense ascepige of revenue increased to 85.3% for the svelonths ended June 30, 2013 from
74.6% in the same period in 2012. However, reseanchdevelopment expenses related to our U.S. &oddrug Administration Trial are
expected to increase sharply, as we received aiveglpvith conditions to commence the trial on Ad®, 2013 and had the first patient enroll
in July 2013.

Selling and Marketing ExpenseBor the twelve months ended June 30, 2013, gdlivd marketing expenses increased 66.3%, or
approximately $1.4 million, to approximately $3.@lmn, from approximately $2.2 million during theame period in 2012. The increase in
selling and marketing expenses resulted primarilynfan increase of approximately $0.7 million itesas as we expanded our sales activities
worldwide, an increase of approximately $0.4 millio expenditures related to promotional activitielated to the Transcatheter
Cardiovascular Therapeutics (TCT) conference inmMjadlorida, where we announced our MASTER triglules, an increase of approximately
$0.5 million in product promotion expenses andramdase of approximately $0.3 million in travel erpes for our increased sales force. Muc
of these sales initiatives were driven by our éffdo capitalize on the publication of the inifMASTER trial results, which represented our
first randomized data related to our MGuard tecbgyl These increases in sales and marketing exp&ree partially offset by a decrease of
approximately $0.3 million in share-based compeosaxpenses and a decrease of approximately $i0i@min miscellaneous expenses.
With the growth of our sales force, and associatdivities, as described above, selling and margetkpenses as a percentage of revenue
increased to 74.2% in the twelve months ended 30n2013 from 40.6% in the same period in 2012.

General and Administrative Expensd=or the twelve months ended June 30, 2013, geadaadministrative expenses decreased
35.4%, or approximately $4.9 million, to approxielst$9.0 million from approximately $13.9 milliorudng the same period in 2012. The
decrease in general and administrative expensekba@primarily from a decrease in share-based emrsgtion of $6.1 million (which
predominantly pertained to director's compensagiaid in 2012) and a decrease of approximately B0ll®n in expenses related to
consultants. This decrease was partially offsedrbjncrease in salaries of approximately $0.6 amilljwhich predominately relates to the hiring
of our new chief executive officer), an increasepproximately $0.5 million in legal expenses ldygessociated with our previous financing
efforts, an increase of approximately $0.1 millinrbad debt expense, an increase of approxima€ely illion in audit fees, and an increas
approximately $0.2 million in miscellaneous expenggeneral and administrative expenses as a pageeof revenue decreased to 184.1% in
the twelve months ended June 30, 2013 from 259rb#tei same period in 2012.
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Financial ExpensesFor the twelve months ended June 30, 2013, fiahagpenses increased to approximately $14.1onifliom
approximately $38,000 during the same period ir22@he increase in financial expenses resultedgriiynfrom approximately $9.9 million i
non-recurring, non-cash effects of the debt indum@melated to the adjustment of the conversidp aitour convertible debentures upon their
retirement in April 2013, $4.3 million of amortizah expense pertaining to our convertible debestarel their related issuance costs (of w
approximately $3.6 million represented the non-reng, non-cash amortization of the discount of ¢bavertible debentures and their related
issuance costs). In addition to these non-recurring-cash expenses, we also incurred approxim@ief/ million of expense pertaining to our
obligation to issue shares of common stock withmayt consideration to the investors in our March2pdvate placement due to certain anti-
dilution rights held by such stockholders. Thespesmses were partially offset by approximately $tikion of financial income pertaining to
the revaluation of certain of our warrants dueuo siock price decreasing to $2.21 on June 30, 2843 $4.24 on June 30, 2012 and
approximately $0.1 million for the favorable impaétexchange rate differences for the twelve moetided June 30, 2013. Financial expense
as a percentage of revenue increased from 0.7Beitwelve months ended June 30, 2012, to 290.9%eisame period in 2013. If the non-
recurring, non-cash effects of the debt induceraadtamortization expense are removed, financiadesgs for the twelve months ended June
30, 2013 would have totaled approximately $0.7iamill an increase of approximately $0.7 million fréme same period in 2012.

Tax Expenses$:or the twelve months ended June 30, 2013, taxresgsedecreased approximately $6,000 to approxiyné8e000 for
the twelve months ended June 30, 2013, from apmabely $14,000 during the same period in 2012.

Net Loss Our net loss increased by approximately $11.%anilor 66.3%, to approximately $29.3 million fitre twelve months
ended June 30, 2013 from approximately $17.6 miltiaring the same period in 2012. The increasefdass resulted primarily from an
increase of approximately $14.2 million in finar@apenses, of which, approximately $13.5 millioaresnon-recurring, non-cash (see above
for explanation), partially offset by a decreaseproximately $2.4 million in operating expensase(above for explanation) and an increase
of approximately $0.1 million in gross profit (salove for explanation). If the non-recurring, na@sit effects of the debt inducement and
amortization expense are removed, our net lossdMoellapproximately $15.8 million for the twelve ritmmended June 30, 2013, as comparec
to a net loss of approximately $17.6 million foe tstame period in 2012, an improvement of approx@méil.8 million, or 10%.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Twelve months ended June 30, 2013 compared toetwednths ended June 30, 2012

Due to the underwritten public offering of our commstock in April 2013, pursuant to which we reesivnet proceeds
approximately $22.6 million, and the exchange antermdment agreement pursuant to which, as deschbtal, we fully satisfied ol
obligations under our senior secured convertibleedéures due April 15, 2014 in the prior principaiount of $11.7 million, we believe that
have sufficient cash to continue our operations 2015. However, depending on the operating regu2®14, we may need to raise additic
funds in 2015 to continue financing our operations.

General. At June 30, 2013, we had cash and cash equisatém@tpproximately $14.8 million, as compared t6.81Imillion as of Jur
30, 2012. We have historically met our cash nebdsugh a combination of issuing new shares, bomgvactivities and sales. Our ¢
requirements are generally for clinical trials, keiing and sales activities, finance and adminiseacost, capital expenditures and ger
working capital.
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Cash used in our operating activities was approtéma10.3 million for the twelve months ended J30¢ 2013 and $8.6 million f
the same period in 2012. The principal reasongHerusage of cash in our operating activities far twelve months ended June 30, -
include a net loss of approximately $29.3 milliaffset by approximately $13.5 million in na&sh financial expenses, approximately
million in non-cash share-based compensation tlaat largely paid to our directors, approximatelyd$@illion in a noneash royalties buyo
related to the restructuring of our royalty agreetrfer the MGuard Prime version of our MGuard C@wnstent, as discussed abov
decrease in working capital of approximately $0.#lion, approximately $0.2 million in depreciatioand amortization expenses .
approximately $0.2 million of miscellaneous expéumdis.

Cash used in our investing activities was approkiga$376,000 during the twelve months ended Jube2B13, compared
approximately $43,000 during the same period in220he principal reason for the increase in cagll urs investing activities during 2013 v
the purchase of property, plant and equipment pfapmately $202,000 (primarily new manufacturirgugoment and leasehold improvem
for our production facilities), an increase in rieted cash of approximately $56,000 and the fugpdii employee retirement funds
approximately $118,000.

Cash generated by financing activities was appratety $15.1 million for the twelve months endede30, 2013, compared to $1
million generated during the same period in 2012 Principal source of cash from financing actestiduring the twelve months ended .
30, 2013 was funds received from the issuance afeshin connection with the underwritten publiceoffig of our common stock
approximately $22.9 million, as well as approxinhat®1.0 million from the exercise of options andrveats, partially offset by the par
satisfaction of our convertible debentures for agpnately $8.8 million as described below. In castr during the twelve months ended .
30, 2012, we received approximately $9.9 millioonfr the initial issuance of these convertible deloest and associated warrants
approximately $1.5 million from the exercise ofiops, partially offset by a repayment of a longridoan of approximately $0.3 million.

As of June 30, 2013, our current assets exceededustent liabilities by a multiple of 4.68. Curteassets increased approxima
$4.6 million during the twelve months period, mgirdue to cash received from financing activitiesd aurrent liabilities increased
approximately $0.5 million during the same periédd& a result, our working capital surplus increasgdapproximately $4.1 million
approximately $14.9 million at June 30, 2013.

Convertible Debentures

On April 5, 2012, we issued senior secured condlertilebentures due April 5, 2014 in the originajregate principal amount
$11,702,128 and fivgear warrants to purchase an aggregate of 835/8f®s of our common stock at an exercise price’ Gper share
exchange for aggregate gross proceeds of $11.@millvith corresponding net proceeds of approxitgya$9.9 million. The convertib
debentures were issued with a 6% original issudism®unt, bore interest at an annual rate of 8%vearé convertible at any time into share
common stock at an initial conversion price of $7p@r share. Upon conversion of the convertibleedalres, investors were entitled to rec
a conversion premium equal to 8%, per annum, wilim# of 12% for the term of the convertible debames, of the principal amount be
converted. In addition, the investors had the rightequire us to redeem the convertible debentatemny time after October 5, 2013
months after the date of issuance) for 112% oftlke outstanding principal amount, plus all accruerest, and we had the right to prepay
convertible debentures after six months for 112%hefthen outstanding principal amount, plus afiraed interest. In connection with t
financing, we paid placement agent fees of $848athDissued placement agents warrants to purct&6@8/shares of common stock, v
terms identical to the warrants issued to the itores

On April 9, 2013, we entered into an exchange andraiment agreement with the holders of these ctihkeedebentures, pursuan
which, simultaneously with the closing of our ungitten public offering on April 16, 2013, and ialfsatisfaction of our obligations under
convertible debentures, we:

o repaid $8,787,234 in cash;

o issued 2,159,574 shares of common stock to thest®lof the convertible debentures, reflecting aveosion price of $2.(
per share for the remaining unpaid portion of thewertible debenture

« issued five year warrants to the holders of theswertible debentures to purchase an aggregaté®n081 shares of comm
stock for $3.00 per shar

« amended the securities purchase agreement putsuahich the convertible debentures were originalued to prohibit
from issuing securities containing edilution protective provisions; ar
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« amended the warrants issued in connection witlctimeertible debentures to (i) eliminate the autaeniacorporation of th
terms of any securities that are superior to tridsgich warrants, except with respect to exercigg @nd warrant covera
and (ii) provide that upon a fundamental transagtibe holders of such warrants will have the rightause us to repurch
the unexercised portion of such warrants at th&cBScholes value on the date of such fundamentaldcdiosn, payable
shares of common stock, rather than in cash agpweasously provided

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have no off-balance sheet transactions, arraegesmobligations (including contingent obligatiprer other relationships with
unconsolidated entities or other persons that hmvmay have, a material effect on our financialditbon, changes in financial condition,
revenues or expenses, results of operations, ligjuzhpital expenditures or capital resources.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In July 2012, the Financial Accounting Standardailassued Accounting Standard Update 2012-02afigibles-Goodwill and othe
(Topic 350): Testing Indefinite Intangibles AssktsIimpairment,” which amended the guidance in ARD-30 on testing indefinite-lived
intangible assets, other than goodwill, for impamnnallowing an entity to perform a qualitative iamment assessment. If the entity determine
that it is not more likely than not that the fa@lwe of the reporting unit is less than the cagyamount, further testing of indefinite-lived
intangible assets for impairment is not required @ entity would not need to calculate the faiue of the asset and perform a quantitative
impairment test. In addition, the standard didamoend the requirement to test these assets foirimguat between annual tests if there is a
change in events or circumstances; however, isegvihe examples of events and circumstancesntetitdy should consider in interim
periods. Accounting Standard Update 2012-02 wactiie for annual and interim impairment tests @anfed for fiscal years beginning after
September 15, 2012 with early adoption being peechitWe believe that the adoption of this standéhdhot have a material impact on the
consolidated financial statements
Factors That May Affect Future Operations
We believe that our future operating results wilhtnue to be subject to quarterly variations bagsah a wide variety of factors,
including the cyclical nature of the ordering patteof our distributors, timing of regulatory appats, the implementation of various phases of
our clinical trials and manufacturing efficiencitise to the learning curve of utilizing new materiahd equipment. Our operating results coulc
also be impacted by a weakening of the Euro amahgthening of the New Israeli Shekel, or NIS, baghinst the U.S. dollar. Lastly, other
economic conditions we cannot foresee may affestiorner demand, such as individual country reimbuesg policies pertaining to our
products.
ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.
Not applicable.
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Date
The following financial statements are includegasd of this Report (See Item 15):
» Report of Kesselman & Kesselman, Independent RergidtPublic Accounting Firm
« Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 20131
« Consolidated Statements of Operations for the YEaded June 30, 2013 and 2012
« Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity fevears Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012
« Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEeaded June 30, 2013 and 2012
« Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Acunting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Management’s Conclusions Regarding Effectiveness Biisclosure Controls and Procedures

We conducted an evaluation of the effectivenesaiof'disclosure controls and procedures”, as defimg Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15
(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as atedras of June 30, 2013, the end of the periodreduvey this Annual Report on Form-K.



The disclosure controls and procedures evaluat@smdone under the supervision and with the padtiidp of management, including
our chief executive officer and chief financialio#r. There are inherent limitations to the effestiess of any system of disclosure controls an
procedures. Accordingly, even effective disclostortrols and procedures can only provide reasoradsderance of achieving their control
objectives. Based upon this evaluation, our chietative officer and chief financial officer havencluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective at the reasonable assitavel as of June 30, 2013.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaimg adequate internal control over financigaring, as defined in Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchangeoh 1934, as amended. Our internal control oiericial reporting is designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynaiicial reporting and the preparation of the ctidated financial statements for external
reporting purposes in accordance with generallgpisd accounting principles.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢misstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness of internal cohbver financial reporting to future periods atéject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions othbategree of compliance with the policies or pchaes may deteriorate over time.

Management, including our chief executive officed @ur chief financial officer, assessed the effectess of our internal control o\
financial reporting as of June 30, 2013. In making assessment, management used the criteriarebfy the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commissioiriternal Control—Integrated FrameworkBased on its assessment and those criteria,
management has concluded that we maintained eféeictiernal control over financial reporting aslafie 30, 2013.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There have been no changes in our internal cooten financial reporting during the quarter endedel30, 2013 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallfeef, our internal control over financial reporting

Iltem 9B. Other Information.

Not applicable.
PART Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace.

The following table sets forth information regamgliour executive officers and the members of ourdoédirectors.

Name Age Position

Alan Milinazzo 53 President, Chief Executive Officer and Direc

Craig Shore 52 Chief Financial Officer, Chief Administrative Offic, Secretary and Treasu

Eli Bar 48 Senior Vice President of Research and DevelopnrehChief Technical Officer of InspireM
Ltd.

Robert Ratin 51 Vice President of Sales and Marketing of InspireMb.

Sol J. Barer, Ph.C 66 Chairman of the Board of Directa

James Barry, Ph.[ 54 Director

Michael Bermar 55 Director

Asher Holzer, Ph.C 63 Director

James J. Loughli 70 Director

Campbell Rogers, M.L 52 Director

Paul Stuke 58 Director

Eyal Weinsteir 58 Director
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Our directors hold office until the earlier of thdieath, resignation or removal by stockholdersrtil their successors have been
qualified. Our directors are divided into threesslas. Alan Milinazzo, Sol J. Barer, Ph.D. and Bduka are our class 1 directors, with their
terms of office to expire at our 2015 annual maepthstockholders. Asher Holzer, Ph.D., MichaelBan and Eyal Weinstein are our class 2
directors, with their terms of office to expireatr 2013 annual meeting of stockholders. Campbajjdrs, M.D., James Barry, Ph.D. and Ja
J. Loughlin are our class 3 directors, with theimis of office to expire at our 2014 annual meetihgtockholders. At each annual meeting of
stockholders, directors elected to succeed thasetdrs whose terms expire shall be elected ferra df office to expire at the third succeec
annual meeting of stockholders after their elegtivith each director to hold office until his orrteiccessor shall have been duly elected and
qualified.

Our officers hold office until the earlier of theleath, resignation or removal by our board ofdoes or until their successors have
been selected. They serve at the pleasure of audwd directors.

Executive Officers and Directors

Alan Milinazzo has served as our president, chief executive oféind director since January 3, 2013. Mr. Milinazeoved as
president and chief executive officer of Orthofistdrnational N.V., a Nasdag-listed medical devioapany, until August 2011, a position he
was promoted to in 2006 after being hired a yedregas chief operating officer. He also servedabrector of Orthofix International N.V.
from December 2006 until June 2012. From 2002 @b2®r. Milinazzo was the general manager of MedirpInc.’s coronary and peripheral
vascular businesses. Mr. Milinazzo also spent B2syas an executive with Boston Scientific Corporain numerous roles, including vice
president of marketing for SCIMED Europe. Mr. Mairzzo has over 20 years of experience in manageamennarketing, including positions
with Aspect Medical Systems and American Hospitgd@y. As chief executive officer, Mr. Milinazzofssition on the board ensures a unity
of vision between the broader goals of our company our day-to-day operations.

Craig Shore has served as our chief financial officer, secyetand treasurer since March 31, 2011 and as oaf administrative
officer since May 3, 2013. In addition, since Nommn10, 2010, Mr. Shore has served as InspireMD4d tice president of business
development. From February 2008 through June 2@09Shore served as chief financial officer of Wo@roup Capital Ltd. and Nepco Star
Ltd., both publicly traded companies on the TelABtock Exchange, based in Tel Aviv, Israel. Fromréh 2006 until February 2008, Mr.
Shore served as the chief financial officer of @&t Solutions Ltd., a provider of advanced cellplablic telephony solutions for low to mid
income populations of developing countries baseiziar, Israel. Mr. Shore has over 25 years of elgpee in financial management in the
U.S., Europe and Israel. His experience includessng capital both in the private and public maskédr. Shore graduated with honors and
received a B.Sc. in Finance from Pennsylvania $faigersity and an M.B.A. from George Washingtoniuémsity.

Eli Bar has served as InspireMD Ltd.’s senior vice pregidémesearch and development and chief technitiako since February
2011. Prior to that, he served as InspireMD Ltdite president of research and development sin¢eb®c2006 and engineering manager
since June 2005. Mr. Bar has over 15 yeaxgerience in medical device product developmemt.Bdr has vast experience building a comg
research and development structure, managing tlamsthe idea stage to an advanced marketable ptode has been involved with many
medical device projects over the years and hasale@ a synthetic vascular graft for femoral antboary artery replacement, a covered sten
and a fully implantable ventricular assist devidie. Bar has more than nine filed device and metbaignt applications and he has initiated
medical device projects. Mr. Bar is also a directoBlue Surgical Ltd., a medical device compangdshin Israel. Mr. Bar graduated from N
Haven University in Connecticut with a B.Sc. in Maaical Engineering.

Robert Ratini has served as InspireMD Ltd.’s vice president tdssand marketing in a full-time capacity sinceean2012 and
served in a part-time capacity from March 27, 20agl May 31, 2012. From April 2011 through Marc6, 2012, Mr. Ratini served as a
business consultant and the vice president of basidevelopment for Easy Med Services, Inc. in Gerigwitzerland, which focuses on
telemedicine software products, Stentys SA in P&risnce, which focuses on self-expanding corostayts, and Parvulus SA in Lonay,
Switzerland, which concentrates on intra annulartwalve repair rings. From October 2009 througdrdhh 2011, Mr. Ratini served as the
director of marketing for Orbusneich Medical, whigtoduces and sells interventional cardiology potsitand from October 2006 through
September 2009, Mr. Ratini served as vice presigletial marketing and EMEA sales for Biosensorermdtional, Switzerland, where he
established a global sales and marketing departamehted the launch of the Bio Matrix drug elutstgnt. Mr. Ratini has extensive cardiology
and vascular experience and has worked in the mlddformation technology industry since 1989. Ratini graduated from the University of
Applied Sciences in Bienne, Switzerland with a Mastf Computer Science.
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Sol J. Barer, Ph.D., has served as a director since July 11, 201 hasderved as our chairman since November 16, Byl Barer
has 25 years of experience with publicly tradedduibnology companies. In 1980, when Dr. Barer widls @elanese Research Company, he
formed the biotechnology group that was subsequeptin out to form Celgene Corporation. Dr. Bapad 18 years leading Celgene
Corporation as president, chief operating offiaedt ahief executive officer, culminating with hisitee as Celgene Corporation’s executive
chairman and chairman beginning in May 2006 urngilratirement in June 2011. Dr. Barer is also ador of Cerecor, Inc., Edge Therapeu
Inc., Medgenics, Inc., ContraFect Corporation, Ausid herapeutics, Inc. and Aegerion Pharmaceutitalsand serves as a senior advisor to
number of other biotechnology companies. Dr. Begeeived a Ph.D. in organic chemistry from Rutdémésersity. Dr. Barer brings to the
board significant scientific and executive leadgr&xperience in the U.S. biotechnology industrg prior service on the board of directors of
other publicly-held biopharmaceutical companiesyal as a unique perspective on the best methbgsowth for a biotechnology company.

James Barry, Ph.D., has served as a director since January 30, ZIX1Barry has served as executive vice presidethichief
operating officer at Arsenal Medical Inc., a metid@vice company focused on local therapy, sinqgae®eber 2011. Dr. Barry also heads his
own consulting firm, Convergent Biomedical GroupQ,ladvising medtech companies on product developragrategy, regulatory challenges
and fund raising. Until June 2010, he was senioe president, corporate technology developmenbatd® Scientific Corporation, where he
was in charge of the corporate research and dewelnpand pre-clinical sciences functions. Dr. Bgoiged Boston Scientific in 1992 and
oversaw its efforts in the identification and deyeghent of drug, device and biological systems fipligations with implantable and catheter-
based delivery systems. He currently serves om@euof advisory boards including the College afBedical Engineering at Yale
University, the College of Sciences at Universityvassachusetts-Lowell, and the Massachusetts3dfence Center. Dr. Barry received his
Ph.D. in Biochemistry from the University of Mashasetts-Lowell and holds a B.A. degree in Chemifstygn Saint Anselm College. Dr.
Barry brings to the board over 20 years of expeegan leadership roles in the medical device inguabd significant medical technology
experience, in particular with respect to interi@mal cardiology products.

Michael Berman, has served as our director since February 7,.280.3erman is a medical device entrepreneur wheke/ with
high-potential development and early-stage comrakecimpanies. From 2005 to 2012, when the compasyseld to Boston Scientific, Mr.
Berman was a co-founder and the chairman of Bridge®edical, Inc., which developed technologyreet coronary and peripheral vascular
chronic total occlusions. Mr. Berman was also a imenof the board of UltraShape Ltd. from 2005 u2dil1, when the company was sold to
Syneron Medical Ltd. Mr. Berman has served (i) sig603 as co-founder and a director of Aetherwbeew I, a medical device incubator,
(i) since 2004 as a co-founder and director of@&#nil, Inc., a company developing a therapeutigdilgermia system for the treatment of
cardiac arrest, (i) since 2011 as an advisoatml since 2012 as a director of, Cardiosonic, mcompany developing a system for
hypertension reduction via renal denervation, §imge 2005 as a director of PharmaCentra, LLC, lwbieates customizable marketing
programs that help pharmaceutical companies conmateivith physicians and patients, (v) since 2G4 eofounder and director of Rebiol
Inc., a company developing an innovative treatnfi@n€ Diff colitis, (vi) since 2011 as a directar AngioSlide Ltd., a medical device
company that has developed an embolic capture plagity device, (vii) since 2011 as a director @aéiWalve, Inc., a medical device company
developing an aortic valvuloplasty balloon for treant of calcific aortic stenosis, and (viii) sin2@13 as a Director of ClearCut Inc., a medica
device company that has developed an MRI systertufoor margin assessment. Mr. Berman was a mentfliee @ata Sciences International,
Inc. board from 2001 until 2012. Mr. Berman bririgghe board his extensive executive and entrepraiexperiences in the field of medical
devices and interventional cardiology, which shaasdist in strengthening and advancing our strafegus.
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Asher Holzer, Ph.D., has served as our director since March 31, 2D.1Holzer served as our president from March ®1,12until
June 1, 2012 and served as our chairman from MaktcB011 until November 16, 2011. In addition, Bolzer served as the president and
chairman of the board of InspireMD Ltd. from Ap2iD07 until June 1, 2012. Previously, Dr. Holzerfded Adar Medical Ltd., an investment
firm specializing in medical device startups, aadved as its chief executive officer from 2002 tigb 2004. Dr. Holzer currently serves on the
board of directors of BioSig Technologies, Inc. aAdledical Ltd., O.S.H.-IL The Israeli Society oE€upational Safety and Health Ltd.,
Theracoat Ltd. (where he serves as chairman didhed), 2to3D Ltd. and S.P. Market Windows Cypids.Holzer earned his Ph.D. in
Applied Physics from the Hebrew University. Dr. et is also an inventor and holder of numerousnst®r. Holzer brings to the board his
more than 25 years of experience in advanced metbeices, as well as expertise covering a widgeasf activities, including product
development, clinical studies, regulatory affaimgrket introduction and the financial aspects efstent business.

James J. Loughlinhas served as our director since September 19, Bxl2oughlin served as the national directortuoé t
pharmaceuticals practice at KPMG LLP, and a fivarjerm as member of the board of directors of KPM®. Additionally, Mr. Loughlin
served as chairman of the pension and investmeninitbee of the KPMG LLP board from 1995 through 208e also served as partner in
charge of human resources, chairman of the persandegyrofessional development committee, secretadytrustee of the Peat Marwick
Foundation and a member of the pension, operatidgtategic planning committees. In addition, Myughlin has served as a member of the
board of directors of Celgene Corporation, a gldidapharmaceutical company focused on novel thesafoir the treatment of cancer and
inflammatory diseases, since 2006, including agretaan of the audit committee since June 2008 amémber of the compensation committee
since June 2008. Mr. Loughlin served as a memb#reoboard of directors of Alfacell Corporatiorhiapharmaceutical company primarily
focused on therapeutic drugs for the treatmentioter and other pathological conditions, until 2688 Datascope Corp., a medical device
company engaged in the interventional cardiology raliology, cardiovascular and vascular surgarg,aitical care fields, until January
2009. Mr. Loughlin brings to the board his valua@periences as national director of the pharmé=dstpractice at KPMG LLP, an extensive
background in accounting and financial reportingglying him as an audit committee financial expand prior service on the board of
directors of other publicly-held biopharmaceuticampanies.

Campbell Rogers, M.D., has served as a director since September 3, Bd1Rogers has served as chief medical officer of
HeartFlow, Inc., a cardiovascular diagnostics camypaince March 2012. Prior to joining HeartFlowcl, he was the chief scientific officer
and global head of research and development atisCGatporation, Johnson & Johnson, where he wamnesble for leading investments and
research in cardiovascular devices, from July 260@arch 2012. Prior to that, he was associateggsuir of medicine at Harvard Medical
School and the Harvard-M.1.T. Division of Healthi&@wes and Technology and director of the cardidleaterization and experimental
cardiovascular interventional laboratories at Baighand Women’s Hospital. He served as principatstigator for numerous interventional
cardiology device, diagnostic, and pharmacologigriis the author of numerous journal articlesypttrs, and books in the area of coronary
artery and other cardiovascular diseases and wa®thpient of research grant awards from the Matitnstitute of Health and the American
Heart Association. He received his A.B. from Hadv@ollege and his M.D. from Harvard Medical Schdaal. Rogers’ qualifications to serve
on the board include his significant experiencedrdiovascular devices, as well as his familianitth the operations of medical device
companies.

Paul Stukahas served as a director since August 8, 2011Skka has served as the managing member of Osirisd?s, LLC, an
investment fund, since 2000. Prior to forming GsRartners, LLC, Mr. Stuka, with 30 years of expece in the investment industry, was a
managing director of Longwood Partners, managinglistap institutional accounts. In 1995, Mr. Stydimed State Street Research and
Management as manager of its Market Neutral and@aid Growth Funds. From 1986 to 1994, Mr. Stukaeskas the general partner of St
Associates, where he managed a U.S.-based invespanership. Mr. Stuka began his career in 138@reanalyst at Fidelity Management
and Research. As an analyst, Mr. Stuka followedd &rray of industries including healthcare, egetgnsportation, and lodging and gam
Early in his career he became the assistant piortfehnager for three Fidelity Funds, including 8edect Healthcare Fund which was
recognized as the top performing fund in the Uo®tlie five-year period ending December 31, 1986.%fuka has served as a director of
Lucid, Inc. since June 2013. Mr. Stuka’s qualificas to serve on the board include his significirdtegic and business insight from his years
of experience investing in the healthcare industry.

Eyal Weinsteinhas served as a director since August 8, 2011\Wéinstein is the chief executive officer of LEOREXI., a
company developing and marketing dermo cosmetidymis. From 2001 to 2007, Mr. Weinstein worked asager-partner of C.I1.G., an
economic and accounting consultancy, consultindgefading Israeli banks, including Bank Leumi, Batépoalim, Israeli Discount Bank and
Bank Hamizrachi. From 2000 to 2001, he was manpggner of Exseed, a venture capital fund thatsteain early-stage companies.
Beginning in 1996, Mr. Weinstein was a partner Bmahder in the establishment of three high-tech mamies that were ultimately sold, two to
Microsoft Corporation. Mr. Weinstein currently sesvon the board of directors of Cell Buddy Netwioidk Mr. Weinstein brings to the board
his considerable management and business expersrare executive of several companies and investimeds in Israel.
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Messrs. Milinazzo, Shore and Ratini are partiesettain agreements related to their service asutixeoofficers and directors
described under “ltem 11. Executive Compensatigigreements with Executive Officers.”

Family Relationships
We have no family relationships amongst our dinecémd executive officers.
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act 0f412% amended, requires our directors and offieerd,persons who own more tl
ten percent of our common stock, to file with trec@&ities and Exchange Commission initial repoftewnership and reports of change
ownership of our common stock. Directors, officensl persons who own more than ten percent of aanam stock are required by Securi
and Exchange Commission regulations to furnish itis eopies of all Section 16(a) forms they file.

To our knowledge, based solely on a review of thgies of such reports furnished to us, during thelte months ended June
2013, each of our directors, officers and grediantten percent stockholders complied with all ®act6(a) filing requirements applicable
our directors, officers and greater than ten pdretmckholders, except that each of Messrs. Ratimi Stuka and Dr. Barer reported
transaction on a late Form 4, Mr. Milinazzo twieported a transaction on a late Form 4 and Mr.r8aorted a series of nine transactions
late Form 4.

Board Committees

Our board of directors has established an audintitiere, a nominating and corporate governance cti@ednd a compensation
committee, each of which has the composition asdaesibilities described below.

Audit Committee Our audit committee is currently comprised of BtesLoughlin, Stuka and Weinstein and Dr. Baracheof whom
our board has determined to be financially litegatd qualify as an independent director under 8e@&03 of the NYSE MKT rules. Mr.
Loughlin is the chairman of our audit committee gudlifies as a financial expert, as defined iml#07(d)(5)(ii) of Regulation - The audi
committee’s duties are to recommend to our boawirettors the engagement of independent audiboasidit our financial statements and to
review our accounting and auditing principles. Bleit committee will review the scope, timing aeéd for the annual audit and the results o
audit examinations performed by the internal auditnd independent public accountants, includied tiecommendations to improve the
system of accounting and internal controls.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committ&air nominating and corporate governance commistearrently comprised of
Messrs. Berman, Stuka and Weinstein and Dr. Basaty of whom qualify as an independent directoeuisection 803 of the NYSE MKT
rules. Mr. Berman is the chairman of our nominating corporate governance committee. The nominatiggcorporate governance commi
identifies and recommends to our board of diredtwdvziduals qualified to be director nomineesabidition, the nominating and corporate
governance committee recommends to our board ettdirs the members and chairman of each board ateemiho will periodically review
and assess our code of business conduct and atfdasur corporate governance guidelines. The ndmgand corporate governance
committee also makes recommendations for changasrtoode of business conduct and ethics and apocate governance guidelines to our
board of directors, reviews any other matters eeléb our corporate governance and oversees thgatioa of our board of directors and our
management.

The nominating and corporate governance committéeansider all proposed nominees for the boardicéctors, including those
forward by stockholders. Stockholder nominationsudth be in writing, addressed to the nominating aogporate governance committet
care of the secretary at InspireMD, Inc., 800 BumyisStreet, Suite 16041, Boston, MA 02199, in adance with the provisions of ¢
Amended and Restated Bylaws.
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Compensation CommitteéDur compensation committee is currently compriseiessrs. Stuka and Loughlin and Dr. Barer, ez
whom qualify as an independent director under 8a@®D3 of the NYSE MKT rules. Mr. Stuka is the ch&n of our compensation commit
The compensation committee reviews and approvesalary and benefits policies, including compemsatf executive officers and directc
The compensation committee also administers ogkgiption plans and recommends and approves goésteck options under such plans.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a code of ethics and business cotitht applies to our officers, directors and asgpks, including our princig
executive officer, principal financial officer apdincipal accounting officer, which is posted o sebsite at www.inspiread.com. We inter
to disclose future amendments to certain provisioihthe code of ethics, or waivers of such provisigranted to executive officers
directors, on this website within four businesssdfplowing the date of such amendment or waiver.
Item 11. Executive Compensatior
Summary Compensation Table

The table below sets forth, for the twelve monthqekended June 30, 2013, the six month period@ddae 30, 2012 and the twelve
month period ended December 31, 2011, the compenszdrned by Alan Milinazzo, our president ande€tleixecutive officer, Craig Shore, «
chief financial officer, secretary and treasuresb&t Ratini, the vice president of sales and ntanfgef InspireMD Ltd., and Ofir Paz, our
former chief executive officer.

Restricted All Other

Name and Principal Salary Option stock Compensatior Total
Position Year $)Q Awards($)(2) Awards($)(2) $)Q $)Q
Alan Milinazzo (3)
President and Chief Executive Offic 201z 222,50( 1,837,44 1,988,72! 9,81%(4) 4,058,47
Craig Shore

Chief Financial Officer, Chief
Administrative Officer, Secretary al

Treasurer(5) 201z 165,08: 45,05¢ - 42,88(6) 253,02:
2012 76,717 139,49¢ - 18,18((6) 234,39t
2011 118,33 260,55« - 40,54¢6) 419,43

Robert Ratini
Vice President of Sales and Marketir

of InspireMD Ltd.(7) 201z - - - 323,47(8) 323,47:
2012 - 84,40: - 55,64(8) 140,04
Ofir Paz (9)
Former Chief Executive Offic(10) 201z 96,35¢ - - 228,77{(11) 325,13:
2012 121,32 - 32,27((11) 153,59
2011 57,79¢ - - 189,24{(11) 247,03
(1) Compensation amounts received in non-U.S. nayr@dave been converted into U.S. dollars usingttezage exchange rate for

the applicable year. The average exchange ra0ft8 was 3.7944 NIS per dollar, the average exgiaate for 2012 was 3.80
NIS per dollar and the average exchange rate fbt #¢as 3.5781 NIS per dolle
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(2) The amounts in this column reflect the dollaroaints recognized for financial statement reportingposes with respect to the
twelve month period ended June 30, 2013, the sintmperiod ended June 30, 2012 and the twelve nymeribd ended Decemk
31, 2011 in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718r Falue is based on the Black-Scholes option pgiciodel using the fair
value of the underlying shares at the measurenaat Bor additional discussion of the valuatioruag#tions used in determining
stock-based compensation and the grant date flaie ¥ar stock options, see “Management’s Discussaiath Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operation - Critical Acnting Policies-Share-Based Compensation” and Ndt&ighificant
Accounting Policies” and Note 9-Equitgf the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statesfam the Twelve Months Ended Ju
30, 2013 included herei

3) Mr. Milinazzo served as our director during thelve month period ended June 30, 2013 but dideaeive any additional
compensation for his services as direc
4 Mr. Milinazzc's other compensation consisted solely of beneditded to health insurance in 20

(5) For the twelve months ended June 30, 2012 Stiore’s total compensation was $334,208, consistii$j 56,873 in salary,
$139,499 in option awards and $37,836 in other earsation

(6) Mr. Shore’s other compensation consisted saélyenefits in 2012 and 2013 and consisted of mamdaward valued at $5,266
and $35,280 in benefits in 2011. In each of 2001, 22and 2013, Mr. Shore’s benefits included outtrdioutions to his severance,
pension, vocational studies and disability funasaanual recreation payment, a company car angbleelte, and a daily food
allowance

@) For the twelve months ended June 30, 2012 Rdtini’'s total compensation was $334,208, congistin$84,403 in option awards
and $55,645 in other compensati

(8) Mr. Ratini’'s other compensation consisted 04,831 in consulting salary and $20,934 in ben@fi3012 and $201,780 in
consulting salary and $121,693 in benefits in 2048.Ratini’s benefits included our contributiorsttis severance, pension and
an annual recreation payme

(9) Mr. Paz served as our director until his reatgom on September 3, 2013 but did not receiveaalujtional compensation for his
services as directa

(20) For the twelve months ended June 30, 2012P¥slz’s total compensation was $282,733, consistit] 33,641 in salary and
$149,092 in other compensatic

(11) Mr. Paz’'s other compensation consisted of #Z2in consulting salary and $66,273 in benefit2011 and consisted solely of
benefits in 2012 and $90,804 in consulting salay $69,602 in benefits and $68,372 in vacation payo2013. In each of 2011,
2012 and 2013, Mr. Paz’s benefits included our routions to his severance, pension, vocationalistuand disability funds, an
annual recreation payment, a company car and kehq and a daily food allowance. The car-relaeefits for Mr. Paz were
valued at $12,549 in 2012 and $25,975 in 2(

Agreements with Executive Officers
Alan Milinazzo

On January 3, 2013, we entered into an employngreeaent with Alan Milinazzo to serve as our prestdchief executive officer
and a director. The employment agreement has tal iteirm that ends on January 1, 2016 and wilbruatically renew for additional one-year
periods on January 1, 2016 and on each Januasrdatiter unless either party gives the other paritfen notice of its election not to extend
such employment at least six months prior to the danuary 1 renewal date. If a change in conttouos when less than two full years remain
in the initial term or during any renewal term, #raployment agreement will automatically be extehiie two years from the change in
control date and will terminate on the second agmsiary of the change in control date.
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Under this employment agreement, Mr. Milinazzorniiteed to an annual base salary of at least $480,8uch amount may be redu
only as part of an overall cost reduction progrhat affects all senior executives of the compartydwes not disproportionately affect Mr.
Milinazzo, so long as such reductions do not redheébase salary to a rate that is less than 90¥teaimount set forth above (or 90% of the
amount to which it has been increased). The bdagysaill be reviewed annually by the board forriease as part of its annual compensation
review. Mr. Milinazzo is also eligible to receiva annual bonus of at least $275,000 upon the agfent of reasonable target objectives and
performance goals, to be determined by the boadirettors in consultation with Mr. Milinazzo on lbefore the end of the first quarter of the
fiscal year to which the bonus relates (exceptfitrathe current fiscal year, ending June 30, 2@i8 goals will be determined as soon as
practicable, and no later than March 31, 2013) anthe event actual performance exceeds the gba&$oard may, in its sole discretion, pay
Mr. Milinazzo bonus compensation of more than $2@6, In addition, Mr. Milinazzo is eligible to rege such additional bonus or incentive
compensation as the board may establish from tintiene in its sole discretion. In accordance witis Employment agreement, on January 3,
2013, we granted Mr. Milinazzo a nonqualified stegkion to purchase 525,927 shares of our comnamk stnade pursuant to a nonqualified
stock option agreement, an incentive stock optiopurchase 74,073 shares of our common stock, padeant to an incentive stock option
agreement, and 400,000 shares of restricted sadikh are subject to forfeiture until the vestirfgsach shares, made pursuant to a restricted
stock award agreement. The options have an exgritseof $4.05, which was the fair market valu@of common stock on the date of grant.
The options are subject to a three-year vestingg@eaubject to Mr. Milinazzo’s continued servicethwvus, with one-thirtysixth (1/36th) of sucl
awards vesting each month. The shares of restratte initially vested monthly over thirtsix months, with 1/36 vesting on February 3, 2(
March 3, 2013 and April 3, 2013. The grant was therended to vest annually over three years, wih 9ésting on January 3, 2014, and one-
third vesting on January 3, 2015 and January 35201 or before December 31 of each calendar Jamilinazzo will be eligible to receive
an additional grant of equity awards equal, inabgregate, to up to 0.5% of actual outstandingeshafr our common stock on the date of gi
provided that the actual amount of the grant walldased on his achievement of certain performabjeetives as established by the board, i
reasonable discretion, for each such calendar f#sah additional grant will, with respect to anyaals that are options, have an exercise pric
equal to the fair market value of our common staeid will be subject to a three-year vesting pesioldject to Mr. Milinazzo’s continued
service with us, with one-third of each additiogednt vesting equally on the first, second, andithinniversary of the date of grant for such
awards.

Mr. Milinazzo’s employment agreement also contaiegain noncompetition, no solicitation, confidetity, and assignment of
inventions requirements for Mr. Milinazzo.

Pursuant to Mr. Milinazzo’s employment agreemdntjr. Milinazzo’s employment is terminated upon Hisath or disability, by Mr.
Milinazzo for good reason (as such term is defiimellr. Milinazzo’s employment agreement), or bywighout cause (as such term is defined
in Mr. Milinazzo’s employment agreement), Mr. Midinzo will be entitled to receive, in addition téhvet unpaid amounts owed to him (e.g., fol
base salary and accrued vacation): (i) the proamamaunt of any bonus for the fiscal year of suchieation (assuming full achievement of all
applicable goals under the bonus plan) that he dvbale received had his employment not been tetednéi) a onetime lump sum severan
payment equal to 200% of his base salary, providatihe executes a release relating to employmatiers and the circumstances surroun
his termination in favor of the company, our sulzsids and our officers, directors and relatedipsiand agents, in a form reasonably
acceptable to us at the time of such terminatiigih vésting of 50% of all unvested stock optionsstricted stock, stock appreciation rights or
similar stock based rights granted to Mr. Milinazand lapse of any forfeiture included in suchrietgtd or other stock grants; (iv) an extens
of the term of any outstanding stock options oclstappreciation rights until the earlier of (a) t(&) years from the date of termination, or (b)
the latest date that each stock option or stockemgtion right would otherwise expire by its origl terms; (v) to the fullest extent permittec
our then-current benefit plans, continuation ofliteaental, vision and life insurance coveragetffar lesser of 18 months after termination or
until Mr. Milinazzo obtains coverage from a new dayer; and (vi) a cash payment of $35,000, which Milinazzo may use for executive
outplacement services or an education program paments described above will be reduced by angnpais received by Mr. Milinazzo
pursuant to any of our employee welfare benefihplaroviding for payments in the event of deatHdisability. If Mr. Milinazzo continues to
be employed by us after the term of his employnagnéement, unless otherwise agreed by the pamtigsting, and Mr. Milinazzo’s
employment is terminated upon his death or didgbly Mr. Milinazzo for good reason, or by us vath cause, Mr. Milinazzo will be entitled
to receive, in addition to other unpaid amountsateehim, the payments set forth in (i), (ii) amg) @bove. If, during the term of his
employment agreement, we terminate Mr. Milinazzaasigployment for cause, Mr. Milinazzo will only beti#ied to unpaid amounts owed to
him and whatever rights, if any, are availableita pursuant to our stock-based compensation plaasyaward documents related to any
stock-based compensation.
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Mr. Milinazzo has no specific right to terminate ttmployment agreement or right to any severange@ats or other benefits solely
as a result of a change in control. However, ihimit24 months following a change in control, (a). Miilinazzo terminates his employment for
good reason, or (b) we terminate his employmertiout cause, the lump sum severance payment to wakiéh entitled will be increased from
200% of his base salary to 250% of his base salaalyall stock options, restricted stock units, lstygpreciation rights or similar stock-based
rights granted to him will vest in full and be imdiately exercisable and any risk of forfeiture ira#d in restricted or other stock grants
previously made to him will immediately lapse.

Craig Shore

On November 28, 2010, InspireMD Ltd. entered imaeployment agreement with Craig Shore to sentasgsreMD Ltd.’s vice
president of business development. Pursuant tertfidoyment agreement, Mr. Shore was entitled tmathly gross salary of $8,750, which
amount increased to $10,200 upon consummationra$tmare exchange transactions on March 31, 2014 fuvther increased to $10,620 as of
July 1, 2011 and, on April 22, 2013, was further@ased to annual base salary of $175,000, reivedotJanuary 1, 2013. Mr. Shore is also
entitled to certain social and fringe benefits etsfarth in the employment agreement. The employragreement also contains certain
confidentiality, non-competition and na@olicitation requirements for Mr. Shore. Mr. Shig@lso entitled to, and received, a grant of opitr
purchase 45,000 restricted ordinary shares of l@sfid Ltd. which were converted into options to pguase 91,306 shares of our common s
(as adjusted for the one-for-four reverse stock epbur common stock that occurred on DecembeRR12) following the consummation of
our share exchange transactions on March 31, Rirsuant to Mr. Shore’s employment agreement,gretrent of a change of control of our
company, the majority of shares of our common stwour intellectual property that results in teentination of Mr. Shore’s employment
within one year of such change of control, the lstmmtions granted to Mr. Shore in accordance withterms of his employment agreement
were unvested will vest immediately upon such teation. Furthermore, pursuant to terms containédrinShore’s stock option award
agreement, in the event of a change of controuoftcompany, the stock options granted to Mr. Shioaéwere unvested will vest immediately
upon such change of control if such stock opticesnat assumed or substituted by the surviving @mplf Mr. Shore’s employment is
terminated without cause, Mr. Shore shall be etitb at least 30 days’ prior notice and shall &ie pis salary in full and all social and fringe
benefits during such notice period. If a major af@of control of InspireMD Ltd. occurs, Mr. Shordlwe entitled to at least 180 days’ prior
written notice and shall be paid his salary in &l all social and fringe benefits during suchiagoperiod. If Mr. Shore is terminated for cat
he is not entitled to any notice. On April 22, 20%@ modified the compensation package for Mr. 8hliomprovide for (i) the aforementioned
increase in base salary, (i) Mr. Shore being Blegto receive an annual bonus equal to up to 3DBsdase salary, at the sole discretion of
compensation committee, in consultation with ouetlxecutive officer, and (iii) the following tefrmation benefits upon Mr. Shore’s
termination of service as a result of death, diggbresignation for “good reason” or terminatiby us without “cause”: (a) a one-time lump
sum severance payment in an amount equal to 100d6.@&hore’s annual base salary; (b) 50% vestingllainvested stock options, restricted
stock, restricted stock units, stock appreciatights or similar stock based rights outstandinthattime of termination of service; and (c) the
right to exercise any outstanding stock optionstock appreciation rights for a period equal tolésser of (x) two years from the date of
termination of service, or (y) the period remainurgil the original expiration date of any suchstahding stock options or stock appreciation
rights. We also amended Mr. Shore’s outstandingpogtas of April 22, 2013 to provide that, uporearination of service as a result of death,
disability, resignation by Mr. Shore for “good reasor by us without “cause,” (i) 50% of the remagmunvested portion of such outstanding
options shall vest, and (ii) Mr. Shore has a pedqdal to the lesser of (A) two years from the dditeermination of service, or (B) the period
remaining until the original expiration date of bugutstanding options, to exercise such outstanolinigns.
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Subject to certain conditions, either party to emnployment agreement with Mr. Shore may terminatesimployment agreement
without “cause” (as such term is defined in Mr. &® employment agreement with us) upon at leasta83@’ prior notice to the other party or,
in the event of a major change of control in teohthe ownership of shares of our common stockusrimtellectual property, upon at least 180
days’ prior notice. During such notice period, wid @ontinue to compensate Mr. Shore accordingisogmployment agreement and Mr. Shore
will be obligated to continue to discharge and perf all of his duties and obligations under his Eipment agreement, and to cooperate with
us and use his best efforts to assist with themten of any persons that we have delegatedsionas Mr. Shore’s responsibilities. We believe
that this arrangement with Mr. Shore will assistruachieving a successful transition upon Mr. 8fodeparture. In addition, upon terminatior
without “cause,” we have the right to pay Mr. Shareimp payment representing his compensatiorh®snbtice period and terminate Mr.
Shore’s employment immediately.

If we terminate Mr. Shore’s employment without cauelr. Shore will be entitled, under Israeli law severance payments equal to
his last month’s salary multiplied by the numbeyeérs Mr. Shore has been employed with us. Inrdodéinance this obligation, we make
monthly contributions equal to 8.33% of Mr. Shorggdary to a severance payment fund. The total atraxcumulated in Mr. Shore’s
severance payment fund as of June 30, 2013 wa8HP@s adjusted for the conversion from New Isi@békels to U.S. dollars. However, if
Mr. Shore’s employment is terminated without cawseaccount of a disability or upon his death, fa3une 30, 2013, Mr. Shore would have
been entitled to receive $39,122 in severance usdeeli law, thereby requiring us to pay Mr. Sh$id,211, in addition to releasing the
$27,911 in Mr. Shore’s severance payment fund.h@rother hand, pursuant to his employment agreervgnShore is entitled to the total
amount contributed to and accumulated in his sexerg@ayment fund in the event of the terminatiohisfemployment as a result of his
voluntary resignation. In addition, Mr. Shore woblel entitled to receive his full severance paynuewer Israeli law, including the total
amount contributed to and accumulated in his sexerg@ayment fund, if he retires from our compangratfter age 67.

We are entitled to terminate Mr. Shore’s employniemhediately at any time for “causedq such term is defined in the agreemen

the Israeli Severance Payment Act 1963), upon wlaifter meeting certain requirements under theiegpe law and recent Israeli Labor court
requirements, we believe we will have no furthdigation to compensate Mr. Shore.
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Also, upon termination of Mr. Shore’s employment émy reason, we will compensate him for all unusschtion days accrued.

On May 3, 2013, we appointed Mr. Shore as our diefiinistrative officer and granted him an optioptrrchase 25,000 shares of
common stock, at an exercise price of $2.95, wiir@a of ten years, vesting in three equal anmstaliments, subject to Mr. Shore’s
continued service with us.

Robert Ratini

On March 27, 2012, InspireMD Ltd. entered into asidtancy agreement with Robert Ratini to servimsgireMD Ltd.’s vice-
president of sales and marketing. Until May 31,20r. Ratini provided services on a part-time basid, beginning on June 1, 2012, he has
served as the full-time vigeresident of sales and marketing. Mr. Ratini istkeat to receive $20,000 per month in considerat@rhis service:
which was paid on a pro-rata basis for the hounwdrked until May 31, 2012, and is also entitleadegoeive a monthly phase-in payment of
$7,000 from June 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 Rdtini is eligible to receive various performan@séd commissions, which are dependen
upon the levels of revenue generated by his satestg. The consultancy agreement also contaimtageconfidentiality, non-competition and
non-solicitation requirements for Mr. Ratini. Thensultancy agreement has no termination date, bythwa terminated without cause by
InspireMD Ltd. upon 90 daygrior written notice if such notice is submittedeafSeptember 1, 2012. If Mr. Ratini is terminatedcause, he |
not entitled to any notice.

Ofir Paz

On April 1, 2005, InspireMD Ltd. entered into anoyment agreement with Ofir Paz to serve as ledpid Ltd.’s chief executive
officer. Such employment agreement was subsequantgnded on October 1, 2008 and March 28, 201%uBat to this employment
agreement, as amended, Mr. Paz was entitled tonghiga@ross salary of $15,367. Mr. Paz was alsdledtto certain social and fringe benefits
as set forth in the employment agreement, whicklédt25% of his gross salary, as well as a companyMr. Paz was also entitled to a
minimum bonus equivalent to three monthly grosarggbayments based on achievement of objectiveshendpproval of the board of
directors. Mr. Paz was eligible to receive stockays pursuant to this agreement following itsmsianth anniversary, subject to board appr¢
If Mr. Paz’'s employment was terminated with or weitth cause, he was entitled to at least six momitist notice and would have been paid his
salary and all social and fringe benefits in fulfidg such notice period.

On April 1, 2011, in order to obtain more favorata® treatment in Israel, the employment agreemthtMr. Paz was terminated a
InspireMD Ltd. entered into a consultancy agreemtit A.S. Paz Management and Investment Ltd.,rdityewholly-owned by Mr. Paz,
through which Mr. Paz was retained to serve asiles{D Ltd.'s chief executive officer. Pursuant tag consultancy agreement, Mr. Paz was
entitled to a monthly consultancy fee of $21,563. Rz was also entitled to a minimum bonus eqeitab three monthly gross salary
payments based on achievement of objectives anapiiv@val of the board of directors. The consulfeagreement also contains certain
confidentiality, non-competition and non-solicitatirequirements for Mr. Paz. If Mr. Paz's employieas terminated without cause, he was
entitled to at least six months’ prior notice analud have been paid his consultancy fee during satice period.

At the request of the compensation committee, gffe@as of December 1, 2011, Mr. Paz agreed todatdd as an employee for
purposes of paying Mr. Paz’s salary and benefither than as a consultant under Mr. Paz’'s comsnjitagreement.

On January 3, 2013, Mr. Paz resigned as our ckexfgive officer, and in connection with Mr. Pagésignation, InspireMD Ltd. and
A.S. Paz Management and Investment Ltd. enteredaiiseparation agreement and release, pursuatiti¢h,vamong other things, the
consultancy agreement, dated as of April 1, 20§ between InspireMD Ltd. and A.S. Paz Managémwes terminated and Mr. Paz
resigned as chief executive officer of InspireM@.Land as a director of InspireMD Ltd. In accordandth the terms of the consultancy
agreement, we continued to pay Mr. Paz’'s monthhsatiancy fee of $21,563 for six months followimgrination of the consultancy
agreement.
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2013 Grants of Plan-Based Awards

The following table sets forth information regamgligrants of plan-based awards to our named execafficers in the twelve months
ended June 30, 2013, as adjusted for the one-forréwverse stock split of our common stock thauoem on December 21, 2012:

Option Restricted Share
Awards: Awards: Exercise or Grant Date
Number of Number of Base Price of Fair Value
Securities Securities Option of
Underlying Underlying Awards Options Option
Name Grant Date #) #) ($/sh) Awards ($)
1/3/201: 600,00((1) - 4.0t 1,469,94!
1/3/201: - 400,00((2) 0 1,620,00!
Alan Milinazzo 4/25/201. 297,44°(3) - 2.0t 367,49!
President and Chief Executive Offic 4/25/201: - 179,86((4) 0 368,72!
Craig Shore
Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasu 5/3/201: 25,00((5) - 2.9t 45,05¢

Robert Ratini

Vice President of Sales and Marketing of

InspireMD Ltd. = o - - -
Ofir Paz

Former Chief Executive Offict - - - - -

(1) On January 3, 2013, Mr. Milinazzo was grantptiams to acquire up to 600,000 shares of our comstack at an exercise price of $4.05
per share. The options vest on a monthly basis thity-six months. The options had a fair markaiue of $1,469,945 as of January 3,
2013. The award was given upon Mr. Milinazzo joqour company to create an equity stake in usderoto align Mr. Milinazzo’s
objectives with those of our stockholders and allom to share in our future financial grow

(2) On January 3, 2013, Mr. Milinazzo was grante@,800 shares of restricted stock. The shares faid market value of $1,620,000 as of
January 3, 2013. The shares initially vested mgrdier thirty-six months until April 2013, when tigeant was amended to vest annually
over three years. The award was given upon Mr.ng#zo joining our company to create an equity stakes in order to align Mr.
Milinazza's objectives with those of our stockholders andvatim to share in our future financial grow

(3) On April 25, 2013, Mr. Milinazzo was grantedtiops to acquire up to 297,447 shares of our comstock at an exercise price of $2.05
per share. The options vest on an annual basistione® years. The shares had a fair market val$8®f,495 as of April 25, 2013. The
award was given in recognition of Mr. Milinazzolgsificant contributions in the successful closofgur public offering on April 16,
2013, our uplisting to the NYSE MKT on April 11, P®and our receiving approval with conditions fribma U.S Food and Drug
Administration to commence a clinical trial in s@ppof our investigational device exemption apgiiwa for our MGuard Coronary
product.

(4) On April 25, 2013, Mr. Milinazzo was granted91866 shares of restricted stock. The shares vesh@nnual basis over three years. The
shares had a fair market value of $368,725 as af 2B, 2013. The award was given in recognitiorMsf Milinazzo’s significant
contributions in the successful closing of our jmbffering on April 16, 2013, our uplisting to tiNY SE MKT on April 11, 2013 and our
receiving approval with conditions from the U.S Baod Drug Administration to commence a clinicalltin support of our
investigational device exemption application for MGuard Coronary produc

(5) On May 3, 2013, Mr. Shore was granted optionadguire up to 25,000 shares of our common stbak axercise price of $2.95 per share

The options vest on an annual basis over threesy&he options had a fair market value of $45,666faMay 3, 2013. The award was
given in connection with Mr. Shc's appointment as our chief administrative offic
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End 2013

The following table shows information concerningerarcised options and unvested restricted shatetaading as of June 30, 2013

for each of our named executive officers.

(1)
(@)

(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)

(7)
(8)

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Number of
securities securities
underlying underlying Number of Market value of
unexercised  unexercised shares of stoc shares of stock
options (#) options (#) Option exercise Option that have not that have not
Name exercisable  unexercisable price ($) expiration date vested (#) vested ($)
83,33! 516,66°(1) 4.0t 1/3/202: - -
366,66(2) 810,33
Alan 297,44°(3) 2.0t 4/25/202: - -
Milinazzo 179,86(4) 397,50
Craig Shore 60,87: 30,43%5) 4.92¢ 2/27/202: - -
25,00( 50,00((6) 3.2C 5/24/202. - -
25,00((7) 2.9t 5/3/202: - -
Robert Ratin 16,66" 33,33%(8) 2.9z 5/31/202. - -

Ofir Paz - - - - - -

These options were granted in January 2013rastdmonthly, commencing on February 3, 2013 asting on the next thirty-five months
of that date

These restricted shares were granted in Jardfdry and initially vested monthly over thirty-snonths, with 1/36 vesting on February 3,
2013, March 3, 2013 and April 3, 2013. The grans$ ween amended to vest annually over three yedits MB6 vesting in January 2014,
and on-third vesting on January 3, 2015 and January 36z

These options were granted on April 25, 2018 ast annually, with one-third vesting on April, 2914, April 25, 2015 and April 25,
2016.

These restricted shares were granted in AptiPP13 and vest annually, with one-third vestingApril 25, 2014, April 25, 2015 and April
25, 2016

These options were granted in February 2011lvastlannually, with one-third vesting on Novem®8y 2011, November 23, 2012 and
November 23, 201

These options were granted on May 25, 2012 andavestally, with on-third vesting on May 25, 2013, May 25, 2014 and N&y 2015
These options were granted on May 3, 2013 andaresially, with on-third vesting on May 3, 2014, May 3, 2015 and Mag®16.
These options were granted on June 1, 2012 andmestlly, with on-third vesting on June 1, 2013, June 1, 2014 and Jug015

Option Exercises and Stock Vested

There were no stock options exercised by our nagmedutive officers during the twelve months endeteJ30, 2013. 33,333 of Mr.

Milinazzo’s shares vested during the twelve momihded June 30, 2013.

2011 UMBRELLA Option Plan

On March 28, 2011, our board of directors and diotders adopted and approved the InspireMD, Int120MBRELLA Option Plar

which was subsequently amended on October 31, @0d December 21, 2012. Under the InspireMD, In6120MBRELLA Option Plan, we
have reserved 5,000,000 shares of our common &sckdjusted for the one-for-four reverse stock epbur common stock that occurred on
December 21, 2012) as awards to the employeesyitants, and service providers to InspireMD, Inud &s subsidiaries and affiliates
worldwide.
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The InspireMD, Inc. 2011 UMBRELLA Option Plan cuntly consists of three components, the primary placument that governs
all awards granted under the InspireMD, Inc. 20MBRELLA Option Plan, and two appendices: (i) Appen#é, designated for the purpose
of grants of stock options and restricted stockrd&/#o Israeli employees, consultants, officers athér service providers and other non-U.S.
employees, consultants, and service providers(igndppendix B, which is the 2011 U.S. Equity Imt&ve Plan, designated for the purpose of
grants of stock options and restricted stock awards.S. employees, consultants, and service pessigtho are subject to the U.S. income tax
On December 21, 2012, the stockholders approvedvilaeding of “incentive stock options” pursuanthe U.S. portion of the plan.

The purpose of the InspireMD, Inc. 2011 UMBRELLAt@p Plan is to provide an incentive to attract agighin employees, officers,
consultants, directors, and service providers wiseseices are considered valuable, to encouragasef proprietorship and to stimulate an
active interest of such persons in our developraadtfinancial success. The InspireMD, Inc. 2011 URERLA Option Plan is administered
our compensation committee. Unless terminatedezdi the board of directors, the InspireMD, Ing12 UMBRELLA Option Plan will
expire on March 27, 2021.

Director Compensation

The following table shows information concerning directors other than Messrs. Milinazzo and Paring the twelve months ended
June 30, 2013.

Fees Earned o

Stock All Other
Paid in Cash Awards Option Awards @ Compensatior Total

Name (%) ©) (%) (%) (%)

Sol J. Barer, Ph.C 6,25( — 168,03t — 174,28t
James Barry, Ph.[ 6,25( — 168,03t — 174,28t
Paul Stuke 6,25( — 126,02 — 132,27
Eyal Weinsteir 6,25( — 84,01¢ — 90,26¢
Asher Holzer, Ph.C — — — — —
James J. Loughli 6,25( — 263,43¢ — 269,68t¢
Michael Bermar 6,25( — 256,86( — 263,11(

(1) The amounts in this column reflect the dollaroaints recognized for financial statement reportingposes with respect to the twelve
months ended June 30, 2013, in accordance with FASB Topic 718. Fair value is based on the Blackefs option pricing model
using the fair value of the underlying shares atrtteasurement date. For additional discussioneofdtuation assumptions used in
determining stock-based compensation and the geaatfair value for stock options, see “Managensebiscussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operation — i€ait Accounting Policies — Share-Based Compensatod Note 2 —
“Significant Accounting Policies” and Note 10 — “Hity (Capital Deficiency)” of the Notes to the Colidated Financial Statements
for the Twelve Months Ended June 30, 2013 incluakermin.

We reimburse our directors for reasonable expeinsesred in connection with their service as dioest For the 2013 calendar year,
our board approved the following compensation forindependent directors serving as of Januar¥132in recognition of their board
service: (i) a $25,000 stipend, payable quartenhy (ii) an option to purchase 50,000 shares otoarmon stock. In addition, Dr. Barer, as
chairman of the board, received an additional eptiopurchase 50,000 shares of our common stocleachl director serving as chairman of a
board committee received an additional option tapase 25,000 shares of our common stock. Dr. Bdsyreceived an additional option to
purchase 25,000 shares of our common stock in nébaig of his extraordinary contributions to ouresgtions. We also made the following
initial grants to directors appointed to our boduding the twelve months ended June 30, 2013n(eptember 21, 2012, we granted to Mr.
Loughlin an option to purchase 25,000 shares otoormon stock, and (ii) on February 7, 2013, wanggéh to Mr. Berman an option to
purchase 124,415 shares of our common stock. e $at forth below sets forth the terms of eadibapyrant made to our non-executive
directors during the twelve months ended June @03 2each as adjusted for the one-for-four revsteek split of our common stock that
occurred on December 21, 2012. Each grant was onadier the InspireMD, Inc. 2011 UMBRELLA Option Plan
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Name

Shares Subjec
to Options

Grant Exercise

Date

Price

Vesting Schedule

Expiration

Fair Market

Value on

Grant Date

Sol J. Barer, Ph.D.

James Barry, Ph.L

Paul Stuke

Eyal Weinstein

Asher Holzer, Ph.C
James J. Loughli

Michael Bermar

50,00((1)

50,00((2)

50,00((1)

25,00(3)

25,00((4)

50,00((1)

25,00((3)

50,00((1)

May 9, 201: $ 2.7t One-third annually in 2014, 2015 and 2016 on the

May 9, 201 $

May 9, 201 $

May 9, 201 $

May 9, 201 $

May 9, 201: $

May 9, 201 $

May 9, 201 $

25,00((5) September 21,20 $

50,00((1)

25,00(3)

124,4145)

May 9, 201 $

May 9, 201 $

February 7, 201 $

2.7¢

2.7¢

2.7¢

2.7t

2.7¢

2.7¢

2.7t

9.0

)

2.7t

2.7¢

3.4

A

anniversary of the date of grant, provided thatBarer is
providing services to us or our subsidiaries ailiafés on
the applicable vesting dat

One-third annually in 2014, 2015 and 2016 on
anniversary of the date of grant, provided thatBarer is
providing services to us or our subsidiaries ailiafés on
the applicable vesting da

One-third annually in 2014, 2015 and 2016 on
anniversary of the date of grant, provided thatEanry is
providing services to us or our subsidiaries aitiafés on
the applicable vesting da

One-third annually in 2014, 2015 and 2016 on the
anniversary of the date of grant, provided thatBarry is
providing services to us or our subsidiaries aitiafés on
the applicable vesting dat

One-third annually in 2014, 2015 and 2016 on the
anniversary of the date of grant, provided thatBarry is
providing services to us or our subsidiaries aitiafés on
the applicable vesting da

One-third annually in 2014, 2015 and 2016 on
anniversary of the date of grant, provided that $tuka is
providing services to us or our subsidiaries aliafés on
the applicable vesting da

One-third annually in 2014, 2015 and 2016 on
anniversary of the date of grant, provided that Muka is
providing services to us or our subsidiaries ailiafés on
the applicable vesting dat

One-third annually in 2014, 2015 and 2016 on the
anniversary of the date of grant, provided that Weinstein
is providing services to us or our subsidiarieaftitiates on
the applicable vesting da

One-third annually in 2013, 2014 and 2015 on
anniversary of the date of grant, provided thaif
Loughlin is (i) not reelected as a director at Ot4 annual
meeting of stockholders, or (ii) not nominatedrieelection
as a director at our 2014 annual meeting of stddins, the
option vests and becomes exercisable on the datechf
failure to be reelected or nominat

One-third annually in 2014, 2015 and 2016 on the
anniversary of the date of grant, provided that Mwughlin
is providing services to us or our subsidiarieaftitiates on
the applicable vesting da

One-third annually in 2014, 2015 and 2016 on
anniversary of the date of grant, provided that Mwughlin
is providing services to us or our subsidiarieaftitiates on
the applicable vesting da

One-third annually in 2014, 2015 and 2016 on
anniversary of the date of grant, provided thaif Berman
is (i) not reelected as a director at our 2013 ahmeeting c
stockholders, or (ii) not nominated for reelectama directc
at our 2013 annual meeting of stockholders, thoptests
and becomes exercisable on the date of such fadure
reelected or nominate
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May 9, 202:
May 9, 202:
May 9, 202:
May 9, 202:
May 9, 202:
May 9, 202:
May 9, 202:

May 9, 202

September 21, 20

May 9, 202:
May 9, 202:

February 7, 20z

$

$

$

$

$

84,01¢
84,01¢
84,01¢
42,00¢
42,00¢
84,01¢
42,00¢

84,01t

137,41.

84,01¢
42,00¢

256,86(




(1) This option was granted as part of the dire's 2013 annual director compensati

(2) This option was granted as the dire’s 2013 annual compensation for his role as Chaimwfi#me Board of Director:

(3) This option was granted as the dire’s 2013 annual compensation for his role as a claairoh a committee of the Board of Directc
(4) This option was granted in recognition of the diog's extraordinary contribution to our operatio

(5) This option was granted in connection with the apipoent of this person to our board of direct:

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Mattet
The following table sets forth information with pest to the beneficial ownership of our commonlstas of September 16 , 2013 by:

« each person known by us to beneficially own moamth.0% of our common stock;
« each of our directors;

« each of the named executive officers; and

« all of our directors and executive officers as augr.

The percentages of common stock beneficially ovaredeported on the basis of regulations of thei®@zs and Exchange
Commission governing the determination of benelffici@nership of securities. Under the rules of tlee8ities and Exchange Commission, a
person is deemed to be a beneficial owner of arggdithat person has or shares voting power,altfincludes the power to vote or to direct
the voting of the security, or investment powerjalilincludes the power to dispose of or to dirbetdisposition of the security. Except as
indicated in the footnotes to this table, each beia¢ owner named in the table below has solengfind sole investment power with respet
all shares beneficially owned and each person’seadds c/o InspireMD, Inc., 800 Boylston Streelif&616041, Boston, MA 02199. As of
September 16 , 2013, we had 34,512,568 sharesndisy.
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Name of Beneficial Owner

Number of Shares Beneficially Owned?

Percentage Beneficially Owned!)

5% Owners

Orbimed Advisors LLC@)
Ofir Paz®

Officers and Director:
Alan W. Milinazzo

Craig Shore

Robert Ratin

Sol J. Barer, Ph.L
James Barry, Ph.L
Michael Bermar

Asher Holzer, Ph.C
James J. Loughli
Campbell Roger

Paul Stuke

Eyal Weinsteir

All directors and executive officers as a group &Psons

3,395,003
2,634,410)

852,02°©)
86,627
16,6677
2,754,16(®)
12,50(™
30,00(
2,525,10!
23,33:

932,7049
8,337
7,599,43

9.8%
7.€%

2.5%

* Represents ownership of less than one percent.
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(1)

(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)

(6)

(7)
(8)

(9)

Shares of common stock beneficially owned &edréspective percentages of beneficial ownerghipmmon stock assumes the
exercise of all options, warrants and other sdegritonvertible into common stock beneficially owrs such person or entity
currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 dafySeptember 16, 2013. Shares issuable pursudm &xercise of stock options and
warrants exercisable within 60 days are deemedandig and held by the holder of such options arants for computing the
percentage of outstanding common stock benefictadled by such person, but are not deemed outsigfimi computing the
percentage of outstanding common stock benefictallyed by any other persc

Orbimed Advisors LL(s address is 601 Lexington Avenue, 54th Floor, Nenk, NY 10022.

Based on a Schedule 13G filed with the SecuritesExchange Commission on April 22, 2013 by OrbiMelVisors LLC.

Mr. Pa:'s address is 32 Hatavor, Rishon Letzion, IsraeD@32.

This amount includes options to purchase 68,478sha common stock that are currently exerciseliiein 60 days of September |
2013. This amount does not include 93,132 shdresromon stock that Mr. Paz presently holds agérifor a family trust. Mr. Paz
does not have either voting power or dispositiveegroover these shares and disclaims all benefigiaership thereir

Includes options to purchase 166,667 sharesminon stock that are currently exercisable orasable within 60 days of September
16, 2013

Represents options that are currently exercisabéxercisable within 60 days of September 16, 2

Comprised of (i) 1,900,000 shares of commoukstnd (ii) options to purchase 854,167 share®wofroon stock that are currently
exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of Septmi6, 2013

Paul Stuka is the principal and managing memb@siris Investment Partners, L.P., and, as shiah beneficial ownership of the (i)
745,204 shares of common stock and (ii) currenthr@sable warrants to purchase 166,667 sharesnafon stock held by Osiris
Investment Partners, L.P., in addition to persgnadiiding options to purchase 20,833 shares of comstock that are currently
exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of Sepgm6, 2013
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of
securities
remaining
available for
future
Number of issuance unde
securities to b Weighted- equity
issued upon average compensation
exercise of exercise price plans
outstanding of outstanding (excluding
options, options, securities
warrants and warrants and reflected in
rights rights column (a))
Plan Category €)) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrs 3,278,26! 3.6¢€ 276,19:
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechdtglers 874,508 6.91 -
Total 4,152,77 4.3t 276,19:

(1) Comprised of awards made to individuals outsidelnspireMD, Inc. 2011 UMBRELLA Option Plan, dsscribed below:

In April 2008, we issued options to purchase 1.gi6dres of common stock to a provider of finderises/who assisted InspireMD
Ltd. in raising funds in 2008. The exercise pri€¢hese options is $4.93 per share. These optienfilly vested and expire in June
2016.

Options issued to a consultant: in May 2006, weddsoptions to purchase 83,636 shares of commaok &ia consultant. The
exercise price of these options was $0.76 per skéeebelieve these options have expired, but theyreluded above because such
expiration is currently under legal dispu

Options issued to former directors: in August 2044 ,issued options to purchase an aggregate o68%fares of common stock to
David Ivry and Fellice Pelled. Both Mr. Ivry and MPelled resigned as directors of InspireMD, Ltad March 31, 2011. Pursuant to
the terms of the directors’ vested options, theadsptions expired thirty days after the directoesignations. However, in
connection with their resignation, we granted Mryland Mr. Pelled each replacement options tolmse 40,581 shares of common
stock. During September and November 2012 Mr. éxgrcised 17,500 of his options into our commouglst@he exercise price of
these options is $4.92 per share and they expif2emember 31, 201

Options issued to current director: in November12Qte issued options to purchase an aggregate5gfd@ shares of common stock
to Dr. Barer, the chairman of our board of direstdrhe exercise price of these options is $7.8Glpare. An option to purchase
181,250 shares of common stock vested on Apri2013, when our common stock was first listed omatonal securities exchange.
An option to purchase 181,250 shares of commorkstested on May 10, 2013, after we received reseeseerage from a second
investment bank that ranked in the top twenty itmesit banks in terms of life science underwritirifse option to purchase 362,500
shares of common stock vests in substantially equasithly installments (with any fractional sharesting on the last vesting date)
the last business day of each calendar month otveo gear period from the date of grant, with thistfinstallment vesting on
November 30, 2011, provided that Dr. Barer is ptitlviding services to us in some capacity as ohesach vesting dat

Warrant issued to current officer: in March 201dr,Wwork performed in connection with the share exaje transactions and as bonus

compensation, we issued Craig Shore, our chiehéiia officer, secretary and treasurer, a five-ygarrant to purchase up to 750
shares of common stock at an exercise price of0§7e share
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence

On January 3, 2013, Mr. Paz resigned as our ckexfugive officer, and in connection with Mr. Pagsignation, InspireMD Ltd. and
A.S. Paz Management and Investment Ltd. enteredaiiseparation agreement and release, pursuatiti¢h,vamong other things, the
consultancy agreement, dated as of April 1, 20§ between InspireMD Ltd. and A.S. Paz Managénveas terminated and Mr. Paz
resigned as chief executive officer of InspireM@.Land as a director of InspireMD Ltd. In accordandth the terms of the consultancy
agreement, we continued to pay Mr. Paz’'s monthhsatiancy fee of $21,563 for six months followiegrination of the consultancy
agreement.

On June 1, 2012, in connection with his resignasispresident and director of InspireMD Ltd. and pnesident, we entered into a
consulting agreement with Dr. Holzer, which ternd@thon November 30, 2012, pursuant to which DrzEloprovided us with consulting
services in exchange for monthly payments of $20,8% February 21, 2013, we agreed to pay Dr. H&84,195 in consideration for
consulting services provided by Dr. Holzer to useithe expiration of his consulting agreement. dineunt equals three months of payments
under the expired consulting agreement plus afgkcaalue added tax.

In accordance with our audit committee charter aih@it committee is required to approve all relgiadty transactions. In general, the
audit committee will review any proposed transactizat has been identified as a related party actizn under Item 404 of Regulation S-K,
which means a transaction, arrangement or reldtipris which we and any related party are partistpan which the amount involved exceeds
$120,000. A related party includes (i) a directbrector nominee or executive officer of us, (iigecurity holder known to be an owner of more
than 5% of our voting securities, (iii) an immeeid&mily member of the foregoing or (iv) a corpaator other entity in which any of the
foregoing persons is an executive, principal orilgintontrol person or in which such person ha%wob greater beneficial ownership interest.

Director Independence

The board of directors has determined that DrseB#&arry and Rogers and Messrs. Loughlin, StuleairBin and Weinstein satisfy
the requirement for independence set out in Se8idof the NYSE MKT rules and that each of thasectors has no material relationship
with us (other than being a director and/or a stotder). In making its independence determinatitims board of directors sought to identify
and analyze all of the facts and circumstancesimgléo any relationship between a director, hisiadiate family or affiliates and our compe
and our affiliates and did not rely on categor&taihdards other than those contained in the NYSH MHe referenced above.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Service

The fees billed for professional services provitteds by Kesselman & Kesselman, Certified Publicdmtants (“Kesselman”), a
member of PricewaterhouseCoopers Internationalteatifor the twelve month period ended June 303201 six month period ended June
30, 2012 and the twelve month period ended DeceBihe2011, respectively, are described below.
Audit Fees

Kesselman billed us audit fees in the aggregateuatraf $290,000 for the twelve month period endeueJ30, 2013, $155,000 for the
six month period ended June 30, 2012, $255,00théotwelve month period ended June 30, 2012 an8,820 for the twelve month period

ended December 31, 2011. These fees relate taithiead our annual financial statements and théesg\of our interim quarterly financial
statements.
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Audit-Related Fees

Kesselman billed us audit-related fees in the agggeeamount of $135,000 for the twelve month peended June 30, 2013, $20,000
for the six month period ended June 30, 2012, $&D{Or the twelve month period ended June 30, 2012$106,300 for the twelve month
period ended December 31, 2011. The fees in 204t d=to the performance of audit-related servioesur registration statement on Form S-
1 initially filed with the Securities and ExchanGemmission on September 24, 2012 and amendmemétdh&he fees in 2012 related to the
performance of audit-related services for our ttegi®n statement on Form S-1 initially filed witie Securities and Exchange Commission ot
May 17, 2012 and amendments thereto. The feeslih Rflated to the performance of audit-relatedisesv/for our registration statement on
Form S-1 initially filed with the Securities and éange Commission on June 16, 2011, amendmenttdierd documentation of processes
and controls related to Sarbanes-Oxley Act compéan

Tax Fees

Kesselman billed us tax fees in the aggregate atafu$55,500 for the twelve month period ended BB®e2013, $44,000 for the six
month period ended June 30, 2012, $59,000 fontkévé month period ended June 30, 2012 and $26¢BGBe twelve month period ended
December 31, 2011. These fees relate to professsenvices rendered for tax compliance, tax adaimbtax planning.

All Other Fees

Kesselman did not bill us for any other fees fa tlvelve month period ended June 30, 2013, thmeixth period ended June 30, 2
or the twelve month period ended December 31, 2011.

For the portion of the fiscal year ended Decemlde2811 prior to our formation of the audit comedtt the board of directors
considered the audit fees, audit-related feesfetax and other fees paid to our accountants, absésl above, and determined that the payme
of such fees was compatible with maintaining thaejpendence of the accountants. Our audit comnputee@pproves all auditing services,
internal control-related services and permitted-aodit services (including the fees and terms thf¢te be performed for us by our
independent auditor, except for de minimis non-aselivices that are approved by the audit committes to the completion of the audit. The
audit committee may form and delegate authorityuiscommittees consisting of one or more members@ppropriate, including the
authority to grant pre-approvals of audit and pé&edinon-audit services, provided that decisionsuch subcommittee to grant ppprovals i
presented to the full audit committee at its nektesluled meeting.

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
Documents filed as part of report:

1. Financial Statements

The following financial statements are includedeirer

« Report of Kesselman & Kesselman, Independent RergidtPublic Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2013041

« Consolidated Statements of Operations for the YEaded June 30, 2013 and 2012

« Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity fevtears Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012
« Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEad®d June 30, 2013 and 2012

« Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Financial Statement Schedules

None
3. Exhibits

See Index to Exhibits
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

INSPIREMD, INC.

Date: September 17, 2013 By: /s/Alan Milinazzo
Alan Milinazzo
President and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Alan Milinazzo President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Alan Milinazzo (principal executive officer) September 17, 2013

Chief Financial Officer, Chief Administrative Offic, Secretary and

/sl Craig Shore Treasure

Craig Shore (principal financial and accounting officer) September 17, 2013
/s/Sol J. Bare Chairman of the Board of Directors September 17, 2013
Sol J. Bare

/sl James Barr Director September 17, 2013
James Barr

/s/ Michael Bermar Director September 17, 2013
Michael Bermar

/sl Asher Holzel Director September 17, 2013
Asher Holzel

/sl James J. Loughli Director September 17, 2013
James J. Loughli

/sl Campbell Roger Director September 17, 2013
Campbell Roger

/s/ Paul Stuke Director September 17, 2013
Paul Stuke

/sl Eyal Weinsteir Director September 17, 2013

Eyal Weinsteir
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Exhibit
No.

Description

21

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

10.1+

10.2+

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

Share Exchange Agreement, dated as of Decemb@029, by and among InspireMD Ltd., Saguaro Resautloe., and the
Shareholders of InspireMD Ltd. that are signatberéto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 18. 8aguaro Resources, Inc.
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Secustand Exchange Commission on January 5, 2011)

Amendment to Share Exchange Agreement, dated Fgi2d4a2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhiktt» Current Report
on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchaf@emmission on April 6, 2011)

Second Amendment to Share Exchange Agreement, Wteth 25, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Ex[ail8 to Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities andcEange Commission on April 6, 2011)

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatincofporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Curfeaport on Form 8-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission onlAp2011)

Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporated by referéo Exhibit 3.2 to Current Report on Form 8-lédiwith the Securities
and Exchange Commission on April 1, 2011)

Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Restatadificate of Incorporation (incorporated by refecerto Exhibit 3.1 to
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Secustand Exchange Commission on December 21, 2012)

Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated éference to Exhibit 4.1 to Amendment No. 3 to Reegi®n Statement on
Form S-1 filed with the Securities and Exchange @dission on March 5, 2013)

Amended and Restated 2011 Umbrella Option Plam(purated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Curre@p&t on Form 8-K
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiNovember 4, 2011)

Form of Stock Option Award Agreement (incorporalgdeference to Exhibit 10.2 to Current Report onnfr 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 6, 2011

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of March(31L, by and among InspireMD, Inc. and certaircpasers set forth
therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1i@0.2\mendment No. 1 to Registration Statement omF8r1 filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 26120

Form of $7.20 Warrant (incorporated by referencExhibit 10.6 to Current Report on Form 8-K fileithnthe Securities and
Exchange Commission on April 6, 2011)

Form of $4.92 Warrant (incorporated by referencExhibit 10.7 to Current Report on Form 8-K fileithnthe Securities and
Exchange Commission on April 6, 2011)

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of Julg®®), by and among InspireMD Ltd. and certain pasers set forth therein
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Aaent No. 1 to Registration Statement on Form fed fvith the Securities
and Exchange Commission on August 26, 2011)

Manufacturing Agreement, by and between InspireM& knd QualiMed Innovative Medizinprodukte Gmbldtetl as of
September 11, 2007 (incorporated by reference hibixL0.11 to Amendment No. 1 to Registration &ta¢nt on Form S-1 filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Aug6, 2011)

Development Agreement, by and between InspireMD &idi QualiMed Innovative Medizinprodukte GmbH,eghas of Janua
15, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2ad Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement@m¥FS-1 filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 261 Y0

License Agreement, by and between Svelte MedicsieBys, Inc. and InspireMD Ltd., dated as of Margh2D10 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Amendment No. Ramgistration Statement on Form S-1 filed with teeities and Exchange
Commission on August 26, 2011)
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10.10+

10.11+

10.12+

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21+

10.22+

10.23

10.24

Personal Employment Agreement, by and betweenrkigig) Ltd. and Eli Bar, dated as of June 26, 2086diporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.19 to Current Report omfir8¢K filed with the Securities and Exchange Consiois on April 6, 2011)

Employment Agreement, by and between InspireMD atd Craig Shore, dated as of November 28, 20t0i{orated by
reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Current Report omir8¢K filed with the Securities and Exchange Consiois on April 6, 2011)

Form of Indemnity Agreement between InspireMD, laed each of the directors and executive offideeseof (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.22 to Amendment No. 1 tgiRtation Statement on Form S-1 filed with the 8&ies and Exchange
Commission on August 26, 2011)

Form of Warrant (incorporated by reference to EiHiB.2 to Current Report on Formksfiled with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on April 22, 2011)

Agreement by and between InspireMD Ltd. and MeKedtaMaterial Processing, dated as of April 15, 20i€orporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.26 to Amendment No. 1 tgiReation Statement on Form S-1 filed with the B&ies and Exchange
Commission on August 26, 2011)

Agreement by and between InspireMD Ltd. and Natedi®hl Ltd, dated as of September 23, 2009 (inqatpd by reference to
Exhibit 10.27 to Amendment No. 1 to Registratioat&inent on Form S-1 filed with the Securities ardnange Commission on
August 26, 2011)

Exclusive Distribution Agreement by and betweerpireMD GmbH. and IZASA Distribuciones Tecnicas Sated as of May
20, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 8B@BAmendment No. 3 to Registration Statementa@mFS-1 filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on October@?1)2

Amendment to the Distribution Agreement by and lestwInspireMD GmbH. and IZASA Distribuciones Te@siSA, dated as
of February 2011 (incorporated by reference to Eix1i0.37 to Amendment No. 3 to Registration Staehon Form S-1 filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on lagst@2, 2011)

Exclusive Distribution Agreement by and betweerpireMD Ltd. and Tzamal-Jacobsohn Ltd., dated d3exfember 24, 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to Aaent No. 3 to Registration Statement on Form fed fvith the Securities
and Exchange Commission on October 12, 2011)

Exclusive Distribution Agreement by and betweerpireMD Ltd. and Kirloskar Technologies (P) Ltd. teld as of May 13, 201
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.39 to Adent No. 3 to Registration Statement on Form fed fvith the Securities
and Exchange Commission on October 12, 2011)

Letter Agreement by and between InspireMD Ltd. &imdmal-Jacobsohn Ltd., dated as of May 9, 201 bfpurated by
reference to Exhibit 10.43 to Amendment No. 4 tgiRation Statement on Form S-1 filed with the B&ies and Exchange
Commission on December 1, 2011)

Stock Award Agreement, dated as of November 161203 and between InspireMD, Inc. and Sol J. B&arD. (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report onnfr 8K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommisgsiarNovember 1¢
2011)

Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, dated as o¥&ober 16, 2011, by and between InspireMD, Inc.%old). Barer, Ph.C
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to CntiiReport on Form 8-K filed with the Securities d&wthange Commission on
November 18, 2011

Amendment No. 1 to Securities Purchase Agreemaieddas of June 21, 2011, by and among Inspireli® and the
purchasers that are signatory thereto (incorpofayagference to Exhibit 10.43 to Annual Reportcamm 10-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 13201

Amendment No. 2 to Securities Purchase Agreemateddas of November 14, 2011, by and among Insfixekt. and the
purchasers that are signatory thereto (incorpofayagference to Exhibit 10.44 to Annual Reportramm 10-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 13201
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10.25+

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37+

10.38+

10.39+

Consultancy Agreement, dated March 27, 2012, bybaetaieen InspireMD Ltd. and Robert Ratini (incoated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filedtlvthe Securities and Exchange Commission on Zp2i012)

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated April 5, 2B 2nd between InspireMD, Inc. and certain puretgset forth therein
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Catfeeport on Form 8-K filed with the Securities &xthange Commission on
April 6, 2012)

Form of April 2012 $1.80 Warrant (incorporated bjerence to Exhibit 10.3 to Current Report on F8k# filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 6, 2012

Registration Rights Agreement, dated April 5, 2dd2and between InspireMD, Inc. and the purchasetrforth therein
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Catfeeport on Form 8-K filed with the Securities &xthange Commission on
April 6, 2012)

Consulting Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2012nbiybetween InspireMD, Inc. and Asher Holzer, Pkifzorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on F8¢i filed with the Securities and Exchange Comimis®n June 5, 2012)

Exclusive Distribution Agreement, dated as of Audus2007, by and between InspireMD Ltd. and Kaffik (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.59 to Transition Reportramm 10-K/T filed with the Securities and Exchar@@mmission on
September 11, 2012)

Addendum to the Distribution Agreement, dated a3amfuary 18, 2011, by and between InspireMD Ltd. ardia Srl.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.60 to Bition Report on Form 10-K/T filed with the Secie# and Exchange
Commission on September 11, 2012)

Exclusive Distribution Agreement, dated as of M&y 2011, by and between InspireMD Ltd. and Bosédiing Ltd.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.62 to Bition Report on Form 10-K/T filed with the Secie# and Exchange
Commission on September 11, 2012)

Addendum to the Distribution Agreement, dated a8udust 29, 2011, by and between InspireMD Ltd. Bogti Trading Ltd.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.63 to Biian Report on Form 10-K/T filed with the Secig# and Exchange
Commission on September 11, 2012)

Amendment No. 1 to Registration Rights Agreemeated May 31, 2012, by and between InspireMD, Ind. the purchasers ¢
forth therein (incorporated by reference to Exhilfit65 to Transition Report on Form 10-K/T filedhwvihe Securities and
Exchange Commission on September 11, 2012)

First Amendment to License Agreement, dated Oct@beR012, by and among Svelte Medical Systems, ImgpireMD, Inc.
and InspireMD Ltd. (incorporated by reference tdibi 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed witle Securities and
Exchange Commission on October 23, 2012)

Second Amendment to the InspireMD, Inc. AmendedRestated 2011 UMBRELLA Option Plan (incorporatgdéference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filedtlwvthe Securities and Exchange Commission on Deeegth 2012)

Employment Agreement, dated January 3, 2013, bybahwleen InspireMD, Inc. and Alan Milinazzo (incorpted by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K fileith the Securities and Exchange Commission onalgmd, 2013)

Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, dated Jan3a3013, by and between InspireMD, Inc. and Alatirdzzo (incorporate
by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Current Report onnfr 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Cdasion on January 9,
2013)

Incentive Stock Option Agreement, dated JanuaB®033, by and between InspireMD, Inc. and Alan Mifiro (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Current Report on F8 filed with the Securities and Exchange Cominis®n January 9, 2013)
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10.47

10.48*

10.49*

211

23.1*
31.1*
31.2*
32.1*

32.2*

101**

Restricted Stock Award Agreement, dated Janua?pB3, by and between InspireMD, Inc. and Alan Mifiro (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Current Report on F8i filed with the Securities and Exchange Comimis®n January 9, 2013)

Separation Agreement and Release, dated Janua®y 3, by and between InspireMD Ltd. and A.S. Panag@ment and
Investment Ltd., Company No. 514480433 (incorpatdie reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Current Reporfonm 8-K filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Janya§13)

Exchange and Amendment Agreement, dated as of 8p2i013, by and among InspireMD, Inc. and eacldrobf Senior
Secured Convertible Debentures Due April 15, 2@ddofporated by reference to Exhibit 10.75 to Region Statement on
Form S-1 filed with the Securities and Exchange @assion on April 9, 2013)

Form of $3.00 Warrant (incorporated by referencExhibit 10.76 to Registration Statement on Forth f8ed with the Securitie
and Exchange Commission on April 9, 2013)

Letter Agreement, dated as of April 15, 2013, bgt among InspireMD, Inc. and each holder of Senerused Convertible
Debentures Due April 15, 2014 (incorporated bynezfee to Exhibit 10.3 to Current Report on Fori 8led with the Securitie
and Exchange Commission on April 15, 2013)

Form of Amended $3.00 Warrant (incorporated byresfee to Exhibit 10.4 to Current Report on Form 8kd with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 153201

First Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated I3} 2013, by and between InspireMD, Inc. and Aléiinazzo
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Catfeeport on Form 8-K filed with the Securities &xthange Commission on
April 26, 2013)

First Amendment to Restricted Stock Award Agreemeated April 24, 2013, by and between InspireMiz, land Alan
Milinazzo (incorporated by reference to Exhibit2@ Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Seties and Exchange
Commission on April 26, 2013)

Master Services Agreement, dated May 8132by and between InspireMD Ltd. and Medpace, Inc

Second Amendment to License Agreement, dated ARR2013, by and among Svelte Medical Systems, ImgpireMD, Inc.
and InspireMD Ltd.

List of Subsidiaries (incorporated by referenc&xaibit 21.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filectwthe Securities and
Exchange Commission on April 6, 2011)

Consent of Kesselman & Kesselman, Cediftelblic Accountants
Certification of Chief Executive Officer Rwant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Fauant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant$ection 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted PuatsagSection 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant$ection 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted PatgacBection 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The following materials from the Company’s Annuagd®rt on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2fatBatted in XBRL
(eXtensible Business Reporting Language), (i) Casdd Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) Condensaddlidated Statements
of Income, (iii) Condensed Consolidated Statemeh@omprehensive Income, (iv) Consolidated StatémehCash Flows, (v)
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Stockholdepsitfand (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial Stagnts

* Filed herewith.

** Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, theshatctive Data Files on Exhibit 101 hereto are deknw filed or part of a registration
statement or prospectus for purposes of Sectioms 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amendesidaemed not filed for purposes of
Section 18 of the Securities and Exchange Act 8418s amended, and otherwise are not subjelhibity under those sections.

+ Management contract or compensatory plan or geraent.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the shareholders of
InspireMD, Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated bedasheets and the related consolidated statemieapemtions, changes in equity and ¢
flows present fairly, in all material respects, fimancial position of InspireMD, Inc. (the “Compah and its subsidiaries at June 30, 2013
2012, and the results of its operations and ity dsvs for each of the two years in the period eahdune 30, 2013 in conformity w
accounting principles generally accepted in thetéthiStates of America. These financial statemergste responsibility of the Company’
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based on out.al@& conducted our audit of the
financial statements in accordance with the statglaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bogudited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finastiééments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on & basis, evidence supporting the amounts and digés in the financial stateme
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignif estimates made by management, and evaludimgoverall financial stateme
presentation. We believe that our audit provideasonable basis for our opinion.

Tel Aviv, Israel Kesselman & Kesselme

September 17, 201 Certified Public Accountants (Ist
A member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers Internatidmmited
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INSPIREMD, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(U.S. dollars in thousands)

June 30
2013 2012
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 14,82( $ 10,28«
Restricted cas 93 37
Accounts receivable
Trade 1,73¢ 1,82¢
Other 38¢ 264
Prepaid expenst 272 93
Inventory:
On hanc 1,59: 1,74¢
On consignment 63
Total current assets 18,90¢ 14,30¢
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, net 55C 462
NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Deferred debt issuance co 961
Fund in respect of employee rights upon retiren 40¢€ 282
Royalties buyout 884
Total non-current assets 1,29( 1,24:
Total assets $ 20,74 $ 16,01+

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theonsolidated financial statements.
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INSPIREMD, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(U.S. dollars in thousands)

June 30
2013 2012
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrue
Trade $ 831 $ 441
Other 3,02¢ 2,92t
Advanced payment from custom: 174 174
Deferred revenues 1C 1C
Total current liabilities 4,04 3,55(
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Liability for employees rights upon retireme 60C 354
Convertible loar 5,01¢
Contingently redeemable warra 1,70¢
Total long-term liabilities 60C 7,07¢
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES  (Note 8)
Total liabilities 4,64% 10,62¢
EQUITY:
Common stock, par value $0.0001 per share; 128)00Ghares authorized; 33,888,845 and 17,04(
shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 201304r&] respectivel 3 2
Additional paic-in capital 89,07¢ 49,10¢
Accumulated defici (72,98() (43,729
Total equity 16,10: 5,38¢
Total liabilities and equity $ 20,74t $ 16,01«

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theonsolidated financial statements.
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INSPIREMD, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(U.S. dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Year ended June 3(

2013 2012

REVENUES $ 487 $ 5,34¢
COST OF REVENUES 2,28: 2,84¢
GROSS PROFIT 2,59( 2,50(
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Royalties buyout expens 91¢

Other research and development expe 4,15¢ 3,98¢

Selling and marketin 3,61¢ 2,17¢

General and administrative (including $3,433 an®49 of share-based compensation for years en

June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectivi 8,97: 13,88

Total operating expens 17,66 20,04¢
LOSS FROM OPERATIONS (15,079 (17,54Y
FINANCIAL EXPENSES, net 14,17; 38
LOSS BEFORE TAX EXPENSES (29,25() (17,589
TAX EXPENSES 8 14
NET LOSS $ (29,259 $ (17,59
NET LOSS PER SHARE- basic and diluted $ (1.39 $ (1.04)
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES USED IN COMPUTING NET

LOSS PER SHARE -basic and diluted 20,995,88 16,707,59

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theonsolidated financial statements.
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INSPIREMD, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BALANCE AT JULY 1, 2011
CHANGES DURING 2012:
Net loss
Employee and non-employee share-based compensatic
expense:
Acquisition and cancellation of shat
Exercise of options by employ:
Beneficial conversion feature of convertible loan
BALANCE AT JUNE 30, 2012
CHANGES DURING 2013:
Net loss
Employee and non-employee share-based compensatic
expense:
Issuance of shares - public offering, net of $2,ik8lLance
costs
Issuance of share
Exercise of Warrant
Exercise of options by employees and-employees
Shares of common stock used to satisfy tax withhgld
obligations
2013 Exchange agreemen
Induced conversion of convertible dt
Reclassification of 2012 warrar
Issuance of warrants

BALANCE AT JUNE 30, 2013

Ordinary shares

Additional
Number of Par paid-in Accumulated Total
shares value capital deficit equity
U.S. dollars in thousanc

16,046,29 $ 2 % 33,28! % (26,129 $ 7,16(
(17,597 (17,59)
748,44¢ * 10,55¢ 10,55¢
(4,69¢) * (22) (22)
250,00( * 1,50( 1,50(
3,79( 3,79(
17,040,04 $ 2 $ 49,10¢ $ (43,729 $ 5,38¢
(29,259 (29,259
3,83¢ 3,83¢
12,500,00 1 22,87¢ 22,88(
1,168,51! * 3,23¢ 3,23¢
195,65: * 962 962
834,57( * 95 95
(9,50¢) * (27) (27)
2,159,57. * 8,10t 8,10¢
314 314
56¢ 56¢
33,888,84 $ 3 % 89,07¢ $ (72,980 $ 16,10:

* Represents an amount less than $1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theonsolidated financial statements.
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INSPIREMD, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(U.S. dollars in thousands)

Year ended June 30

2013 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss $ (29,25¢) $ (17,59Y)
Adjustments required to reconcile net loss to ashcused in operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic 20¢ 12C
Change in liability for employees right upon retirent 24¢€ 72
Financial expenses (incom 13,397 (65)
Shar+based compensation expen 3,83¢ 10,55«
Gains on amounts funded in respect of employeéasighon retirement, n (6) Q)
Royalties buyout expens 91¢
Changes in operating asset and liability ite
Increase in prepaid expens (79 (22
Decrease (increase) in trade receiva 8% (1,210
Increase in other receivabl (129 (93
Decrease in inventory on consignm 63 19
Decrease (increase) in inventory on h 151 (273)
Increase (decrease) in trade paya 39C (322)
Increase in deferred revent 1C
Increase (decrease) in other payable and advayreent from customers (30) 22¢

Net cash used in operating activities (10,300 (8,580
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Decrease (increase) in restricted cash (56) 30¢€

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (202) (290

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 12

Amounts funded in respect of employee rights ugdineament, net (11¢) (71)

Net cash used in investing activities (37€) (43
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from issuance of shares, net of $2,%2a&nse costs 22,88(

Proceeds from issuance of convertible loan andamsr net of $1,132 issuance costs 9,86¢

Exercise of options and warrants 1,057 1,50(

Repayment of long-term loan (281)

Acquisition and cancellation of shares (212)

Shares of common stock used to satisfy tax withihgldbligations (27)

Induced conversion of convertible debt (8,78%)

Net cash provided by financing activities 15,12! 11,06¢
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 89 (229
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 4,53¢ 2,21¢
BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING O F PERIOD 10,28 8,07(
BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERI OD $ 14,82( $ 10,28
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Taxes on income paid $ 7€ $ 17

Interest paid $ 745 $ 22F
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NON-CASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Classification of contingently redeemable warrdrdsn Long-term liability to equity $ 314
Royalties buyout in consideration of shares aniyeva $ 93C

In connection with the Exchange and Amendment Agexe the Company issued to the debentures hold&s®,574 shares
common stock and 659,091 five year warrants tolmasge shares of common stock of the Company. Sex=@ot

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theonsolidated financial statements.






NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

InspireMD, Inc. (formerly Saguaro Resources, Ina.pelaware corporation (the “Companyias formed on February 29, 20
On March 28, 2011, the Company changed its nanwsporeMD, Inc. in connection with a share exchatrgasaction between {
Company, InspireMD Ltd., a limited company incorgied under the laws of the State of Israel in AR5, and the sharehold
of InspireMD Ltd.

The Company, together with its subsidiaries, iseglical device company focusing on the developmedtcammercialization of i
proprietary stent platform technology, MGuard™. MgBdi provides embolic protection in stenting proaediby placing a micrc
mesh sleeve over a stent. The Compsuiitial products are marketed for use in patievitt acute coronary syndromes, not:
acute myocardial infarction (heart attack) and saplis vein graft coronary interventions (bypasgesy). The Company mark
its products through distributors in internationedrkets, mainly in Europe and Latin America.

In addition, the Company operates in Germany thndtgywholly-owned subsidiary, InspireMD GmbH, a German limitiedility
company incorporated in November 2007, where thmg@2my subcontracts the manufacturing of its stents.

Due to the Offering and the Exchange Agreementessribed in Note 6, the Company believes that & $afficient cash -
continue its operations into 2015. However, depegain the operating results in 2014, the Company med to obtain additior
cash in 2015 to continue to fund its operations.

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. Accounting principles

The consolidated financial statements are prepar@egcordance with accounting principles generafigepted in the Unit
States (“U.S. GAAP”).

b. Use of estimate:
The preparation of financial statements in conftynwith U.S. GAAP requires management to make esgs usin
assumptions that affect the reported amounts @tsassd liabilities, the disclosure of contingessets and liabilities at t
date of the financial statements and the reportaduats of sales and expenses during the repor@nigds. Actual resul
could differ from those estimates.
As applicable to these consolidated financial statets, the most significant estimates and assungptielate to invento
write-off, intangible assets, provisions for retsirlegal contingencies, estimation of the fair eadfi sharedsased compensati
and estimation of the fair value of warrants.

c. Functional currency

The currency of the primary economic environmenihich the operations of the Company and its sudnsas are conduct
is the U.S. dollar (“$” or “dollar”). Accordinglythe functional currency of the Company and its &lises is the dollar.
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The dollar figures are determined as follows: teations and balances originally denominated inaglslare presented in tr
original amounts. Balances in foreign currenciesteanslated into dollars using historical and entrexchange rates for non-
monetary and monetary balances, respectively. €helting translation gains or losses are recordefinancial income «
expense, as appropriate. For transactions refléotéte statements of operations in foreign curnes)cthe exchange rates
transaction dates are used. Depreciation and changaventories and other changes deriving from-monetary items a
based on historical exchange rates.

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include ttemants of the Company and of its subsidiariegrb@mpany transactio
and balances have been eliminated upon consolidatio

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investmemtkich include shorterm bank deposits (up to three months from de
deposit), that are not restricted as to withdraavalse, to be cash equivalents.

Restricted cash

The Company maintains certain cash amounts resdrias to withdrawal or use, related to credit caRlksstricted cash
denominated in dollars and New Israeli Shekel ("|NISee also Note 8c(2).

Concentration of credit risk and allowance for doutiful accounts

Financial instruments that may potentially subjéot Company to a concentration of credit risk cemnsif cash, ca:
equivalents and restricted cash, which are depmbsitenajor financial institutions in the U.S, Istamd Germany, and tra
accounts receivable. The Compayrade accounts receivable are derived from reagparned from customers from vari
countries. The Company performs ongoing credituatins of its customeréinancial condition and, generally, requires
collateral from its customers. The Company also &dagedit insurance policy for some of its custsndrhe Compar
maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts resiglir based upon the expected ability to collecateounts receivable. T
Company reviews its allowance for doubtful accoumtsirterly by assessing individual accounts red#é/and all othe
balances based on historical collection experi@mzkan economic risk assessment. If the Compamyrdetes that a speci
customer isunable to meet its financial obligations to the @amy, the Company provides an allowance for crledges t
reduce the receivable to the amount managemenonably believes will be collected. To mitigate sskhe Compar
deposits cash and cash equivalents with high cgedility financial institutions.

Provisions for doubtful accounts receivable ar¢éegehgainst “Accounts receivable-Trade.”
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h.

Inventory

Inventories include finished goods, work in processl raw materials. Inventories are stated atldfwer of cost (cost
determined on a “first-in, first-out” basis) or rkat value. The Compang’inventories generally have a limited shelf lifed
are subject to impairment as they approach theiiration dates. The Company regularly evaluatesctdreying value of tt
Company'’s inventories and when, in the Compamgpinion, factors indicate that impairment hasuoexd, the Compal
establishes a reserve against the inventoriesyiogrvalue. The Company’determination that a valuation reserve migt
required and the quantification of such reserveiiregmanagement to utilize significant judgmentitWespect to invento
on consignment, see Note 2k.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cestpfnaccumulated depreciation and amortizatiorprBeation is calculate
using the straighline method over the estimated useful lives of ritblated assets: over three years for computersotire
electronic equipment, and seven to fifteen yearsfiice furniture and equipment and machinery agdipment (mainly sev:
years). Leasehold improvements are amortized omaggistdine basis over the term of the lease, which isrtelhahan th
estimated life of the improvements.

Impairment in value of long-lived assets

The Company tests loriyed intangible and tangible assets, for impairmevhenever events or circumstances prese
indication of impairment. If the sum of expectedufie cash flows (undiscounted and without intesdstrges) of the long-
lived assets are less than the carrying amountdi sssets, an impairment would be recognized laadssets would
written down to their estimated fair values, basedxpected future discounted cash flows.

To date, the Company has not recorded any impairohenges relating to its long-lived assets.

Revenue recognitior

Revenue is recognized when delivery has occurreiderce of an arrangement exists, title and rigkd sewards for tt
products are transferred to the customer, colledaeasonably assured and product returns caalibély estimated. Whe
product returns can be reliably estimated a prowi$s recorded, based on historical experience dadldicted from revenu
The provision for product returns and related casts included in “Accounts payable and accrualedthuinder ‘Curren
liabilities” and “Inventory-On consignment,” respieely.

When returns cannot be reliably estimated, bothtedl revenues and costs are deferred, and presentisdt ‘Deferrec
revenues” and “Inventory-On consignment,” respexdyiv

As of June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2012, there wedeferred revenues related to sales for whichrdate of return could n
be reliably estimated.

The Companys arrangements with its distributors sometimesaiarthe right to receive free products from the @any upo
the achievement of sales targets. Each periodCtimepany estimates the amount of free products fohnits distributors wil
be entitled based upon the expected achievemesatled targets and defers a portion of revenuesdiogty.

The Company recognizes revenue net of value adoe@/AT).
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Research and development costs
Research and development costs are charged ttateengnt of operations as incurred.
Share-based compensation

Employee option awards are classified as equityrésvand accounted for using the grdate fair value method. The 1
value of share-based awards is estimated usin@ldek-Scholes valuation model and expensed over the siégservic
period, net of estimated forfeitures. The Compastyneates forfeitures based on historical experieante anticipated futu
conditions.

The Company elected to recognize compensation eggefior awards with only service conditions thatehgraded vestir
schedules using the accelerated multiple optiomcamb.

The Company accounts for equity instruments issoetthird party service providers (n@mployees), by recording the 1
value of the options granted using an option pgamnodel, at each reporting period, until awards asted in full. Th
expense is recognized over the vesting period ubm@ccelerated multiple option approach.

In addition, certain shareased awards of the Company are performance baskdependent upon achieving certain g
With respect to these awards, the Company estinmhtesexpected preesting award probability that the performa
conditions will be achieved. The Company only retings expense for the shares that are expectezkto v

Uncertain tax positions

The Company follows a twetep approach to recognizing and measuring unoeidai positions. The first step is to evall
the tax position for recognition by determininghe weight of available evidence indicates thad inore likely than not th
the position will be sustained on audit. If undee first step a tax provision is assessed to bee rikely than not of beir
sustained on audit, the second step is performadkruwhich the tax benefit is measured as the $argeount that is ma
than 50% likely to be realized upon ultimate setgat. Such liabilities are classified as Idegn, unless the liability
expected to be resolved within twelve months from balance sheet date. The Compamglicy is to include interest rela
to unrecognized tax benefits within “Financial expes (income)-net”.

Deferred income taxes

Deferred taxes are determined utilizing the “asset liability” method based on the estimated future tax effectiffeirence
between the financial accounting and tax basesseéta and liabilities under the applicable tax |amsd on tax rat
anticipated to be in effect when the deferred teresexpected to be paid or realized. The Compasgsses realization
deferred income tax assets and, based on all hlaikvidence, concludes whether it is more likdignt not that the n
deferred income tax assets will be realized. A atidun allowance is provided for the amount of defdrincome tax assets
considered to be realizable.
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The Company may incur additional tax liability imetevent of intercompany dividend distributionsitsysubsidiaries. Su
additional tax liability in respect of these fomneigubsidiaries has not been provided for in thesm€ial statements as it is
Company’s policy to permanently reinvest the subsigls’ earnings and to consider distributing dividendsyanlconnectio
with a specific tax opportunity that may arise.

Taxes that would apply in the event of disposalneEstments in a foreign subsidiary have not bedsert into account
computing the deferred taxes, as it is the Commaimgéntion to hold, and not to realize, these $twents.

Advertising

Costs related to advertising and promotion of potelare charged to sales and marketing expensecasdd. Advertisin
expenses were approximately $1.1 million and $dlBom for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2f8shectively.

Net loss per share

Basic and diluted net loss per share is computediigling the net loss for the year by the weight®@rage number of sha
of common stock outstanding during the year. THeutation of diluted net loss per share exclude®piial share issuances
common stock upon the exercise of share optionsawe and convertible loans, as the effect is-dihitive.

For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, afasydshares underlying outstanding options, wdsratonvertible loar
and restricted stock have been excluded from theuledion of the diluted loss per share since tledfiect was antdilutive.
The total number of share of common stock relategutstanding options and warrants and restridieckexcluded from tt
calculations of diluted loss per share were 8,086#nd 8,117,577 for the years ended June 30, 2042012, respectively.
Segment reporting

The Company has one operating and reportable seagmen

Fair value measurement:

The Company measures fair value and disclosesdhie measurements for financial assets and liggsiliFair value is bas
on the price that would be received to sell antassgaid to transfer a liability in an orderly misaction between marl
participants at the measurement date.

The accounting standard establishes a fair valeiatuhy that prioritizes observable and unobseevatguts used to meas
fair value into three broad levels, which are diesat below:
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Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active mrlieat are accessible at the measurement datss$ets or liabilities. Tl
fair value hierarchy gives the highest priorityLvel 1 inputs.

Level 2: Observable prices that are based on inpttguoted on active markets, but corroboratechbyket data.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs are used when littlen@ market data is available. The fair value higmg gives the lowe
priority to Level 3 inputs.

In determining fair value, the Company utilizesuatlon techniques that maximize the use of obsésviaputs and minimiz
the use of unobservable inputs to the extent plesaitdd considers counterparty credit risk in issegasment of fair value.

Put warrants

Put warrants that embody an obligation to repurelihe Company equity shares, or are indexed to such an oldigatin
that require or may require the Company to selite dbligation by transferring assets are within shepe of Accountir
Standards Codification (“ASC") 480-10-Z-and are recognized as a liability and measutddiravalue at each reporti
date, with changes in fair value recorded in egsisee Note 6d(1

Beneficial conversion feature“ BCF")

When the Company issues convertible debt, if tbeksprice is greater than the effective convergidoe (after allocation
the total proceeds) on the measurement date, theersion feature is considered "beneficial" to Hwdder. If there is n
contingency, this difference is treated as issupdte and reduces the carrying value of the hobt;dbe discount is accrel
as deemed interest on the debt. See Note €

Embedded derivatives

Embedded derivatives in debt contracts that arelearly and closely related to the host debt #tedated and accounted

separately. Those embedded derivatives are meaatfad value each reporting date, with change&invalue recorded

earnings. See Note 6d(2).

Allocation of issuance proceed

The Company allocated proceeds from its issuancelof that was sold with detachable warrants tfeatkassified as liabili

as follows: first to the warrants based on theit fair value; then to any embedded derivativesthie debt that requi
bifurcation at their fair values; then the residadount of the proceeds to the debt. See Note 6d(2)
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X. Recently issued accounting pronouncements:

In July 2012, the Financial Accounting Standardaf8q"FASB") issued Accounting Standard Update 2022"Intangibles-
Goodwill and other (Topic 350): Testing Indefinlt@angibles Assets for Impairment, "which amende& guidance in AS
350-30 on testing indefinitived intangible assets, other than goodwill, forpairment allowing an entity to perforn
qualitative impairment assessment. If the entitiedrines that it is not more likely than not tha fair value of the reportil
unit is less than the carrying amount, furtheringsof indefinitelived intangible assets for impairment is not regdiand th
entity would not need to calculate the fair valti¢ghe asset and perform a quantitative impairmesit tn addition the stand:
did not amend the requirement to test these a$setenpairment between annual tests if there ishange in events
circumstances; however, it revised the examplesvefts and circumstances that an entity shouldidens interim period:
which are identical to those assessed in the armuglitative assessment described above. ASU PQ1&as effective fc
annual and interim impairment tests performed i&edl years beginning after September 15, 2012 ettty adoption beir
permitted. The Company believes that the adoptfahis standard will not have a material impactitsrconsolidated financi
statements.

NOTE 3 - FAIR VALUE MEASURMENT
Items Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

a. The following table summarizes the balances fors¢hdinancial liabilities where fair value measuretseare estimatt
utilizing Level 2 and Level 3 input

Level June 30, 201:
($ in thousands
2012 Warrants at fair valt 2 $ 1,70¢
Embedded derivative 3 49
$ 1,75k

In connection with the classification of the 2012rvants to equity, see Note 6.

b. The following tables summarize the activity for skedinancial liabilities where fair value measuratseare estimated utilizil
Level 3 inputs

Anti-Dilution Embedded
Right Derivative
($ in thousands)
Balance as of June 30, 201 $ - % =
Issuance: 8
Total losses (gains) (realized and unrealized¥luthed in earnings -

Financial expenses (income), | 41
Balance as of June 30, 201 $ - $ 49
Total losses (gains) (realized and unrealizedluited in earnings -

Financial expenses (income), | 1,47¢ (29
Settlement by issuance sha (1,47 -
Conversion of convertible debt (30
Balance as of June 30, 201 $ - $ -
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Level 3 liabilities include an embedded derivatretated to the Comparg'2012 Convertible Debentures (as defined in
6a). The Company values the Level 3 embedded dmsevaising an internally developed valuation modehose inpui
include recovery rates, credit spreads, stock griaed volatilities, as described below.

In calculating the fair value of embedded derivatithe Company used the following assumptions: Gmyp credit spread
23.1% and 26.5% for the transaction date and foe B0, 2012, respectively; Compasiyecovery rate of 49.8% for both
transaction date and for June 30, 2012; probatfityonfinancial event of default of 5% for both the tracgon date and fi
June 30, 2012.

The credit spread is the yield to maturity of riskgnds over risk free bonds and was based on arageeof samp
comparable companies.

The recovery rate is the estimated amount to bevered through bankruptcy procedures in eventdgfault, expressed as
percentage of face value .

A non{inancial event of default is a contractual eveindefault which does not result from a declininggfincial standing of t
Company.

The fair value of the warrants included in Levé$ 2stimated using the Black & Scholes model.

For a discussion regarding the calculation of #ievalue of the 2012 Warrants as of the transaaimte, as of June 30, 2(
and as of the Closing Day (as defined in Note €3, Mote 6.

As of the Closing Day, the Company recalculatedfttievalue of the embedded derivative of the 20¢&rrants using tt
following assumptions: the Company's credit sprafa2B.5%, the Company's recovery rate of 49.8%,ahf% probability ¢
non-financial event of default.

The carrying amounts of financial instruments ided in working capital approximate their fair valeigher because the
amounts are presented at fair value or due todlagively shortterm maturities of such instruments. The carryingpant o
the Company’s other financial long-term assetsathdr financial longerm liabilities (other than the debentures) apjmae
their fair value. The fair value of the 2012 Coriilde Debentures (as defined in Note 6) approxichdke carrying amou
(after considering the BCF, as described in Note 6)

NOTE 4 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

a. Composition of assets, grouped by major classiticat is as follows

June 30,
2013 2012
(% in thousands)

Cost:
Computer equipmet $ 167 $ 142
Office furniture and equipmel a0 83
Machinery and equipme 78€ 59¢
Leasehold improvements 141 111
1,18¢ 934
Less - accumulated depreciation and amortization (634) (472)
Net carrying amour $ 55C $ 462
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b. Depreciation and amortization expenses totaledcapately $162,000 and $120,000 for the years erdee 30, 2013 a
2012, respectively

NOTE 5 - LIABILITY FOR EMPLOYEES RIGHT UPON RETIREM ENT

Israeli labor law generally requires payment ofesamce pay upon dismissal of an employee or upamiriation of employment
certain other circumstances.

Pursuant to section 14 of the Israeli Severance geosation Act, 1963, some of the Companginployees are entitled to h
monthly deposits, at a rate of 8.33% of their mbnsalary, made in their name with insurance congmarPayments in accordal
with section 14 relieve the Company from any futsegerance payments to these employees.

The severance pay liability of the Company for et of its employees, which reflects the undistedramount of the liability,
based upon the number of years of service andathstimonthly salary. The severance pay liabititpartly covered by insurar
policies and by regular deposits with recognizedesznce payment funds. The Company may only withidands previousl
deposited for savings in connection with the payinoérseverance. The severance pay expenses wemexapptely $311,000 ai
$177,000 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2&di2ectively.

Defined contribution plan expenses were approxilpe208,000 and $206,000 for the years ended Jine2@13 and 201
respectively. Gain on amounts funded with respe@ntployee rights upon retirement totaled to appmately $6,000 and $1,0
for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, résglgct

The Company expects contribution plan expenseisdalfyear 2014 to be approximately $269,000.
NOTE 6 - CONVERTIBLE LOANS

On April 5, 2012, the Company issued senior secaceertible debentures (the “2012 Convertible Deties”)due April 5, 201
in the original aggregate principal amount of $02,128 and five-year warrants (the “2012 Warranis'purchase an aggregatt
835,866 shares of its common stock at an exeraise pf $7.20 per share in a private placementstation in exchange 1
aggregate gross proceeds of approximately $11omillThe 2012 Convertible Debentures bear interesinaannual rate of 8
(payable quarterly beginning on July 1, 2012) aredcnvertible at any time into shares of commaclsat an initial conversic
price of $7.00 per share.

F-17




The relevant features of the 2012 Convertible Dalbes and 2012 Warrants are summarized below:
a. 2012 Convertible Debentures
1) Conversion and contingent convers

The 2012 Convertible Debentures, including accrimerest on such 2012 Convertible Debentures, arwartible at an
time, in whole or part, at the option of the hoklanto shares of common stock at an initial coneergrice of $7.00 p
share, subject to adjustment for stock splits, fumental transactions or similar events and an iaddit conversio
adjustment described below.

The number of conversion shares issuable upon zecsion shall be determined by the quotient obthime dividing (x) thi
sum of (a) the outstanding principal amount to tieverted, (b) at the option of the holder, a portio all of any accrued a
unpaid interest to be converted and (c) the coimerdjustment amount by (y) the conversion price.

The “conversion adjustment amoung’ calculated by multiplying the principal amourgig converted by a fraction,
numerator of which is (a) the number of days eldpsem the original issue date multiplied by (b21917808; and t
denominator of which is 100. The maximum numberdays elapsed to be used in calculating the cororeradjustmel
amount will not be greater than 548 days regardiéise actual number of days elapsed from thamalgssue date.

The Company may force conversion of the 2012 CadiblerDebentures if the closing bid price of then@manys commo
stock equals or exceeds 165% of the conversiom [foictwenty consecutive trading days, the minimdadly trading volum
for such period is $1,100,000, all of the sharethefcommon stock underlying the 2012 Convertib&b&ntures during su
period are either registered for resale with theufiges and Exchange Commission or eligible faate pursuant to Rule 1
and there is no existing event of default or exgstevent which, with the passage of time or thangiwof notice, woul
constitute an event of default during such period.

The 2012 Convertible Debentures contain certaiitaitions on conversion. No conversion may be mdafter giving effec
to the conversion, any holder would beneifially oimnexcess of 4.99% of the Compasydutstanding shares of comn
stock. This percentage may be increased to a pgagenot to exceed 9.99%, at the option of suctidipkexcept any incree
will not be effective until the holder has given @dys’ prior notice to the Company.

The 2012 Convertible Debentures impose penaltigh@iCompany for any failure to timely deliver ashares of its commi
stock issuable upon conversion.

2) Events of default and holc's contingent redemption optit

If there is an event of default as stipulated i@ #8greement, then by election of the holders hgldinleast 60% of the 20
Convertible Debentures, the Company must redeenofathe 2012 Convertible Debentures in cash for%1@f the
outstanding principal, together with all unpaid aaxtrued interest, all interest that would havenbgayable through tl
maturity date and any other amounts due under €2 Zonvertible Debentures (such amount, tharidatory Defau
Amount”). The Mandatory Default Amount will accrue interestiaate of 24% per annum commencing on the fiflereda
date following the relevant event of default.
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3) Holder's noncontingent redemption opti

Commencing 18 months following the original issuadate of the 2012 Convertible Debentures, thednslthay require tl
Company to redeem all or a portion of the 2012 @otitvie Debentures, for a price equal to 112% efdamount of princip.
to be redeemed plus all accrued but unpaid intarebbther amounts due under the 2012 ConvertiblebBtures.

4) Compan’s noncontingent redemption opti

Commencing 6 months following the original issuadeaée of the 2012 Convertible Debentures, the Compaay redeem ¢
or a portion of the 2012 Convertible Debenturesafqrice equal to 112% of the amount of principab¢ redeemed plus
accrued but unpaid interest and other amounts dderuhe 2012 Convertible Debentures.

5) Covenant:

The 2012 Convertible Debentures contain certairecamts which prohibit or limit the Compasyand its subsidiaries abil
to, among other things:
« pay cash dividends to its stockholders;
« redeem, repurchase or otherwise acquire more thde minimis number of shares of its common stoc
common stock equivalent
« incur additional indebtedness;
« permit liens on assets or conduct sales of assets;
. effectuate stock splits until April 5, 2013, excéptconnection with an initial listing on a natidreecuritie:
exchange or to meet the continued listing requirgmef such exchang
» cease making public filings under the SecuritiesHaxge Act of 1934, as amended,;
e engage in transactions with affiliates; and
« amend its charter documents in a way that woulderigdly and adversely affect any holder of the :
Convertible Debenture

6) Pro rata distributions

If the Company, at any time while the 2012 ConbdetDebentures are outstanding, distributes thatlers of common sto
evidences of its indebtedness or assets (inclucisp and cash dividends) or rights or warrantsibsaibe for or purcha
any security other than the common stock, thennwpty conversion of the 2012 Convertible Debenfutesholder shall t
entitled to receive such distribution to the samtert that the holder would have if the holder Heedd the number
conversion shares issued upon such conversionec2@2 Convertible Debentures immediately befoeedite on which
record was taken for such distribution, or, if nts record was taken, the date as of which therdelsolders of shares
common stock were determined for the participaitiosuch distribution.

F-19




1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

2012 Warrants

Exercisability

The 2012 Warrants are immediately exercisable ianidhe aggregate, entitle the holders to purchasie 835,866 shar
of common stock. The 2012 Warrants have an irgalrcise price of $7.20 per share payable in CBs#.2012 Warran
expire on April 5, 2017.

Similar to the 2012 Convertible Debentures, the2Warrants also contain limitations on exercisé thauld cause tt
holder to beneficially own in excess of 4.99% @&@%% of the Company’s outstanding common stock.

Anti-dilution protection

The exercise price of the 2012 Warrants and thebeurof shares issuable upon exercise of the 201r2aa are subje
to adjustments for stock splits, combinations onilsir events.

“ Most favored natic”

The 2012 Warrants are also subject to an adjustmestiant to which, in the event that the Compasyés or is deem
to have issued certain securities with terms thasaperior to those of the 2012 Warrants, excépt rgspect to exerci
price and warrant coverage, the superior terms ailiomatically be incorporated into the 2012 Wagafa "Mos
Favored Nation Adjustment”).

Contingent holder redemption opti

Upon the occurrence of a transaction involving angfe of control that is (i) an all cash transacti@ip a “Rule 13e3
transaction” as defined in Rule 13ainder the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asnded or (iii) involving a persc
or entity not traded on a national securities ergeathe holders of the 2012 Warrants will haverilet, among other
to have the 2012 Warrants repurchased for a puechase in cash equal to the Bla8kholes value of the th
unexercised portion of the 2012 Warrants.

Pro rata distributions

Similar to the 2012 Convertible Debentures, the 20 arrants allow exercising holders to participatepro rat:
distributions.

Public information failure

If the Company fails for any reason to satisfy tharent public information requirement under Ru(t) then, i
addition to any other remedies available to theléid, the Company must pay to the holders, in gaestial liquidate
damages as set forth in the agreement.

Transaction costs

In connection with the Transaction, the Companyd dasuance costs, including placement agent and fegs, c

approximately $1,200,000, and issued five-year aras (“2012 Placement Agents Warrants'purchase 78,078 sha
of the Company’s common stock at an exercise @ficky.20 per share to the placement agent.
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1)

2)

Accounting treatment
2012 Warrant:

The Company determined, based on the provisiodsSaf 480-10-258, that equity classification is precluded becaaf
the redeemable option of the holders in the evéat @hange in control (in certain conditions), whis an event that
not within the Companyg’ control. Accordingly, the 2012 Warrants are dfastas a liability in the consolidated bala
sheets and measured at fair value at each repgrérigd. The fair value of the 2012 Warrants isnested using tr
Black-Scholes valuation model. See Note 2t.

In calculating the fair value of the 2012 Warrafiteluding the 2012 Placement Agents Warrants) Gbmpany used tl
following assumptions: expected term of 5 and 4.&érs for the transaction date and for the Jun2@D2 respectivel
expected volatility of 66.1% and 69.6% for the #action date and for the June 30, 2012 respectivisk/ree interes
rate of 1.01% and 0.72% for the transaction datefanthe June 30, 2012 respectively; and dividgett of 0%.

As of the closing day of the Exchange Agreemenrg @eo Note 6) the Company recalculated the fdirevaf the 201
Warrants by using the following assumptions: expederm of 3.79-4 years , expected volatility of588-64.7%, risk-
free interest rate of 0.52%-0.78% and dividenddyafl 0%.

2012 Convertible Debentur:

In accordance with ASC 470-20, “Debt with Convensamd Other Optionsthe Company determined that a BCF exi
at the issuance date of the 2012 Convertible Deipesit The BCF amounting to approximately $3,790086 recorde

in equity.

In addition, the Company analyzed the holders’ iogeint redemption optiobased on the guidance stipulated in T
815, and concluded that the holders’ contingetemption option is not clearly and closely redate the debt ho
contract. Thus, the Company bifurcated and accdufde it separately as an embedddetrivative and classified
together with the 2012 Convertible Debenturessnstatement of financial position. This embeddedvdtive will be
measured at fair value at each reporting perio@.falr value of the embedded derivative is estighatsing the binomin
valuation model.

In addition, the Company analyzed the holdershcontingent redemption option and determined thatprepayme
options are clearly and closely related to the defst contract and should not be bifurcated fromm2012 Convertib
Debentures.

The gross proceeds amounting to approximately $D]000 from the 2012 Convertible Debentures trafmaavere
allocated as follows:

F-21




3)

4)

o 2012 Warrants at fair valueapproximately $2,807,000 based on their fair vi

« embedded derivativeapproximately $8,000 based on its fair value;

o 2012 Convertible Debenturesapproximately $8,185,000 based on the residual amafter the allocation of oth
components as described abc

In addition, an amount of approximately $3,790,0@% recognized as a BCF against the 2012 Conweilibbentures.

The 2012 Convertible Debentures are subsequenthsumed at amortized cost on the basis of the eféednteres
method over the loan period until the maturity date

Transaction cost

Direct transaction costs of approximately $1,39@,00hich included the placement agents fees an@@e Placeme
Agents Warrants valued at approximately $262,00@fathe transaction date, as well as other issuaosts, wer
allocated to the various instruments associateth Wie 2012 Convertible Debentures pata to the amount su
instruments were recorded as of the transactios. ddte amounts that were allocated to the 2012 &Ntarat fair valu
and embedded derivative were recorded in “Finaneigenses’and the remainder amounting to approxim
$1,037,000 was recorded as “Deferred debt issuemsts”in the consolidated balance sheets and will be tredrove
the loan period using the effective interest methotil the maturity date.

Exchange and amendment agreen

On April 9, 2013, the Company, entered into an exgje and amendment agreement with the holdersed€tmpanyg
2012 Convertible Debentures due April 5, 2014 amdsabsequently amended on April 15, 2013 (tBxchang
Agreement”).Simultaneously with the closing of the Offering @eafined in Note 9a), the Company consummate
transactions under the Exchange Agreement on April2013 (the "Closing Day"). Pursuant the ExchaAgesemer
and in full satisfaction of the Compé’s obligations under the Debentures, the Comp

o repaid $8,787,234 in ca

o issued 2,159,574 shares of common stock to theetolof the Debentures, reflecting a conversionepoic$2.00 pe
share for the remaining unpaid portion of the Dees;

« issued five year warrants to the holders of theddélres to purchase an aggregate of 659,091 shaeEammol
stock for $3.00 per shar“$3.00 Warrant);
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In accordance with the provisions of ASC £M-the terms of the Exchange Agreement were cereido be an induc
conversion and the retirement of the Debentures aeasunted for as if the 2012 Convertible Debersturad bee
converted according to their original conversioicgrof $7 valued at $3,538,723. This value was aren to the fa
value of the consideration paid to the debt holdexduding the 2,159,574 shares issued (whictectdld a conversi
price of $2.00 per share) that were valued at $4395, the $8,787,234 of cash paid to the holdetseoDebentures a
the $3.00 Warrants valued at $568,098. As a rethdt,Company incurred approximately $9.9 millionesipenses
connection with the Exchange Agreement which wexeorded in "Financial expenses (income), net" witttie
consolidated statements of operations.

In calculating the fair value of the $3.00 Warraritee Company used the following assumptions: @éndlyield of 09
and expected term of 5 years; expected volatifit§8%6; and risk-free interest rate of 0.71%.

In connection with the Exchange Agreement the Cotppamortized the deferred debt issuance costs. ekipense
amounting to approximately $641,000 were recordedFinancial expenses (income), net" within the smiidate
statements of operations.

In addition, pursuant to the Exchange AgreemeertQbmpany:

« amended the securities purchase agreement purtsuatich the Debentures were originally issued riwhbit the
Company from issuing securities containing -dilution protective provisions; ar

« amended the 2012 Warrants to (i) eliminate the Memstored Nation Adjustment and (ii) provide thaompe
fundamental transaction, the holders of such wésnaiil now have the right to cause the Companseturchase tt
unexercised portion of such warrants at their Bi&ckoles value on the date of such fundamental actios
payable in shares of common stock, rather thaash as was previously provide

The Company determined, based on the provisiodsS@ 480-10-23, that following the amendment to the 2012 Was
described above, equity classification is no longexcluded and accordingly, the 2012 Warrants vhlaeapproximate
$314,000 as of the Closing Day of the Exchange Ament were classified from a liability to equity time consolidate
balance sheets.

NOTE 7 - RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
a. In January 2009, InspireMD Ltd. signed a sub-lemgeement with a company controlled by the Compaslyareholders, f
a period of 12.5 months, for a monthly rent paynwfréapproximately $1,000. In 2010, the rent peneak extended for i

additional year, and the rent payments increasetbf. In 2011, the rent period was extended faadditional year, throug
February 2012. The s-lease agreement was not renew
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On May 6, 2008, InspireMD Ltd. entered into a cdtiwcy agreement (the “2008 Consultancy Agreemeiot”ymarketing
services with a member of the immediate family loé CEO at the time. Pursuant to the 2008 Consuyltégreemen
InspireMD Ltd. paid a fixed hourly fee of $45 (1B4S) in Israel and a fixed daily fee of $400 wheaveling abroad wit
respect to the consulting services. On Septemb&011], effective April 1, 2011, the 2008 Consultafgreement we
terminated and InspireMD Ltd. entered into a newstitancy agreement (the “2011 Consultancy Agre¢éhm@ursuant t
which the consultant was retained to serve as tirapganys vice president of sales. Pursuant to the agreemienconsultal
was paid a monthly consultancy fee of $12,500 fégonil 1, 2011 through June 30, 2011 and a montloystiltancy fee «
$15,500 thereafter. @ July 2, 2012, effective August 1, 2012, the 2@dnsultancy Agreement was terminated
InspireMD Ltd. entered into a new consultancy agreet (the “First Consultancy Agreementfursuant to which tt
consultant was to provide sales consulting serviBessuant to the agreement, the consultant wakdednto a fixed fee ¢
$625 (2,500 NIS) for each full working day and ab® of up to $10,000 (40,000 NIS) upon the achiergrf set objective
The First Consultancy Agreement was terminatedeptenber 30, 201

On August 27, 2012, InspireMD Ltd. entered intoesised consultancy agreement (the “Second ConsyltAgreement)
with this consultant, pursuant to which the coremiltis entitled to options to purchase 60,871 shafeeommon stock at
exercise price of $5.80 per share. The revisedeaggat also extended the term of options to purcl38s435 shares
common stock that were scheduled to expire upotettmination of the First Consultancy Agreemenséptember 2014.

On April 1, 2005, InspireMD Ltd. entered into enyateent agreements with the Company’s president hadCompanye
CEO at the time (both are directors and sharehsid8&uch employment agreements were subsequenéigded on Octob
1, 2008 (in the case of the CompaZEO) and March 28, 2011 (in the case of bottptiesident and the CEO). Pursuar
these employment agreements, as amended on Mar@92B, each officer was entitled to a monthly grsalary of $15,36
Each officer was also entitled to certain sociad &inge benefits as set forth in the employmentaments, which total
25% of their gross salary, as well as a company Each officer was also entitled to a minimum bosrgsivalent to thre
monthly gross salary payments based on achievemienbjectives and board of directors’ approval.sifch officers
employment was terminated with or without causewhas entitled to at least six monthmior notice, and would have be
paid his salary and all social and fringe benefitill during such notice perio

On April 1, 2011, the employment agreements withh @ompanys president and CEO were terminated and the Cor
entered into consulting agreements with the Comggangsident and CEO for a monthly consultancyde$21,563 each.

At the request of the compensation committee, thim@nys CEO and president at the time agreed, effecivef ®ecembe
1, 2011, to be treated as employees for purposgmyihg their salary and benefits, rather than @ssgltants under the
consulting agreements. In addition, the Compsai@EO and president agreed to formally terminaté ttonsulting agreeme
upon the execution of an employment agreement thithCompany on substantially the same terms as to@isultanc
agreements. A new employment agreement, howevernexer executed with either party.
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On June 1, 2012, the Company's former presideigmed. Following his resignation, as presidenteeff/e June 1, 2012, t
Company's former president remained on the Compamyard of directors. In connection with the reatgn, the Compar
and its former president entered into a consuliggeement, pursuant to which, among other thirtgs,farmer preside
agreed to provide the Company with consulting sewifor a period of six months, terminating on Nuoler 30, 2012,
exchange for payments by the Company of approxim&20,000 per month. The consulting agreement stdsequent
extended until February 2013.

On January 3, 2013, the Company's CEO at the tasigmed as CEO (the "Former CEO"). The Former CHt3equentl
continued to serve as a member of the Comabgard of directors. In accordance with the teofrs Separation Agreem
and Release, the Company paid the Former CEO $21g56ix months.

On January 3, 2013 and in connection with the Foi@teC’ s resignation, the Company appointed a new (

In connection with the appointment of the CEO, @@mpany entered into an Employment Agreement (Employmen
Agreement”)with the CEO. Under the Employment Agreement, teOGs entitled to an annual base salary of at
$450,000. The CEO is also eligible to receive amuahbonus of at least $275,000 upon the achieveoferasonable targ
objectives and performance goals, to be deterntiyettie board of directors. In accordance with theplbyment Agreemer
on January 3, 2013, the Company granted the new @HE®nqualified stock option to purchase 525,923resh of th
Companys common stock, made pursuant to a NonqualifiedkS@ption Agreement, an incentive stock option tochas
74,073 shares of the Compasy¢ommon stock, made pursuant to an Incentive Sigtion Agreement, and 400,000 sh
of restricted stock, which are subject to forfestwntil the vesting of such shares, made purswaatRestricted Stock Awe
Agreement (the “Restricted Stock Agreementfe options have an exercise price of $4.05, whiah the fair market val
of the Company’s common stock on the date of grBoth the options and the restricted stock areesutip a thregreal
vesting period subject to the CEO's continued serwith the Company, with one-thirgixth (1/36th) of such awards vest
each month.

On April 24, 2013, the Company and the CEO ameredath of (i) Employment Agreement and (ii) Restdc&ock Awar
Agreement in order to change the vesting of thérictsd stock awarded to the CEO thereunder fronmthip vesting t
annual vesting.

The CEO has an option to deliver a number of shartssan aggregate fair market value that equalsxeeeds (to avoid t
issuance of fractional shares) the required takhwitding payment resulted from the vesting of #&nicted stock or from tl
exercise of the options. As of June 30, 2013, 9,5héres were withheld by the Company to satisfy watkholding
obligations. The payment, amounting to $27,685, dettuicted from equity.

On or before December 31 of each calendar yearC#® will be eligible to receive an additional grari equity award
equal, in the aggregate, to up to 0.5% of the Cayijgaactual outstanding shares of common stock ord#te of gran
provided that the actual amount of the grant wélldased on his achievement of certain performabetives as establish
by the board, in its reasonable discretion, fohesaeh calendar year.
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If, during the term of the Employment Agreemeng BEO's employment is terminated upon certain d¢mmdi as stipulate
in the agreement, the CEO will be entitled to reeaiertain benefits as stipulated in the agreement.

On April 25, 2013, the CEO was granted options uecpase shares of the Company's common stock dsasveéstricte
shares. See Note 9b.

e. Certain directors of the Company were granted optio purchase shares of the Com|'s common stock. See Note
f. Balances with related parti

June 30,
2013 2012
($ in thousands)

Current liabilities:
Trade payabl $ 22
Other accounts payak $ 25C $ 45

g. Transactions with related parti

Year ended June 30
2013 2012
(% in thousands)

Expenses
Shar-based compensatic $ 2,970 % 9,517
Salaries and related expen $ 531 $ 30¢
Consulting fee! $ 40C $ 39¢
Rent income $ (21)

NOTE 8 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
a. Lease commitments

1) On December 13, 2011, the Company entered intaselagreement for a facility in Israel, which egpim Decemb
2014. The Company has the option, under the agmetetoeextend the agreement for two additional fwear period:
for a total of four years

On March 13, 2012, the Company entered into a lagseement for another facility in Israel, whiekpires in Marc
2014. The Company has the option, under the agmeneeextend the agreement for two additional fwear period:
for a total of four years On February 27, 2013, the Company gave a 90 de&e period as stipulated in
agreement which was extended until June 30, 2@1&ricel its lease agreement for the Compmaayisting productic
facilities.

On January 2013, the Company engaged in a leaseragnt for its facilities in the U.S which expireslanuary 2014.
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Rent expense included in the consolidated statesm@ndperations totaled approximately $383,000 $2200,000 fao
the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012.

As of June 30, 2013, the aggregate future minimeasé obligations for office rent under nmamcelable operatil
lease agreements were as follows:

($ in thousands

Year Ended June 3

2014 $ 29¢€
2015 12€
$ 422

2) The Company leases its motor vehicles underabiper lease agreements. As of June 30, 2013, theegate non
cancelable future minimum lease obligations foranethicles were approximately $42,0

License Agreement

In March 2010, the Company entered into a licerggeeament to use a stent design developed by aniéamecompan
owned by a former director of InspireMD Ltd. (“MGulaPrimeTM"). Pursuant to the agreement, the licensor was ahtit
receive royalty payments of 7% of net sales outtideUnited States and, for sales within the Unf¢aites, royalty paymel
as follows: 7% of net sales for the first $10,000,0f net sales and 10% of net sales for net saleseding $10,000,000.

On October 20, 2012, the Company, InspireMD Ltdl dre licensor entered into an amendment, (thest Aimendment”}o
License Agreement, which amended the license agrneedescribed above. Pursuant to the First Amentraemongst oth:
things, the licensor agreed to reduce the royalfgdwith respect to sales of MGuard Prime to 2.9%lbnet sales bo
inside and outside the U.S. in exchange for (ipiredviD Ltd. waiving $85,000 in regulatory fees the CE Mark that we
owed by the licensor to InspireMD Ltd., (ii) InspMD Ltd. making full payment of royalties in the aumt of $205,587 di
to the licensor as of September 30, 2012 andJiif,000 shares of the Compamygommon stock, that were valued at
closing price of the common stock on October 19,228t $8.20 per share. The total amount paid tdickasor was valued
$1,848,000, inclusive of the shares issued as aglthe $85,000 waiver, and was allocated as foll@pgproximatel
$930,000 was allocated to royalties’ buyout andraxmately $918,000 was allocated to “research dedelopment”
expenses based on the MGuard Prime registratidnssta the various territories. The royaltid®iyout amortization
calculated using the economic pattern of the Cowigaestimated future revenues over the estimatedululiff of the
royalties’ buyout. The amortization is recorded@ost of Revenues” in the consolidated statemehtgerations.
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Royalties accrued for these sales are includedAotdunts payable and accruals -OthéRdyalties expenses for the ye
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 amounted to appretin&it32,000 and $201,000, respectiv:

On August 22, 2013, the Company, InspireMD Ltd. #&rellicensor entered into the Second Amendmendééised in Not
13) to the License Agreement.

Liens and pledge

1) The Company obligations under the 2012 Convertible Debent(aeslefined in Note 6) were secured by a firsinyi
perfected security interest in all of the asset$ roperties of the Company and InspireMD Ltd.Judag the stock ¢
InspireMD Ltd. and InspireMD GmbH. In connectiontiwithe Exchange (as defined in Note 6), all of ¢hescurit
interests were terminate

2) As of June 30, 2013, the Company had fixed lien®warting to $93,000 to Bank Mizrahi in connectionthwihe
Compan’s credit cards

Litigation:

In February 2011, a service provider filed a claigainst the Company for $327,000 in the Magistsa@ourt in Tel Aviv
claiming a future success fee and commission feis&sice in finding the Company’s distributor iraBit. The Company
management, after considering the views of itsllegansel as well as other factors, recorded aigi@v of $327,000 in tf
financial statements in the first quarter of 20Ihe related expense has been recorded to “Genetadministrativetvithin
the Consolidated Statements of Operations. On @ct8p2011, the Company filed a counter claim agjaime plaintiff in th
amount of $29,000. Following the first court eviderhearing held on January 20, 2013, the partiashezl a settleme
agreement which provides that in consideratiorhefmutual waiver by the parties of all their claiaggminst each other ¢
their shareholders, officers and employees, the 2oy shall pay to the plaintiff $50,000. Followiagpayment by tt
Companyof $25,000 to the plaintiff, the provisiom@unted to $25,000 as of June 30, 2013. After tarize sheet da
during July 2013, the Company paid the plainti#f temaining $25,000.

In August 2011, a former senior employee submitbeithe Regional Labor Court in Tel Aviv a claim aga the Company fi
(i) compensation of $118,000 and (ii) a declararofing that he is entitled to exercise 121,742apt to purchase shares
the Companys common stock at an exercise price of $0.004 pares 20,290 of which options were not disputedhe
Company. On October 21, 2012, the former seniorl@yep exercised 20,290 options. On June 24, 20E3Company ar
the former senior employee accepted a settlemeaeamgnt pursuant to which the claim was removedtaaglaintiff waiver
their entire claim against the Company, in consitien of the Company's consent to allow them to@ge 71,016 options
the Company's shares of common stock. The labaot approved such settlement on June 26, 2013.
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In November 2011, a previous service provider aplreMD Ltd. submitted to the Magistrate Court ial Aviv a clain
against the Company, InspireMD Ltd. and the Comfmfgrmer President and CEO for a declaratory ruliveg he is entitle
to convert options to purchase 13,650 of InspireM@’s ordinary shares at an exercise price of $3.6%lp@re into optior
to purchase 27,696 shares of the Compmoepmmon stock at an exercise price of $1.80 parestand to convert options
purchase 4,816 of InspireMD Ltd.brdinary shares at an exercise price of $10 lpmesinto options to purchase 9,772 st
of the Companys common stock at an exercise price of $4.92 paresiOn July 30, 2012, the parties held a mediatibich
resulted in a settlement agreement, according tichylthe Company paid $7,000 plus value added taxéise plaintiff an
the plaintiff waived all of their claims to any agris and agreed to the irrevocable dismissal ohtim/e mentioned claim. ¢
August 5, 2012, the court approved the settlemedtdismissed the claim.

In December 2011, a statement of claim againsCibrapany was submitted by an alleged finder of thengany, regardir
options to purchase 146,089 shares of the Companyyhmon stock. The Company filed its defenseimaase on March 1
2012. In April 2013, the parties accepted a settl@nproposal made by the judge, according to wttteh,court would rul
that the Company shall compensate the plaintifiiay of issuance of the Comparyshares of common stock in an am:
which will be between $50,000 and $200,000 at eeppeer share which will be determined by the cdurtias also agreed
the parties that such judgment would settle allghdies' current and future claims against eabkerotOn May 9, 2013, tl
court ruled that the Company's compensation tethetiff should be valued at $200,000 payableharss of common sto
at a price per share of $2.95, totaling 67,797eshaf common stock of the Company. On June 25,,2083Company issu
the plaintiff 67,797 shares of common stock.

In July 2012, a purported assignee of options ispireMD Ltd. submitted a statement of claim agaitt Compan
InspireMD Ltd., and the Compars/former CEO and President for a declaratory aridreement order that it is entitled
options to purchase 83,637 shares of the Compargrhmon stock at an exercise price of $0.76 pareshn January, 201
the defendants submitted a motion to dismiss thiencbr move it to the Economic Department to theAwdv District Court
due to the lack of material jurisdiction of the dowhere the claim was filed. The court acceptechsuotion and transferr
the case to the Economic Department to the Tel Bistrict Court. In April, 2013, the Company's faemCEO and Preside
submitted a motion to dismiss the claim againsinttom the grounds that the letter of claims doespnesent any legal ce
against any of them. The first hearing in the aamae held on April 23, 2013, during which, the judgggested the parties
to solve the dispute through mediation. On Julg(®.,3 the parties held a first mediation meetingeA€onsidering the vieu
of its legal counsel as well as other factors, @@mpanys management believes that a loss to the Compangiike
probable nor in an amount or range of loss thasignable.

In December 2012, a former service provider of imeD GmbH filed a claim with the Labor Court in Boios Aires
Argentina in the amount of $193,378 plus interé86 (n dollars or 18.5% in pesos), social beneféggal expenses and fe
(25% of the award) against InspireMD Ltd. and InspiD GmbH. The court dismissed the claim based daci o
jurisdiction. Following this dismissal, the plaiffitappealed the ruling. The Company's managemsdtgr aonsidering tt
views of its legal counsel as well as other fagtoesorded a provision of $250,000 in the finanstatements for the quat
ended December 31, 2012. The related expense leasrbeorded to "General and administrative" witthia consolidate
statements of operations. The Company's managesstmiates that the ultimate resolution of this eratbuld result in a lo
of up to $80,000 in excess of the amount accrued.
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In December 2012, the State of Israel filed a cainplagainst InspireMD Ltd., the Compasybrmer CEO, former Preside
and Vice President of Research and Development ‘{th@nagers™), alleging that InspireMD Ltd. failed to operate
production facilities under a proper business keerinspireMD Ltd. received its required busindgssnise on January !
2013. On February 13, 2013, all claims againsMheagers were dropped and InspireMD Ltd. settledlaim with the Sta
of Israel for less than $2,000.

NOTE 9 — EQUITY
a. Share capita

As of June 30, 2013, the Company has authorize¢D@8MO00 shares of capital stock, par value $0.@@9Ishare, of whic
125,000,000 are shares of common stock and 5,00@@0shares of “blank check” preferred stock.

On October 31, 2011, the stockholders approvedathirorization of the board of directors, in itsatétion, to amend tl
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatibthe Company to effect a reverse stock split ef @ompanys commo
stock at a ratio of one-for-two to one-flmdr, such ratio to be determined by the boardifatiors, which approval allow
the board of directors to effect the reverse stmtht any time prior to the Company’s annual megtifi stockholders in 2012.

On December 19, 2012, the Company filed with ther&ary of State of the State of Delaware a Cedi& of Amendment
the Company’s Amended and Restated Certificatenadrporation to effect a one-féour reverse stock split of its commr
stock (the “Reverse Stock Splitihich decreased the humber of common shares issuedutstanding from approximat
72.1 million shares to approximately 18.0 millidmges. The Compang’authorized shares were not affected by the Re
Stock Split. All related share and per share dateehbeen retroactively applied to the financiatesteents for all perio
presented.

On January 8, 2013, due to the failure of the Camfsacommon stock to be listed on a national secaritiechange on
before December 31, 2012, the Company issued 19&0@res of common stock to the purchasers, ar délssignees, unc
the securities purchase agreement that the Comgratieyed into on March 31, 2011 (the "2011 SPA"ysBant to the 20:
SPA, in the event that the Compasigommon stock was not listed on a national seesréxchange on or before Decen
31, 2012, the Company was required to issue thehpsers under the 2011 SPA additional shares ofntonstock equal
10% of the number of shares of common stock orilyigequired by each such purchaser under the ZPIA

On April 16, 2013, the Company consummated an wwitéen public offering, pursuant to which it sadotal of 12,500,0(
shares of common stock. The price to the publithenOffering was $2.00 per share, and the aggreggteroceeds of tl
Offering to the Company were approximately $22.@iom, after the underwriterscommissions and offering expenses.
April 11, 2013, following the pricing of the Offerg, the Company’s common stock began trading oiNW8E MKT.
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Following the Offering, the Exchange Agreement anbdsequent grants of securities, the Company isheggurchasers in
March 31, 2011 financing, or their assigns, an eggte of 775,486 shares of common stock, pursoatftet terms of 20
SPA that provided these investors with certain-diftition protections. The related expense has eeorded to Financia
expenses (income), net” within the consolidatetestents of operations.

Share-Based Compensatio

1. On March 28, 2011, the board of directors and stolders of the Company adopted and approved thgréMD, Inc
2011 UMBRELLA Option Plan (the “Umbrella Plan'\U\nder the Umbrella Plan, the Company reserved 202&7/share
of common stock as awards to employees, consultantsservice providers. At a special meeting oflkdtolders of th
Company held on October 31, 2011, the stockholdppsoved an amendment to the Umbrella Plan to adaidditiona
1,382,975 shares of common stock for a total @000 share:

The Umbrella Plan currently consists of three congmts, the primary plan document that governswalirds grante
under the Umbrella Plan, and two appendices: (ipekulix A, designated for the purpose of grantsteéksoptions an
restricted stock to Israeli employees, consultaotcers and other service providers and other-dd®. employee
consultants, and service providers, and (ii) Appe&] which is the 2011 US Equity Incentive Plaesijnated for tt
purpose of grants of stock options and restrictedksawards to U.S. employees, consultants, andcgeproviders wh
are subject to the U.S. income tax.

The Umbrella Plan is administered by the compeosatommittee of the board of directors. Unless teated earlier b
the board of directors, the Umbrella Plan will eeppn March 27, 2021.

U.S. federal income tax consequences relatinggdrédnsactions described under the Umbrella Plasetrforth in Sectic
409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amet((ithe “Code”)and treasury regulations in 2004 to regulate giéi
of deferred compensation. If the requirements aftiSe 409A of the Code are not satisfied, deferwethpensation ai
earnings thereon will be subject to tax as it veghss an interest charge at the underpaymentpiate 1% and a 20
penalty tax. Certain stock options and certain sygferestricted stock are subject to Section 40Bthe Code.

Pursuant to the current Section 102 of the Ordieantich came into effect on January 1, 2003, ogtimay be grant
through a trustee (i.e., Approved 102 Options)airthrough a trustee (i.e., Unapproved 102 Options)

On December 21, 2012, the Company amended its Ulalftian to increase the total number of sharesoafmon stoc

issuable under such plan by 1,250,000 shares apdrtoit the awarding of incentive stock optionsguant to the U..
portion of the plan.
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2. OnJuly 11, 2011, the board of directors of@oenpany appointed Mr. Sol J. Barer as a new dirdtfirector A”), with a
term expiring at the Compars/2012 annual meeting of stockholders. In conneatith his appointment, Director A w
granted an option to purchase 250,000 shares afdimepanys common stock at an exercise price of $6.00 paestthi
“$6.00 Option”).The $6.00 Option was exercisable immediately Beiptember 30, 2011. In calculating the fair valt
the $6.00 Option, the Company used the followinguagptions: dividend yield of 0% and expected tefn®.41 years
expected volatility of 53%; and ri-free interest rate of 0.17¢

In addition, in connection with his appointmentréitor A was granted an option to purchase 1253b@0es of comm
stock at an exercise price of $10.00 per shareclitsing price of the common stock on the date rahg (the “80.0(
Option”), subject to the terms and conditions of the 20118d8ity Incentive Plan under the Umbrella Plan. $16.0(
Option vests and becomes exercisable in three egumlal installments beginning on the gre@r anniversary of the di
of grant, provided that in the event that Direcfors either (i) not reelected as a director at @@mpanys 2012 annu
meeting of stockholders, or (i) not nominated feelection as a director at the Compan012 annual meeting
stockholders, the option vests and becomes exbteigm the date Director A fails to be reelectednominated. Th
$10.00 Option has a term of 10 years from the détgrant. In calculating the fair value of the 1®.Option, th
Company used the following assumptions: dividereldypf 0% and expected term of HB5¢ears; expected volatility
62%-63%; and risk-free interest rate of 1.67%-1.85%

The fair value of the options granted to Directar using the Blackscholes option pricing model, was approxime
$1,700,000.

On September 28, 2011, Director A exercised th8G&ption to purchase 250,000 shares of commork stesulting it
gross proceeds to the Company of $1,500,000.

On November 16, 2011, the Compaspoard of directors approved the appointment o€@or A as the chairman of
board of directors. In connection with his appoiaitas chairman of the board of directors, the Gowmpssued Direct
A 725,000 shares of common stock and an optiomtohase 725,000 shares of common stock at an eggrdce of $7.€
per share, the closing price of the common stoctherdate of grant. The fair value of the grantearss is approximate
$5.7 million and was recorded as an expense irtdhsolidated financial statements for the year dnlime 30, 2012.
calculating the fair value of these options, themPany used the following assumptions: dividend dyief 0% an
expected term of 5.5 years; expected volatilitpb6%; and riskree interest rate of 1.07%. The options have tesfri<
years from the date of grant, and the vesting tearesas follows: tranche A vests and become exaresn twenty fol
equal monthly installments, tranches B and C vaedtlzecome exercisable upon meeting certain perfaceiaondition:
The fair value of the options, using the Black-Seb@mption-pricing model was approximately $3. Lianil.
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On June 18, 2012, the Compamydoard of directors approved the extension ofddie by which the conditions to -
vesting of tranches B and C must occur. As of Bhe012, the performance condition of tranche B d@emed probat
and the performance condition of tranche C was @eenot probable. As a result, as of June 30, 2612 Compan
continued to record expense related to tranchen Bccordance with the fair value that was calcdlatethe grant dai
Tranche C was treated as a new grant, and the Gomgadculated the fair value of the new grant oa tlate of th
extension using the following assumptions: dividgield of 0% and expected term of 5 years; expectddtility of 66%
and risk-free interest rate of 0.69%. The fair ealusing the Black-Scholes optipmnicing model was approximate
$192,000.

On April 11, 2013, the conditions of tranche B waret.
The conditions of tranche C were met in May 2013.

. On August 5, 2011 and effective August 8, 20the, Board appointed another two new directors @Btior B” anc
“Director C”). Director B was appointed for a teempiring at the Compang’2012 annual meeting of stockholders
Director C was appointed for a term expiring at @@mpanys 2013 annual meeting of stockholders. In conneatiith
their appointment, the directors were each graatedption to purchase shares of common stock &ixarcise price «
$7.80 per share, the closing price of the commocoksbn the date of grant (the “$7.80 Option§he grant to Director
was for 25,000 shares and is subject to the temianditions of the 2011 US Equity Incentive P

The grant to Director C was for 6,250 shares amglii§ect to the 2006 Employee Stock Option Plasulaplan of the
Companys 2011 Umbrella Option Plan. The $7.80 Options aest become exercisable in three equal annuallmstats
beginning on the one-year anniversary of the datgamt. In the case of Director 8bption, in the event that Director E
either (i) not reelected as a director at the Cag[za2012 annual meeting of stockholders, or (ii) nominated fc
reelection as a director at the Compan3012 annual meeting of stockholders, the optesisvzand becomes exercisabl
the date of Director B’s failure to be reelectechominated. In the case of Directors@ption, in the event that Directo
is required to resign from the board due to mediealsons, the option vests and becomes exercisabtbe date «
Director C's resignation for medical reasons. THe8 Options have terms of 10 years from the dbggamnt.

In calculating the fair value of the $7.80 Optiottee Company used the following assumptions: diviblgield of 0% an
expected term of 3-4 years; expected volatility 6¥%-70%; and risk-free interest rate of 0.45%-0.78%

The fair value of the options granted to the abmetioned new directors, using the Black-Scholdé®ogpricing model
is approximately $118,000.
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4. On August 5, 2011, options to purchase 81,161 shafreommon stock were granted to former direcabrs cash exerci
price of $4.92 per share replacing options to paset81,161 shares of common stock held by formmectdirs that expire
during the second quarter of 2011. The options teatts of five years. In calculating the fair valoethe options, tr
Company used the following assumptions: divideraddyof 0% and expected term of 3.5 years; expeaiéatility of 69%:
and risl-free interest rate of 0.62¢

The fair value of the options granted to the fornudrectors, using the Black-Scholes optjamecing model, i
approximately $424,000.

5. During 2011, the Company entered into investorti@ia consulting agreements with investor relaticospanies 1
provide investor relations services. Pursuant éodbnsulting agreements, in addition to monthlys fisea range of $3,0
to $16,500, the Company issued to the investotiosla companies

e a oneyear warrant to purchase 20,290 shares of comnumk stff the Company at an exercise price of $4.9.
share, valued at approximately $21,0

. 12,500 restricted shares of the Company’s commarksvalued at approximately $62,000, and a figar warrar
to purchase 12,500 shares of common stock of thep@oy at an exercise price of $6.00 per shareedah
approximately $30,000; ar

« 6,250 shares of the Company’s common stock, vati&é8,750.

The Company recorded share-based compensationsegpeh$181,750 related to these issuances.

6. On January 30, 2012, the Company appointed adirewtor (“Director D")to its board of directors. In connection with
appointment, the Company issued Director D an aptimpurchase 25,000 shares of its common stoclchwiill vest
onethird annually in 2013, 2014 and 2015 on the amsay of the date of grant, provided that if hé)isot reelected ¢
a director at our 2014 annual meeting of stockhslder (i) not nominated for reelection as a dioe@t our 2014 annt
meeting of stockholders, the option vests and besoemercisable on the date of such failure to eleceed or nominate:

In calculating the fair value of these options, tbempany used the following assumptions: divideraldyof 0% an
expected term of 5.5-6.5 years; expected volatift$8-60%; and risk-free interest rate of 1.019%6%. The options ha
terms of 10 years from the date of grant, and #irevialue of the options, using the Black-Scholpiom-pricing model
was approximately $106,000.

7. On June 18, 2012 the Companpoard of directors issued Directors A, B, C anddiions to purchase 12,500 share
common stock at an exercise price of $3.16 pereshhe closing price of the common stock on thes ddtgrant. |
calculating the fair value of these options, themPany used the following assumptions: dividend dyief 0% an
expected term of 5.5-6.5 years; expected volatdityp5%-66%; and risk-free interest rate of 0.78%7%. The optior
have terms of 10 years from the date of grant,lm@bme exercisable in three equal annual instatbn@ime fair value «
the options, using the Bla-Scholes optic-pricing model, was approximately $23,000 e:¢
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8. On August 1, 2012, the Company issued a consutfainbns with certain market conditions to purch&6¢d00 shares
common stock at an exercise price of $4.72 perestiae closing price of the common stock on the dégrant

As of June 30, 2013 the first and second tranchess fully vested. The third and fourth tranchesiggpon July 31, 2013.

9. On August 27, 2012, the Company issued and exteaggons to purchase shares of common stock tonautiant wh
was an immediate family member of the Comf's CEO at the time. See Note

10.0n September 16, 2012, the Company appointed adireator (“Director E")to its board of directors. In connection v
his appointment, on September 21, 2012, the Comjmsued Director E an option to purchase 25,000eshaf it
common stock at an exercise price of $9 per sliaee;losing price of the common stock on the datgrant.

In calculating the fair value of these options, empany used the following assumptions: dividereldyof 0% an
expected term of 5.5-6.5 years; expected volatilit$8.4%-69.3%; and risk-free interest rate oP0B.03%. The optior
have terms of 10 years from the date of grant aubime exercisable in three equal annual installsndiite fair value «
the options, using the Black-Scholes option-prigimgdel, was approximately $137,000.

11.0n October 20, 2012, the Company issued 215,00@std common stock to pursuant to an agreement avlicenso
See Note 8t

12.0n January 3, 2013, in connection with the appoéminof the Company's current CEO, the Company gcatiie ne\
CEO a nongualified stock option to purchase 525,8B@res of the Company's common stock, made pursaas
Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, an incentiteck option to purchase 74,073 shares of the Cog’'s commol
stock, made pursuant to an Incentive Stock OptigreAment, and 400,000 shares of restricted stdeichvare subject
forfeiture until the vesting of such shares, madespant to a Restricted Stock Award Agreement.Ng#e 7.

In calculating the fair value of the above optithe Company used the following assumptions: dividgield of 0% an
expected term of 5.04-6.5 years; expected vohatilit68.5%-70.3%; and risk-free interest rate G296-1.07%.

The fair value of the above 525,927 and 74,073oapti using the Black-Scholes optiprieing model, was approximatt
$1,470,000.

The fair value of the above 400,000 restrictedesharas approximately $1,620,000.

On April 24, 2013, the vesting of the restricteacktawarded to the CEO was amended. See Note 7.
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13.

14.

On April 25, 2013, the Company granted to the Cjftions to purchase 297,447 shares of commockstweith ar
exercise price of $2.05 per share (the “April Opt®rant”) and (ii) 179,866 restricted shares of nwn stock (the April
RS Grant”).The April Option Grant vests in three equal anrinatallments. The April RS Grant is subject to &ittire
until vested. This award vests in three equal animstallments. The fair value of the April RS Gramas approximate
$369,000. In calculating the fair value of the aboyptions the Company used the following assumstidividend yield ¢
0% and expected term of 5.5-6.5 years; expecteatilil of 66.9%-68.2%; and risk-free interest rafed.82%4.04%. Thi
fair value of the above options, using the Blackdes option-pricing model, was approximately $868,

As of June 30, 2013, 9,506 restricted shares wdétéheld by the Company from the CEO upon certaisting dates 1
satisfy tax withholding obligations. The paymentloé withheld tax, amounting to $27,685 was deduftem equity. Se
Note 7.

On February 7, 2013, the Company appointedadirector (“Director F")to its board of directors. In connection with
appointment, the Company issued Director F an apticpurchase 124,415 shares of its common stoak akercise prit
of $3.40 per share, the closing price of the comstonk on the date of gra

In calculating the fair value of these options, tbempany used the following assumptions: divideraldyof 0% an
expected term of 5.5-6.5 years; expected volatilft§6.8%-68.9%; and risk-free interest rate 060631.21%. The optior
have terms of 10 years from the date of grant aubine exercisable in three equal annual installgndiite fair value «
the options, using the Black-Scholes option-prigimgdel, was approximately $257,000.

On April 16, 2013, the Company appointed a new Mieesident of Corporate Development. In accordamitie the
appointment, on April 22, 2013, the Company grantexinew Vice President of Corporate Developmesttksbptions t
purchase 150,000 shares of the Compapsymmon stock. The options have an exercise pfi§d.97, which was the f
market value of the Company’s common stock on tite df grant. The options are subject to a tlyess- vesting peric
with one-third of such awards vesting each ye

In calculating the fair value of the above optithe Company used the following assumptions: dividgield of 0% an
expected term of 5.5-6.5 years; expected volatiftg6.9%-68.2%; and risk-free interest rate 0P6-8.02%.

The fair value of the above options, using the Bi8choles option-pricing model, was approximately &000.

F- 36




15.

16.

On May 9, 2013, the Company granted optionpuichase an aggregate of 400,000 shares of the &orspcommo
stock to certain of the Compamsyindependent directors. The options have an eseemmiice of $2.75, which was the
market value of the Company’s common stock on tite df grant. The options are subject to a tlyess- vesting peric
with onethird of such awards vesting each year. In calngathe fair value of the above options the Compasgd th
following assumptions: dividend yield of 0% and egfed term of 5.5-6.5 years; expected volatilitys8f1%669.2%; an
risk-free interest rate of 0.8€-1.09%.

The fair value of the above options, using the Bi8choles option-pricing model, was approximatedy 2000.
As of June 30, 2013, the Company had reserved 23&Hares of common stock for issuance under Hresps describ

above.
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17. The following table summarizes information aboutnaats and share options to employe

*

Year ended June 30
2013 2012

Weighted Number of Weighted
Number of warrants average warrants and average

and options exercise price  options  exercise price
Outstandin¢- beginning of periot 2,321,08: $ 5.2¢ 1,098,63. $ 3.6(
Granted* 1,706,11 3.1¢ 1,579,25! 6.8(
Forfeited (194,729 4.11 (106,79 8.44
Exercised (425,41)) - (250,001 6.0(
Outstanding -end of period 3,407,05 $ 471 2,321,08 $ B.2¢
Exercisable at the end of the period 1,316,97' $ 6.22 904,10¢ $ 3.04

Including 372,500 options with performance conditian the year ended June 30, 2(
The following table summarizes information aboutr&ats and share options to non-employees:

Year ended June 30
2013 2012
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
warrants and  average warrantsand  average
options  exercise price  options  exercise price

Outstanding¢- beginning of periot 2,123,94. $ 3.8C 1,999,10: $ 3.6(
Granted* 115,72: 5.0¢ 239,08t 5.04
Forfeited (33,48¢) 5.7¢ (114,244 2.44
Exercised (571,479 1.8¢€ - -
Outstanding - end of period 1,634,70; $ 4.57 2,123,94. $ 3.8(
Exercisable at the end of the period 1,546,69. $ 4.51 2,056,711 $ 3.7€

Including 19,479 options with performance condisiam the year ended June 30 2012. See Note
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The following table provides additional informatiabout all warrants and options outstanding andcisable:

Outstanding as of June 30, 201

Weighted
average
Warrants and remaining Warrants
options contractual and options
Exercise price outstanding life (years) exercisable

0-0.002 367,71: 5.12 367,71:
0.732 37,86: 3.2¢ 37,86:
0.752 83,63¢ 2.7¢ 83,63¢
1.97 150,00( 9.81
2.05 297,44 9.82
2.75 400,00( 9.8¢
2.92 118,75( 8.92 39,58:
2.95 25,00( 9.8¢
2.98 24,50( 9.8t
3.16 97,50( 8.97 32,50(
3.20 75,00( 8.9( 25,00(
3.40 179,16! 9.61
4.05 600,00( 9.52 83,33
4,72 50,00( 4.0¢ 22,50(
4,92 63,66 1.5C 63,66
4,928 433,85! 4,94 391,92
5.80 60,87 1.2¢ 30,43¢
6.00 723,93 2.717 681,59¢
6.90 3,652 5.5( 3,652
7.00 20,29( 2.92 13,527
7.20 188,16 3.2( 188,16¢
7.72 53,75( 2.9¢ 34,58
7.80 820,75( 8.3¢ 696,50(
8.00 10,00( 3.1¢ 3,33:
8.40 2,50( 8.5C 833
9.00 25,00( 9.2¢
9.60 2,50( 9.2(
10.00 125,00( 8.0¢ 62,50(
10.40 1,25( 2.9¢ 83:

5,041,75! 6.8¢ 2,863,67.
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18.

The weighted average of the remaining contractfeabf total vested and exercisable warrants ariebog as of June 30, 20
is 2.90 years.

The aggregate intrinsic value of the total exetdsavarrants and options as of June 30, 2013 isappately $990,000.

The total intrinsic value of options exercised aaproximately $4.6 million and $800,000 for the ngeanded June 30, 2C
and 2012, respectively.

The weighted average fair value of warrants antboptgranted was approximately $1.98 and $4.24heyears ended Ju
30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The weighted aeefair value of warrants and options granted wssnated using tt
Black-Scholes option-pricing model.

The following table sets forth the assumptions tiate used in determining the fair value of optigrsnted to employees
the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2

Year ended June 30

2013 2012
Expected life 5.04-6.5 year 0.17-6.5 year
Risk-free interest rate 0.72%-1.28%  0.03%-2.7<%
Volatility 67%-70% 55%-71%
Dividend yield 0% 0%

The following table sets forth the assumptions thate used in determining the fair value of warsaantd options granted
non-employees for the years ended June 30, 2013Gi#]

Year ended June 3(

2013 2012
Expected life 2-10year  2-10 year
Risk-free interest rate 0.28%-1.7% 0.3%-1.97%
Volatility 60%-73%  47%-65%
Dividend yield 0% 0%

The Company does not have sufficient historicakrege data to provide a reasonable basis upon whielstimate expect
term. Accordingly, as to plain vanilla options gieh the expected term was determined using thpli§ied method, whic
takes into consideration the option’s contractifaldnd the vesting periods (for nemployees, the expected term is equ
the option’s contractual life).
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19.

The Company estimates its forfeiture rate basedtsoemployment termination history, and will contento evaluate ti
adequacy of the forfeiture rate based on analylsisnployee turnover behavior and other factors (fonemployees tt
forfeiture rate is nil). The annual risk-free ratae based on the yield rates of zero couponimdex linked U.S. Fedel
Reserve treasury bonds as both the exercise pritéha share price are in dollar terms. The Cowysaexpected volatility
derived from a blended volatility, based on itddrigal data and that of a peer group of public panies.

As of June 30, 2013, the total unrecognized psoreation cost on employee and monployee stock options, relatec
unvested stockased compensation, amounted to approximately B2l@n. This cost is expected to be recognizedras
weighted-average period of approximately 1.77 yeHnss expected cost does not include the impaangffuture stoclase:
compensation award

The following table summarizes the allocation ditsharebased compensation expense in the consolidatezh®tats ¢
operations:

Year ended June 3(
2013 2012
($ in thousands)

Deduction from revenu $ - % 68
Cost of revenue 44 192
Research and developmt 284 37C
Sales and marketir 78 37¢E
General and administrative 3,43 9,54¢

$ 3,83¢ $ 10,55¢

Acquisition and cancellation of share:

Following a settlement agreement signed on Jur®5], the Company issued 4,696 shares of commak.sthe Compar
issued a stock certificate in the name of the gifhiior such shares for the Company to hold irstrpending consummation
the settlement terms under the settlement agree®@aniune 10, 2012, both parties agreed to amensgetiement agreemi
to provide that the Company would pay approxima&iy,000 rather than issue the shares. Whereashtlres were neyv
released to the plaintiff, and both parties agteezhncel the share certificate evidencing theeshahe Company cancelled
shares and recorded approximately $21,000 as actiedufrom equity. The difference was recorded &serieral an
administrative” based on the cash amount paid fitecfair value of the cancelled shares as otthecellation date.

On April 5, 2012, the Company issued the 2012 Cdibte Debenture and 2012 Warrants to purchaseggregate of 835, 8t
shares of its common stock at an exercise pri &f0 per share in a private placement transaciiea.Note €
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NOTE 10 - TAXES ON INCOME

a. Tax laws applicable to the Company and its subsidigées

Taxation in the United States

InspireMD, Inc. is taxed under U.S. tax laws.

Taxation in Israel

InspireMD Ltd. is taxed under the Israeli IncomeTardinance.

On December 6, 2011, the "Tax Burden Distributicawl Legislation Amendment (2011) was published he Official
Gazette. Under this law, the previously approveatigal decrease in the corporate tax rate was dadc@he Corporate ti
rate was increased from 24% in 2011, to 25% beginBD12.

Taxation in Germany

InspireMD GmbH is taxed according to the tax law&iermany. Accordingly, the applicable tax rates@rporate tax rate
15.825% and trade tax rate of 12.075%.

b. Tax benefits under the Law for the Encouragement o€apital Investments, 1959 (th¢‘ Law”):

1.

InspireMD Ltd. has been granted a “Beneficianydprises” status under the Investment Law inclgdhmendment
No. 60 thereof, which became effective in April 30

The tax benefits derived from any such Beneficiangerprise relate only to taxable profits attriliiéato the specifi
program of investment to which the status was gnt

The main benefit, to which InspireMD Ltd. is ergid| conditional upon the fulfilling of certain cdtidns stipulated b
the above law, is a twgear exemption and five years of a reduced tax ob®5% from tax on income derived fri
their beneficiary activities in facilities in Isladhe tax benefit period is twelve years from ylears of implementatio
The Company elected the year 2007, as the yededtian, and 2011 as an additional year of electigith the twelw
year period of benefits beginning in 2011.

In the event of a distribution of taexempt income attributable to "Beneficiary Entesps" as a cash dividend,

Company will be required to pay tax at a rate d¥25n the amount distributed. In addition, dividewodiginating fron
income attributable to the "Beneficiary Enterprisesl be subject to a 15% withholding tax.
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Should InspireMD Ltd. derive income from sourcebestthan the “Beneficiary Enterpriseduring the period «
benefits, such income shall be taxable at the eegudrporate tax rate.

Conditions for entitlement to the bene

The entitlement to the above benefits is condilimpan InspireMD Ltd. fulfilling the conditions gtillated by the lav
regulations published thereunder and the instrusnefhéipproval for the specific investments in appbassets. In tl
event of failure to comply with these conditiortse benefits may be cancelled and InspireMD Ltd. imayequired t
refund the amount of the benefits, in whole oramtpwith the addition of interest.

The Israeli Law for Encouragement of Capital Inueshts, 1959 was amended as part of the EconomicyRalw for
the years 2012012, which was passed in the Knesset (the Ispagliament) on December 29, 2010. The amend
became effective as of January 1, 2011.

The amendment set alternative benefit tracks tooties then in place, as follows: (i) an investmgrants trac
designed for enterprises located in national degreknt zone A and (ii) two new tax benefits trackw preferrel
enterprises and for special preferred enterpriselich provide for application of a unified tax eato all preferre
income of the company, as defined in the amendment.

If the Company will opt for application of Prefedr&nterprise status, it will accordingly be subjeatder law to th
following tax rates:

Areas in Israel
(other than "Zone A"- as

Years defined by the law)
“Preferred enterpri”
2013 12.5%
2014* 12.5%
2015 and thereaftel 12%

* On August 5, 2013 the Law for Change of Nationdbtities 2013 (Legislative Amendment for Achievirige
Budgetary Goals for 2012014), as describe below, was published, and arotieg things, amended the tax rate
the years 2014 and thereafi

The benefits granted to the preferred enterpriseie o be unlimited in time, unlike the benefitamged to speci
preferred enterprises, which were to be limiteddqyeriod of 10 years. The benefits were to betgthto companie
that qualified under criteria set in the amendméantthe most part, those criteria were similathe criteria that we
set in the law prior to its amendment.
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Under the transitional provisions of the amendmant,Israeli company was allowed to continue to enfte ta
benefits available under the law prior to its ammedt until the end of the period of benefits, afingel in the law. O
each year during the period of benefits, the comparable to opt for application of the amendméinéreby makin
available to itself the tax rates above. Optingdpplication of the amendment is recoverable.

On August 5, 2013, the Law for Change of Natior@iities (Legislative Amendments for Achieving tBedgetary Goals fi
20132014), 2013 (hereinafter, the "Law") was publistiedReshumot (the Israeli government official gaggtand enact
among other things, the following amendme

1.

2.

Raising the corporate tax rate beginning in 201dithereafter to 26.5% (instead of 25¢

Increasing the tax rate on the income of prefeenterprises from the 2014 tax year and thereadterstated in tt
Encouragement of Capital Investment Law, 1959 (hafter - the Encouragement Law) of a qualifying compan
Development Zone A to 9% (instead of 7% in 2014 &¥#din 2015 and thereafter) and companies locatemmnes otht
than Zone A to 16% (instead of 12.5% in 2014 an®% i@ 2015 and thereafter). In addition, the taxe ran dividend
distributed on January 1, 2014 and thereafter mwaigiig from preferred income under the Encouragérhaw will be
raised to 20% (instead of 159

When a company distributes revaluation gains tali@reholders, the asset for which revaluationsgame recognized
the financial statements of the company is deemseahasset that was sold on distribution day (natieale) and therefc
such revaluation gains are liable to tax. Revatimatjains are defined by the Law as retained easnitgd subject 1
corporate tax, of the kind indicated by the Ministé Finance with approval of the Finance Committé¢he Knesset,
over NIS 1 million to be calculated accumulativélym the date of acquiring the ass

The balances of deferred tax as of June 30, 20&8 dot account for the expected impact of the Lavtsalegislation he
not been effectively completed by that date.

The impact of the Law on deferred tax balance ef@ompany is not expected to be material.

Carry forward tax losses

As of June 30, 2013, InspireMD Ltd. had a net céoryard tax loss of approximately $26 million. Uardsraeli tax laws, tt
carry forward tax losses can be utilized indefigitéds of June 30, 2013, the Company had a netydamvard tax loss ¢
approximately $19 million. Under U.S. tax laws, t@empanys tax losses can be utilized two years back andtywgear:
forward. As such the Company's carry forward tasés will begin to expire on June 30, 2031.
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Tax assessments

The Company and its subsidiaries have not beessex$éor tax purposes since incorporation.

Loss before income taxes

The components of loss before income taxes arellasvé:

Year ended June 30

2013 2012
($ in thousands)

Profit (loss) before taxes on incon

InspireMD, Inc. $ (19.61) $ (11,079
InspireMD Ltd. (9,659 (6,507
InspireMD GmbH 16 (4

$ (29,250 $ (17,589

Current taxes on income

Tax expenses in the amount of approximately $8#aD $14,000 for the years ended June 30, 2013 @h#, 2espectivel
are related to non-U.S. operations.

The following is a reconciliation of the theoretidax expense, assuming all income were taxed atréigular tax rat
applicable to the Company in the U.S. and the &téxeexpense:

Year ended June 30

2013 2012
($ in thousands)

Loss before taxes on income, as reported in themstmts of operatior $ 29,25( $ 17,58:

Theoretical tax benef (9,945 (5,989

Increase in tax benefit resulting from permaneffedinces 1,61z 1,44¢
Increase (decrease) in taxes on income resultorg the computation of deferred taxes

a rate which is different from the theoretical r 20t (75)

Increase (decrease) in uncertain tax posit- net - (72)

Decrease in theoretical tax benefit resulting farsidiaries different tax ra (672) 1,40¢

Change in corporate tax rates, see c al - (24%)

Change in valuation allowance 8,19¢ 3,53

$ 8 $ 14

As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company deteththm it was more likely than not that the benefithe operating loss
would not be realized and consequently, manageowmridiuded that full valuation allowances shouldebtablished regardi

the Company'’s deferred tax assets.
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The changes in the valuation allowance for thesreaded June 30, 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

Year ended June 30

2013 2012
($ in thousands)
Balance at the beginning of the yi $ 8,05( $ 4,517
Changes during the year 8,19¢ 3,53:
Balance at the end of the year $ 16,24¢ $ 8,05(

g. Accounting for Uncertain Tax position

The following is a reconciliation of the total anmtsi of the Companyg’ unrecognized tax benefits during the years edda¢
30, 2013 and 2012:

Year ended June 30
2013 2012
($ in thousands)

Balance at beginning of peri $ - $ 71
Decrease in unrecognized tax benefits as a restak @ositions taken during a prior ye (77)
Balance at end of period $ > >

All of the above amounts of unrecognized tax besefould affect the effective tax rate if recoguize

A summary of open tax years by major jurisdictispiesented below:

Jurisdiction Years
u.S. 200¢-2012
Israel 20072012
Germany 20072012

The Company and its subsidiaries applied for a gbani fiscal year for its tax filings to end in &80, 2012 in Israel.
h. Deferred income tax:

Year ended June 30,
2013 2012
($ in thousands)

Shor-term:

Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 82 $ 54
Provision for bonu: 51

Provision for vacation and recreation pay 79 70
212 124

Long-term:
R&D expense: 1,22 74¢€
Beneficial conversion featu - (1,257
Non cash issuance co! - 89
Shar+based compensatic 1,69¢ 69:<
Carry forward tax losse 13,06( 7,631
Accrued severance pay, het 49 18
16,03¢ 7,92¢
Less-valuation allowance (16,24¢) (8,050
$ -9 =
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NOTE 11 - SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENT INFORMA TION
Balance sheets:

a. Accounts receivable:

June 30,
2013 2012
($ in thousands)

1) Trade:
Open account $ 2,06¢ $ 2,03¢
Allowance for doubtful accounts (329 (215
$ 1,73¢ $ 1,82¢

2) Other:
Due from government institutior $ 17¢ $ 124
Advance payments to supplie 20z 11¢€
Miscellaneous 10 22

$ 38 $ 264

The changes in “Allowance for doubtful accountstidg the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 dof@ss:

Year ended June 30

2013 2012
($ in thousands)
Balance at beginning of peri $ 21t $ 15&
Additions during the perio 24t 78
Deductions during the peric (142
Exchange rate differences 11 (18)
Balance at end of period $ 32¢ $ 21F
b. Inventories:
June 30,
2013 2012
($ in thousands)
Finished good $ 364 $ 47¢
Work in proces: 1,111 1,11¢
Raw materials and supplies 11€ 15C

$ 1,59 $ 1,744
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As of June 30, 2013 and 2012 the Company recordadsions for slow moving inventory in the amounfsapproximatel
$379,000 and $443,000, respectively.

Inventory on consignment
The changes in inventory on consignment duringydas ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Year ended June 30,

2013 2012
($ in thousands)
Balance at beginning of peri $ 63 $ 82
Costs of revenues deferred during the pe 20 63
Costs of revenues recognized during the period (83) (82
Balance at end of period $ - $ 63

As of June 30, 2012, inventory on consignment idetl products of sales for which returns were rgligstimated in th
amount of approximately $63,000. As of June 30, 2®iere was no inventory on consignment.

Accounts payable and accruals-other:

June 30,
2013 2012
($ in thousands)
Employees and employee institutic $ 62€ $ 43¢
Accrued vacation and recreation 313 272
Accrued clinical trials expens: 513 607
Provision for sales commissio 20t 194
Accrued expense 1,34: 1,197
Due to government institutior 15 22
Provision for return: 13¢
Taxes payable 13 56

$ 3,02¢ $ 2,92¢

Deferred revenues
The changes in deferred revenues during the yediag June 30, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Year ended June 30

2013 2012
($ in thousands)
Balance at beginning of peric $ 10 $ >
Revenue deferred during the period 25
Revenue recognized during the period (15)
Balance at end of period $ 10 $ 10
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Statements of Operation:
f.  Financial expenses, nel

Year ended June 30

2013 2012
(% in thousands)
Bank commission $ 38 $ 50
Interest incom (28) (40
Exchange rate differenc (63) 112
2013 Exchange agreement
Induced conversion of convertible dt 9,33(
Issuance of warran 56€
Interest expense (including debt issuance ci 4,26¢ 1,23¢
Change in fair value of warrants, embedded derigatand anti-dilution rights 64 (1,322)
$ 14,170 $ 38

NOTE 12 - ENTITY WIDE DISCLOSURES
The Company operates in one operating segment.
Disaggregated financial data is provided belowoiewis:

(1) Revenues by geographic area and
(2) Revenues from principal customers.

Revenues are attributed to geographic areas bas#uedocation of the customers. The following istanmary of revenues
geographic areas:

Year ended June 30,

2013 2012
($ in thousands)
Russis $ 837 $ 81z
Spain $ 701 $ 422
Other $ 3,33t $ 4,11
$ 487: $ 5,34¢
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By principal customers:

Year ended June 30
2013 2012

Customer A 17% 15%
Customer E 14% 8%

All tangible long lived assets are located in I&r
NOTE 13 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

On August 22, 2013, the Company, InspireMD Ltd. #rellicensor entered into an amendment (the “Sgeéanendment)'to the
license agreement pursuant to which the Compapendies the stent design used in the Comgawguard Prime. Pursuant to
Second Amendment, the Company and the licensoeddoeamend the royalty fee from 2.9% of all né¢saluring the term

the agreement to (i) 2% of the first $10.56 milliofinet sales from July 1, 2013 through June 3@52@rovided that tt
Company makes an advance royalty payment of $102)8Ghe date of the amendment, (ii) 2.5% of nietssim excess of $10.
million from July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2015yadale within 45 days of June 30, 2015 and (iii)%2.6f all net sales beginni
on July 1, 2015.
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT T O RULE 13a-14(a)

I, Alan Milinazzo, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of InspireMD, Inc. (the‘registran”);

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dn#tate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this ref

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods
presented in this repol

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18ayHhd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaremaused such disclosure controls and procedotes designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrinégion relating to the registrant, including ithsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@se entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report is
being preparec

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaing, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and tr
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by
this report based on such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reporting thatooed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrafes financial
reporting; anc

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluetiiernal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorglahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons
performing the equivalent function:

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and
report financial information; an




b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invavaanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: September 17, 20
By: /sl Alan Milinazzo

Name: Alan Milinazzo
President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT T O RULE 13a-14(a)

I, Craig Shore, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of InspireMD, Inc. (the‘registran”);

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dn#tate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this ref

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods
presented in this repol

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18ayHhd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaremaused such disclosure controls and procedotes designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrinégion relating to the registrant, including ithsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@se entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report is
being preparec

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaing, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and tr
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by
this report based on such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reporting thatooed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrafes financial
reporting; anc

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluetiiernal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorglahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons
performing the equivalent function:

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and
report financial information; an




b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invavaanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: September 1, 2013

By: /sl Craig Shore
Name:  Craig Shore
Title: Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financi

Officer)




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION FURNISHED PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

This certification is furnished solely pursuanSection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18.0. 1350) and accompanies the Annual
Report on Form 10-K (the “Form 10-K”) for the yearded June 30, 2013 of InspireMD, Inc. (the “Conyfian, Alan Milinazzo, the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, certify that, 8®d®n my knowledge:

(1) The Form 1-K fully complies with the requirements of Sectidd(4) or Section 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeofAd 934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Form 10-K fiapresents, in all material respects, the finanmiadition and results of operations of
the Company as of and for the periods coveredignréport.

Date: September 17, 2013

By: /sl Alan Milinazzo
Name: Alan Milinazzo
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished aseahibit to the Form 10-K pursuant to Item 60188)(of Regulation S-K and
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (sctisns (a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 6Bitté 18, United States Code) and,
accordingly, is not being filed as part of the FdrtaK for purposes of Section 18 of the Securiigshange Act of 1934, as amended, and is
not incorporated by reference into any filing of tiompany, whether made before or after the datheegardless of any general
incorporation language in such filing.




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION FURNISHED PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

This certification is furnished solely pursuanSection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18.0. 1350) and accompanies the
Annual Report on Form 10-K (the “Form 10-K”) foretlyear ended June 30, 2013 of InspireMD, Inc. ‘@wempany”). |, Craig Shore, the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify thhased on my knowledge:
(1) The Form 1-K fully complies with the requirements of Sectidd(4) or Section 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeofAd 934; anc

3) The information contained in the Form 10-K fiapresents, in all material respects, the finanmiadition and results of operations of
the Company as of and for the periods coveredignréport.

Date: September 17, 2013

By: /s/ Craig Shore

Name:  Craig Shore

Title: Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financi
Officer)

The foregoing certification is being furnished aseahibit to the Form 10-K pursuant to Item 60188)(of Regulation S-K and
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (sctisns (a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 6Bitté 18, United States Code) and,
accordingly, is not being filed as part of the FdrtaK for purposes of Section 18 of the Securiigshange Act of 1934, as amended, and is
not incorporated by reference into any filing of Bompany, whether made before or after the datoheaegardless of any general
incorporation language in such filing.




